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Directors and Senior Management

EENSRERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaodong, aged 53, has been appointed as an executive
Director of Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) with
effect from 6 August 2015. Mr. Liu has been appointed as the chief
executive officer (the "CEO") of the Company with effect from 15
September 2015. Mr. Liu was appointed as the chairman of the board
of directors on 14 March 2016. Mr. Liu is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Liu was a member of the senior management in China Huarong
International Holdings Limited ("CHIH"), taking up the position of
general manager of the business development department and
deputy chief executive officer of CHIH. Before joining CHIH, Mr. Liu
worked in various companies, taking management positions in % g
YT #R1T (Huarong Xiangjiang Bank), #{#£77 (China Citic Bank) and
F 2 4R 17 (Ping An Bank). Mr. Liu obtained a master degree from
Hunan Normal University in 1989 and has over 27 years' extensive
experience in areas of banking, asset management and investment.

Mr. Jiang Rongjian, aged 43, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 6 August 2015. Mr. Jiang
has been appointed as the deputy CEO of the Company with effect
from 15 September 2015. Mr. Jiang is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Jiang was the investment director of CHIH. Before joining CHIH,
Mr. Jiang worked in various companies, taking management
positions in a number of financial institutions, including & $# B (&
) B R A F] (CCB International (China) Limited). Mr. Jiang obtained a
doctoral degree in economics from Nankai University, and has over
16 years of extensive experience in areas of investment banking and
asset management.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSRERE

Mr. Xiong Hao, aged 32, has been appointed as an executive
Director of the Company with effect from 2 September 2005 and the
assistant to CEO with effect from 15 September 2015.

Mr. Xiong was the deputy general manager of asset management
department of CHIH. Before joining CHIH, Mr. Xiong worked in
various companies, taking management positions in a number of
financial institutions, including YueXiu Asset Management Co.,
Limited and Cinda International Holdings Limited. Mr. Xiong obtained
a bachelor degree in Chemistry from Peking University and a doctor
of philosophy in chemistry from Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology, and has extensive experience in areas of asset
management and investment.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin, aged 55, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company with effect from
23 October 2015. Dr. Wong is currently an executive director and
deputy managing director of COSCO Pacific Limited (HKSE: 1199),
where he is responsible for the management of work relating to
capital markets and investor relations. Currently, Dr. Wong also acts
as an independent non-executive director for a number of listed
companies including:

o China ZhengTong Auto Services Holdings Limited (HKSE: 1728);

J I.T Limited (HKSE: 999);

o Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co., Ltd. (HKSE: 2208
and SZSE: 002202),

o AAG Energy Holdings Limited (HKSE: 2686);

o Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical (Group) Co., Ltd. (HKSE: 2196
and SHSE: 600196) ; and
o Bank of Qingdao Co., Ltd. (HKSE: 3866)

Dr. Wong served as an independent non-executive director of China
Metal International Holdings Inc. (HKSE: 319) from December 2004 to
July 2013 and an independent non-executive director of CIG Yangtze
Ports PLC (HKSE: 8233) from September 2005 to October 2015.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSRERE

Dr. Wong obtained a professional diploma in banking from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 1985, his master of
business administration degree from Andrews University in Michigan
in the United States in August 1992 and his doctoral degree in
business administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in December 2007.

Dr. Wong is the past chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
(chairman from July 2009 to July 2014). He is a non-executive director
of the Securities and Futures Commission since October 2012, a
member of the Financial Reporting Council since December 2015, a
convenor-cum-member of the Financial Reporting Panel since July
2013, a council adviser of the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
since November 2008, where he was the past chairman from
October 2006 to October 2008, a former member of the Main Board
and GEM Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (May 2007 to May 2013), a member of the Corruption
Prevention Advisory Committee of Independent Commission Against
Corruption since January 2011, a council member of The Hong Kong
Management Association since July 2010 and a board director of the
Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited since April 2012.

Mr. Tse Yung Hoi, aged 63, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 23 October
2015. Mr. Tse is currently the chairman and non-executive director of
BOCI-Prudential Asset Management Limited. He was the deputy chief
executive officer of BOC International Holding Limited from
December 2002 to December 2012, and the deputy general manager
of investment management and treasury of Bank of China in Beijing
from October 1998 to December 2002. Mr. Tse is also the
independent non-executive director of China Life Insurance
(Overseas) Company Limited, iOne Holdings Limited (HKSE: 982),
BOCOM International Holdings Company Limited and Shenzhen
Qianhai Financial Holdings Company Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENSRERE

Mr. Tse currently serves as the life honorary president of Chinese
Securities Association of Hong Kong, standing committee member of
the 49th session of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
vice chairman of Chinese Academy of Governance (HK) Industrial
and Commercial Professionals Alumni Association Ltd., a member of
the Election Committee of Hong Kong (Financial Services subsector),
member of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council Mainland
Business Advisory Committee, member of the Consulting Committee
of Qianhai Shenzhen — Hongkong Modern Service Industry
Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen, council member of Financial Services
Development Council of Hong Kong, member of the 12th Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and
Advisor of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce. He has
been awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star(BBS) by the government of
HKSAR in 2013.

Mr. Tse graduated from English studies from the department of
foreign language of Fudan University in July 1975.

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung, aged 32, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since
December 2012. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in
Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan University. Mr. Yeung is a
certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Yeung has over 4 years of solid experiences
in the field of accounting and finance from his past work
experiences. He is appointed as company secretary of Ngai Shun
Holdings Limited, a company the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1246), since 8 May 2015.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Po Tak Gilbert, age 52, was appointed as the deputy CEO
on 15 September 2015. He was chief operating officer of the
Company before restructuring of the Group since he joined the
Company in August 2010. He has over 28 years working experience
in operational management in the banking, financial and investment
banking industry. Mr. Lee possesses the Master Degree of Business
Administration from University of Leicester, the Master Degree of
Electronic Commerce from The Open University of Hong Kong, the
Bachelor Degree of Laws from University of Wolverhampton and the
Master Degree of Laws from University of London.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIR N AT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In 2015, the Company changed its financial year end from 30 April to
31 December and therefore there were only eight months for this
financial period (the “Period”). Although the Period is not a full
financial year, the Group achieved a satisfactory result with the
efforts of management and support from China Huarong Asset
Management Co., Ltd (“China Huarong”). The Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$168,003,000 from the continuing
operations for the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 as
compared to the revenue of approximately HK$46,368,000 for the
year ended 30 April 2015 (“FY2014"), representing an increase of
approximately 262.3%.

As a result of the increase in revenue, together with the gain on
disposal of available-for-sale investments, profit attributable to the
shareholders for the Period significantly increased to approximately
HK$139,397,000 as compared to the restated loss of approximately
HK$66,628,000 in FY2014. During the Period under review, the Group
has recorded a net gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments
of approximately HK$96,575,000 (FY2014: loss of approximately
HK$14,754,000) in relation to the investments in Hao Tian
Development Group Limited (Stock Code: 474), Huili Resources
(Group) Limited (Stock Code: 1303) and Imperial Pacific International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1076).

As the Group is still in the revamping stage since China Huarong
became its indirect controlling shareholder, the Board considers that
it is of the Group’s interest to focus its financial resources on the
expansion of businesses. Therefore, the Board does not recommend
a payment of final dividend in the Period (FY2014: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Period was a milestone for the Group. The Group had completed
the restructuring and the distribution of equity shares of Modern
Series Limited (“MSL"). Following the completion of restructuring and
the distribution in specie, Camellia Pacific Investment Holding Limited
(“Camellia”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of China Huarong,
subscribed for 1,702,435,038 new shares in the Company on 31
August 2015 and has become the immediate controlling shareholder
since then.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIR N AT

Accordingly, the name of the Company changed from Simsen
International Corporation Limited to Huarong International Financial
Holdings Limited in October 2015. With the new brand name, the
Group aspires to expand its businesses and operations by fully
utilising its licenses issued under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571) (the “SFQ") (type 1, 2, 4, 6 and 9 licences). The
reporting operating segments are also transformed as follows:

Securities

The securities segment comprises broking and dealing of securities,
futures and options contracts and the provision of margin financing
services. The revenue from the securities segment increased from
approximately HK$34,941,000 in FY2014 to approximately
HK$44,911,000 during the Period while the segment result increased
from approximately HK$9,786,000 in FY2014 to approximately
HK$28,658,000 during the Period. The significant increase was due to
a combination of higher trading volume and more arrangement and
handling fee income arising from new margin loans during the
Period. Margin loan receivables increased from approximately
HK$86,037,000 as at 30 April 2015 to approximately HK$868,474,000
as at 31 December 2015 as a result of the efforts of the Company put
in business expansion in the last quarter of 2015.

Corporate Finance

The corporate finance segment comprises securities underwriting
and sponsoring and financial advisory services to institutional clients.
The revenue from this segment increased from approximately
HK$11,427,000 in FY2014 to approximately HK$59,370,000 during the
Period. In particular, the Group acted as one of the underwriters in
the initial public offering (“IPO”) of China Huarong, the shares of
which were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
October 2015.

Asset Management and Direct Investment

In the last quarter of 2015, the Group started its asset management
and direct investment business, which include asset management
services and direct investments in equities, bonds, funds, derivative
instruments and other financial products.

Regarding the asset management business, the Group set up a
close-end fund, namely Huarong International Asset Management
Great China Investment Fund L.P., with an aggregate capital of
US$30,000,000 during the Period. The Group acts as both general
partner and limited partner of the fund.

Regarding direct investments business, the Group recognised
unrealised profit and realised profit of approximately HK$49,891,000
and HK$5,581,000 respectively during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIR N AT

As at 31 December 2015, the investment portfolio was comprised of

R-ZE—RAFE+-_A=1+—H REHEBFEN

TEREE

the following financial assets:
Fair value  Reference can be
change made to the
Carrying during  announcements of
amounts  Percentage the Period  the Company on
(HK$'000) of portfolio (HK$'000) the following dates
AEER TSERQF
REE e DAEESEE RUTBEHEL2
Investments RE (F#&x) Bk (F&Rx) »1%E
Convertible bonds EXnBRERARAR 313,418 41.7% 39,915 3 November 2015 and
issued by SMIHoldings (A1 5% : 198.hk) 12 November 2015
Group Limited FTET 2 IR ES “T-HF+—HA=H
(stock code: 198.hk) k=_F-—RAF+—A+=H
Listed shares of Bank of ~ $8 MR 1T 1D AR A 7 238,662 31.8% 42,858 27 November 2015,
Jinzhou Co., Ltd (MR - 416.0k) 2 December 2015
(stock code: 416.hk) Z EmiH and 4 December 2015
“T-RF+—A=++tB:
“E-RF+ZAZAR
“T-RF+=-AWA
Listed shares of Flat BREFEESERH 197,296 26.2% (32,882) 10 November 2015
Glass Group Co., Ltd BRAR (RO —T-HF+—A+H
(stock code: 6865.hk) 6865.hk) 7 LTz n
Others Hih 2,388 0.3% - -
Total 45T 751,764 100% 49,891

Further details of the above investments are disclosed in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Discontinued Operations

The Group's discontinued operations included dealing of bullion and
forex contracts, money lending, provision of pawns loans and
financing lease services. The discontinued operations recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$30,945,000 during the Period (FY2014:
HK$198,893,000) with a net loss of approximately HK$15,818,000
(FY2014: profit of HK$3,907,000). There was a significant drop in
revenue from discontinued operations because the distributed
operations were only covered into the Group’s results from 1 May
2015 to 3 August 2015 and the business of discontinued operations
in Hong Kong had scaled down. The revenue and results relating to
these businesses are classified as discontinued operations for both
the Period and FY2014.

The Company had completed the group reorganisation and the
discontinued operations were transferred to MSL. On 3 August 2015,
the shares of MSL were distributed to the shareholders of the
Company by way of distribution in specie.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIR N AT

Business strategies and objectives

The Group will further formulate its development strategies,
strengthen its corporate governance and enhance its risk
management. The Group will continue the wide-range recruitment of
professionals and the expansion of markets to realise sustained and
healthy development of the Company.

Looking forward, leveraging on the licenses issued under the SFO
(type 1, 2, 4, 6 and 9 licences) that it possesses, the Group will
promote the interconnection between its financing and investment
business and licenced business, and establish a platform regarding
the three major businesses of “securities”, “corporate finance” and
“asset management”. The Group will promote the development of
the nine major businesses carried out under the above licences, and
focus on the five major business segments of dealing of securities,
margin, corporate financing, investment and asset management. The
Group will focus on these five aspects: business expansion, risk
control, corporate governance, team building and brand
management and strive to accomplish the strategic objective of
establishing the Group as an international and professional
integrated financial service platform with strong profitability, high
investment returns, comprehensive product mix and excellent brand
image.

PROSPECT

The year 2016 will be a challenging year with the cooling down
economy in China and the increasingly competitive market
environment. However, it is expected that more channels connecting
the China market, including the anticipated launch of Shenzhen-
Hong Kong Stock Connect, will open up new business opportunities
in Hong Kong.

In 2016, the Group will try to continue the momentum in the last
quarter of 2015 and focus on growing its businesses using its
licences issued under SFO. With the new brand name “China
Huarong” and the support from our ultimate holding company, the
year 2016 will be a significant year for the Company to enhance its
basic infrastructure and to accomplish its transformation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Period, the Company issued 1,702,435,038 new shares at
HK$0.275 per share. As at 31 December 2015, the total number of
the issued share capital with the par value of HK$0.001 each was
3,278,107,918 and total equity attributable to shareholders was
approximately HK$735,155,000 (30 April 2015: HK$1,256,171,000).
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BIR N AT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total cash and cash
equivalents amounting to approximately HK$3,040,911,000 (30 April
2015: HK$68,337,000), which already excluded approximately
HK$623,241,000 (30 April 2015: HK$280,004,000) of client funds that
were kept in separate designated bank accounts.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was 530.7% (30
April 2015: 6.2%), being calculated as borrowings over the
Company’s shareholders’ equity. The increased borrowings are
attributable to the loan from the controlling shareholder for the
expansion of businesses.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s banking facilities amounted to
HK$40,000,000 (30 April 2015: HK$40,000,000), including a revolving
loan facility amounting to HK$10,000,000 (30 April 2015:
HK$10,000,000) and the remaining facility amounting to
HK$30,000,000 (30 April 2015: HK$30,000,000) which represents a
margin facility and the availability of this facility is conditional upon
the execution of charges over securities by a subsidiary of the
Company. None of the banking facilities was utilised and outstanding
as at 31 December 2015. The Group's banking facilities are secured
by pledged bank deposits or corporate guarantee executed by the
Company.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
conditions. For the SFC licensed subsidiaries, the Group ensures
each of the subsidiaries maintains a liquidity level adequate to
support the level of activities with a sufficient buffer to accommodate
increases in liquidity requirements arising from potential increases in
the level of business activities. During the Period, all the licensed
subsidiaries have complied with the liquidity requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (the “FRR").

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, a bank deposit of approximately
HK$10,353,000 (30 April 2015: HK$10,725,000) was pledged to secure
banking facilities of the Group.
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BIR N AT

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group employed a total of 80
employees (30 April 2015: 73 employees, excluding employees in
discontinued operations). The Group’s staff recruitment and
promotion are primarily based on individuals’ merits, relevant
experiences, development potentials for the positions offered and
performance. Staff remuneration and benefit policies, which are
formulated by reference to the market, are competitive and
performance based.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURES

The Group's revenue and expenditure are mainly denominated in
United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group's foreign
exchange exposure is mainly from the translation of its assets and
liabilities denominated in United States dollars. As Hong Kong dollars
are pegged with United States dollars, the Directors believe that the
Group's foreign exchange exposure is manageable and the Group
will closely monitor the risk exposure from time to time.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Huarong International Securities Limited (previously known as United
Simsen Securities Limited) (“"HISL"), an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, was joined as the 10th defendant to the
High Court action HCA 64/2012 commenced by Mayer Holdings
Limited ("Mayer”) as plaintiff (the “Action”) and was served with the
Re-amended Writ of Summons and Re-amended Statement of Claim
for the Action. Mayer is claiming against HISL for damages for,
among other things, breach of contract. HISL has sought legal advice
on the alleged claims against it. Based on their understanding of the
factual background concerning the alleged claims against HISL, the
Directors consider that HISL has a defence of merit and will therefore
direct HISL to defend the alleged claims strenuously. HISL was in the
course of providing relevant information to the High Court and there
was no substantial progress as at 31 December 2015 and up to the
date of authorisation for the consolidated financial statements. Save
as disclosed above, the Group had no other material contingent
liability at 31 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE i kAT

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME ERATERE

As the Board considered that the change of the Company’s names HREESR AT NARTLEE AR THIEMH
would present a new corporate image, and would better reflect the #F% % > WEERMAQ T Z 2EME LA
business nature of the Company and the Company’s relationship AR EEZEBRRFE 2 BE WESFTSEH
with its controlling shareholder, the Board proposed that the 2 & # & % x £ # f [Simsen International
Company changes its English name from “Simsen International  Corporation Limited | 224 [Huarong International
Corporation Limited” to “Huarong International Financial Holdings  Financial Holdings Limited | 3 # £ fr X2 % 7 g
Limited” and its Chinese name from " R1TBIER (JZRR) ER AR " to  [RITEERE () AR AT s [ErBEE SR
"R S BRI A R A 7. The above proposal was approved  {ERRBR AT - FlEHEER -T—RFE+ A
by the Shareholders at the Company’s special general meeting held = BT 2 AR FIREEBIA S ER T £ @ I
on 2 October 2015, and duly became effective on 5 October 2015. RZZE—AF+TARBAERNER -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance within a sensible framework with an emphasis
on the principles of transparency, accountability and independence.
The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Group and the enhancement of shareholders’
value.

During the Period, the Company has complied with all applicable
code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the
following deviations from Code Provision:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
Group CEO should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Ms. Cheng Yan was appointed as the Chairman of the Board on 13
October 2015. She tendered her resignation on 12 November 2015.
Other than that, during the Period, the Company did not appoint the
Chairman and Mr. Liu Xiaodong, the CEO, usually chairs meetings of
the Board. In performing his role as Chairman of the meetings, Mr.
Liu provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate
governance practices. On 14 March 2016, Mr. Liu was appointed as
the Chairman. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is
adequately ensured by the current Board which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals with sufficient number
thereof being independent non-executive Directors. The Company
will separate the roles of Chairman and CEO to comply with the
requirements of the code provision.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company on how to comply with the CG Code are summarised as
follows:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the objective of enhancing
shareholders’ value, including setting and approving the Group’s
strategic direction and other important matters such as interim and
annual results, dividends, annual financial budgets, business and
operation plans etc., while delegating day-to-day operations of the
Group to the management. Besides, each member of the Board is
expected to make a full and active contribution to the Board's affairs
and to ensure that the Board acts in the best interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The management and control of the business of the Company are
vested in the Board. It is the duty of the Board to establish policies,
strategies and plans, and to provide leadership in the attainment of
the objective of creating value to the Company’s shareholders.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through
Board committees and some of which have been delegated to the
management of the Company, including (i) formulating the internal
control systems of the Company and assisting in the operational
strategies of the Company, (ii) finance and accounting functions,
including keeping proper books and records, (i) compliance with
various rules and regulations including but not limited to the Listing
Rules, (iv) implementing the policies and processes approved by the
Board and (v) implementing the policies, processes and procedures
for the management and development of the Company’s employees.
The delegation of authority includes responsibility for ensuring that
the Board is provided with sufficient information and explanation on
a timely basis as regards to the Company’s businesses, and in
particular, with respect to the Company’s performance, financial
condition, operating results and prospects and to enable it to make
an informed assessment for matters put before the Board for
approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has already adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) in August 2013 setting out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company considers diversity as a wide concept and believes
that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural background, educational background and
professional experience. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, in the context of the skills and experience of the Board
as a whole requires to be effective. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has taken up the mantle of reviewing
such diverse selection philosophy at the Directors’ nomination level,
and helped maintaining a solid slate of Directors with diverse
perspectives and varied educational background and expertise
made-up, from in-depth knowhow in the asset management and
investment, to professional qualifications in the legal and accounting
fields.

DIRECTORS' AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES
INSURANCE

Appropriate insurance cover for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers of the
Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged by the Company.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills
and experience desirable for effective leadership of the Company
and independence in decision making.

The Board currently comprises six Directors in total, with three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The existing Directors of the Company are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Xiaodong (Chairman and CEO)
Mr. Jiang Rongjian

Mr. Xiong Hao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Tin Yau Kelvin

Mr. Tse Yung Hoi

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung

The Company currently has four Board committees. The table below
provides details of these committees on which each Board member
serves.
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EEFEMARNEERER  BEZRAITE
ENZBBEIFRTES - ARARETESEN
T

HITES
Rl R (EEHFTHAAE)
[eg” Y g tas

BYEHTESE
EAhEL
SBELE
G eg s

ARRBARAEEUEEELRZES - TREHRSE
EFENEBHEZEREGKRB ZFIF

Board Committee

EEZEY
Executive Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee = Committee Committee Committee
Director = BITEES EH£EE FHEES REZES
Liu Xiaodong Bl C M
Jiang Rongjian g i M
Xiong Hao Ae M
wong Tin Yau Kelvin =AM C M C
Tse Yung Hoi HEE M C M
Yeung Siu Keung BR M M M
Notes: PitsE

C Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M Member of the relevant Board committees

None of the members of the Board has any relationship with one
another (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed
independence of all independent non-executive Directors and
concluded that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole, with the assistance of the Nomination
Committee which was established on 28 March 2012, is responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, monitoring the appointment and succession planning of
Directors and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry out the
selection process by making reference to the skills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations.

The Company’s bye-laws (the “Bye-laws”) provide that all Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed by the Board to fill a causal vacancy
shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.
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The Bye-laws also allow the removal of a Director by an ordinary
resolution.

The Company's circular to be despatched to shareholders of the
Company will contain detailed information of the retired Directors
standing for re-election.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director received induction on the first
occasion of his or her appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Group and that he or she is fully aware of his responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant laws and regulations.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the Group’s
business and the legislative and regulatory environments in which
the Group conducts its business to the Directors.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code which all Directors should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the Period, all Directors participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME
COMMITMENTS

During the Period, the Board held five meetings and the Company
held four general meetings. The attendance record of individual
Directors is set out below. Figure in brackets indicates maximum
number of meetings in the period in which the individual was a
Director of the Company.

EEHERRRARE

AHEAN EEGERTRAGH  MARAG
BIIMABRARE - @HREREZ HELCHEHNT
R BRANBFARERN AR R EENEAED

NZBE=E R

Attendance Attendance
(for Board (for general
meetings) meetings)
HE=R HE=
Directors B=E (EE=Eex) (BREXE)
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (appointed on 6 August 2015) FERAE(R_T—1F 5/(5) 2/(3)
NARNBEERT)
Mr. Jiang Rongjian (appointed on 6 August 2015) BaErt(R_T—h1F 5/(5) /@)
NANBEZE)
Mr. Xiong Hao (appointed on 2 September 2015) RS (RZZE—RF 4/(4) 2/(3)
NAZHEZT)
Ms. Cheng Yan (appointed on 13 October 2015 and BEZEZ(R=-_ZE—HF 2/(2) 0/(1)
resigned on 12 November 2015) +A+=BEZFETH
—E-—RF+—H+ZH
BHE)
Mr. Fu Jiwen (resigned on 2 September 2015) HEEXSE(RZE—RF 1/(1) 0/(1)
NA—HEE)
Ms. Zhou Baoying (resigned on 2 September 2015) FERLZt+(R_E—hF 1/(1) 1/(1)
HAZHEHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUINTES
Dr. Wong Tin Yau Kelvin (appointed on 23 October 2015) kB + (R ZE—RHF 3/(3) 1/(1)
+AZ+=REZT)
Mr. Tse Yung Hoi (appointed on 23 October 2015) HEEEE(RZE—RF 3/(3) 0/(1)
+AZ+=BEZE)
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung a8 s A 5/(5) 1/(4)
Mr. Zhu Chengwu (resigned on 23 October 2015) KERLEE(R-_E—RHF 2/(2) 0/(3)
+AZ=Z+=8%H1)
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund BRIZEASE A (KT —RF 2/(2) 0/@)

(resigned on 23 October 2015)

In place of physical meetings, the Board and Board committees also
circulate written resolutions for approval by the relevant members of
the Board and Board committees except for matters where a
substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest which
the Board has determined to be material in compliance with Code
Provision A.1.7.

The Board having considered the attendance records of the Directors
is satisfied that each Director spent sufficient time performing his
responsibilities.
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PRACTICES AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
Meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are made
available to Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are generally sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
informed of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. The
Board and each Director also have separate and independent access
to the management and company secretary whenever necessary.

The company secretary is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft and final
versions of minutes of Board meetings are normally sent to Directors
for their comments and records respectively, within a reasonable
time after the Board meeting is held.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or
a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Bye-laws also contain provisions
requiring Directors to abstain from voting and not to be counted in
the quorum at meetings for approving transactions in which such
Directors or any of their associates have a material interest.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Executive Committee and
Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. The Board committees are provided with
sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Mandates of all Board committees are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at
www.hrif.com.hk.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 August 2005.
The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy and
structure and on remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his/her associates will participate in his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions. The Remuneration Committee, with
delegated responsibility, is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing remuneration policy including the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management whereas the
Board as a whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of
non-executive Directors with recommendations from the
Remuneration Committee, if any.

During the Period, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held.
The attendance record of individual members is set out below.
Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the
period in which the individual was a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

FNEES
FTMEEERN _ETRF ) \A-+=ZHKL - &
MEEE 2T B EERERARAIBEHEEERS
@EEEZ TNTBER RRBRESSRERE
THEEeNAE BERTINIBE RERBT
JEi&ﬂﬁ%VZkf HRBEEERF
FRABBEALTB2EBEEAST ZHH - B 5
%%VMA&$ BRI LA R T HEH] RAK L1
BT FHZEoEESSRE  SFEHRT
?Mﬁ CBEERRTESRAREREE ZH
BEsE  MEBSLLEFHNEES 2ER (I
B)RAERRETSIERNTESTZHE -

Sy it

RABEA - HFWHEZBEEHRT—REFE - @5
KBz HHFEREHN TR - BRANBFRERE
AFNEZEeNENHEHREANZRSEHR
2

Attendance
Committee members ZEERE HE =R
Mr. Tse Yung Hoi (appointed on 23 October 2015) (Chairman) #HB&EE4E(R_ZE—RHF 1/(1)
+AZ+=BEZRE)(FE)
Dr. Wong Tin Yau Kelvin (appointed on 23 October 2015) EXhBELT(RZE—RHF 1/(1)
+TAZ+=HEZF)
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung Rk e 0/(1)
Mr. Zhu Chengwu (resigned on 23 October 2015) KEARLE(RZZ—HF 0/(0)
+AZ+=B8#1F)
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (resigned on 23 October 2015) BRIEIEGCA (R —ZE—RHF 0/(0)
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 1 May 1999. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's annual
reports and accounts, interim reports and results announcements
and to provide advice and comments to the Directors. The members
meet regularly with external auditors and the Company’s senior
management for the review and supervision of the Company’s
financial reporting and internal control procedures. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for monitoring the integrity of the
financial statements of the Company and the Company’s annual
reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgements contained therein. As required by
Code Provision C.3.7 of the CG Code, details of arrangements for
employees to raise concerns about improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control and other matters have been included in
the Company'’s policy since 1 April 2012.

During the Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
usual items and discuss with external auditors before submission to
the Board, review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement and review the adequacy and effectiveness of

EiEE
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the Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system = @ it B ik - ERIK 2 2 HEREEE N TE -
and risk management system and associated procedures. The  izeepypsi A = ERIZEHE 8 €5k 870 K8
attendance record of individual members is set out below. Figure in - 5y > s = e o -
brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in
which the individual was a member of the Audit Committee.
Attendance
Committee members ZEENE HE =
Dr. Wong Tin Yau Kelvin (appointed on 23 October 2015) (Chairman) & Xx#hiE+ (A -ZZE—HF 2/(2)
+A=+= é&)(ﬂ‘g/ﬁ)
Mr. Tse Yung Hoi (appointed on 23 October 2015) WEFLEERZZT—RF 2/(2)
TAZ+= El E)
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung G A 2/(2)
Mr. Zhu Chengwu (resigned on 23 October 2015) KERLE(R-_ZE—HF 0/(0)
TAZ+=H&F)
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (resigned on 23 October 2015) FRIZIEEE (R -ZE—HF 0/(0)
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In addition, the members of the Audit Committee also had meetings
with the management and relevant staff of the Company on several
occasions and also had meeting with the independent professional
accounting firm appointed by the Company relating to the internal
control review matters during the Period. Therefore, the Audit
Committee actively participated in the internal control review
matters including the selection of professional accounting firm and
provide opinion to improve and strengthen the internal control
system, where necessary.

The Company'’s annual results for the Period have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditors
during the Period.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 28 March 2012 and its name was changed to
“Nomination Committee” with effect from 28 December 2015.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for annually reviewing the
existing nomination policy and the Board is responsible for
performing the corporate governance function. During the Period,
the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the existing
policy. The attendance record of individual members is set out
below. Figure in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in
the period in which the individual was a member of the Nomination
Committee.

REZES
REMPEEARZEGRZZE—ZF=A=1+N
BApky - MEEBR=_E—RF+=-A=1+/\H
BEXRAE[EREES] -

RAZBEGAEEFRIABREBE MESE
@,@\,\Eﬂ'iiﬁ./maﬁﬁh"\ REREA - 'R E
BEgQRT-REH  WRARABE - BRI
%Zﬁ)ﬁﬂﬁ‘%&ﬁﬂ’% BRANBFRERER
RAZEBEREREEHAZESEHRE

ﬂ]]

Attendance
Committee members EZEEHE HE =
Dr. Wong Tin Yau Kelvin (appointed on 23 October 2015) (Chairman) mX#hiE+ (A ZZE—HF 1/(1)
+TAZ+=RERMT)(F/E)
Mr. Tse Yung Hoi (appointed on 23 October 2015) HEEEE(RZE—RF 1/(1)
+AZ+=BEZMT)
Mr. Yeung Siu Keung Gl A
Mr. Liu Xiaodong (appointed on 6 August 2015) BEFEREE(R=ZE—hF /(1)
NARNBEERT)
Mr. Jiang Rongjian (appointed on 6 August 2015 and resigned BRiEsE(RNZT—R1F 0/(0)
on 13 October 2015) NARBEZEER
—hE+TAT=A81T)
Ms. Cheng Yan (appointed on 13 October 2015 and resigned Bz (R-ZE—AF 1/(1)
on 12 November 2015) +A+=ZBEZTER
—hFE+—HA+=H
BHE)
Mr. Fu Jiwen (resigned on 2 September 2015) BEYEE(R-_ZE—RHF 0/(0)
HAZBHEE)
Mr. Zhu Chengwu (resigned on 23 October 2015) FERLTERZZE—RF 0/(0)
+AZ+ =881
Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (resigned on 23 October 2015) REELEE (R_E—RF 0/(0)

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

1. toreview the structure, size and composition (including but not
limited to the skills, knowledge and professional experience) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to implement the Company's
corporate strategy;

2. to review the Board diversity policy and its contents and
implementation, including the measurable objectives and the
progress on achieving such objectives, and report and/or make
recommendations to the Board,
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3. to consider the selection criteria and procedures of the
Directors and the senior management in accordance with the
recommendations of the Chairman and make
recommendations to the Board,

4. to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members in accordance with the recommendations of the
Chairman and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

5. to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the recommendations of the
Chairman;

6. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of the Directors and succession planning of the
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the CEO, in
accordance with the recommendations of the Chairman; and

7. other matters authorised by the Board.

Executive Committee

The Board has also established an Operational Committee on 10
November 1995 and its name was changed to “"Executive
Committee” with effect from 28 December 2015, with specific
mandate which is responsible for making policy and discussing
issues relating to the Company’s day-to-day management and
business.

The roles and functions of the Executive Committee are as follows:

1. the rights to make investment decision granted to the Board
and delegated to the Committee;

2. to handle relevant matters that shall not be necessarily dealt
with through regular Board meetings or too late to be dealt
with through provisional Board meetings as considered by the
Chairman; and

3. to handle any other matters provisionally authorised by the
Board to the Committee.
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but shall not include the following:
1. approval of final and interim results of the Company;

2. declaration of interim dividends, recommendation of payment
of final dividends, declaration or recommendation of payment
of other distributions;

3. proposal to the shareholders of the Company to put the
Company into liquidation;

4. approval of very substantial disposal and/or very substantial
acquisition as defined under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules;

5. approval of connected transactions which require independent
shareholders’ approval at a general meeting as stipulated
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules;

6. any matters which require the exercise of rights at the general
meeting of the Company in accordance with the laws,
regulations, the Listing Rules and the memorandum of
association and Bye-laws; and

7. any other matters designated by the Board or required the
execution and approval of the Board from time to time.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, with the support of the Group’s finance department led
by the financial controller, is responsible for keeping proper
accounting records and the preparation of the financial statements
of the Company and the Group. In preparing the financial statements,
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have been adopted
and the financial statements comply with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Appropriate accounting policies have also been applied consistently.

The Board acknowledges their responsibility to prepare consolidated
financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the interim
and annual financial statements, and announcements to shareholders.

The reporting responsibilities of Directors and external auditors are
further set out in the independent auditor’s report in this annual
report.

For the Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
the adequacy of the resources and qualification of staffing of
accounting and financial reporting function and considered that
staffing is adequate and competent in their roles and responsibilities.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system
which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to
significant risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable assurance
from fraud and errors and to ensure compliance of applicable law
and regulations is essential for effective and efficient operations of a
company.

Furthermore, the internal control system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or 10ss.

The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation
of duties, well-defined policies and procedures, close monitoring and
is reviewed and enhanced by the management at regular intervals.

The Board is of the view that the Group has operated an effective
internal control system during the Period. On the other hand, the
Board is of the view that since China Huarong became the Group's
ultimate controlling shareholder in the Period, the Group’s capital
structure has changed, and its business keeps expending and
developing. Such capital structure change and business
development bring out new challenge to the Group's internal control
system. The Group is currently researching and improving the
existing internal control system to ensure its continuous
effectiveness. Relevant work is expected to be completed in the
financial year 2016.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transaction. Having made specific
enquiry with all Directors, the Board has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
Period.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

For the Period, fees paid and payable to the external auditors of the
Company for audit service and for other non-audit services were
HK$1,400,000 and HK$1,480,000 respectively. The non-audit services
included a fee of HK$1,080,000 regarding a completion audit. The
Board and the Audit Committee had reviewed the fees of non-audit
services and considered that the provision of these non-audit
services did not affect the independence of the external auditors.
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VOTING BY POLL
Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of
shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by poll.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yiu Yi Ting (“Ms. Yiu") was engaged through an external service
provider. She has been the company secretary of the Company since
11 November 2011. The company secretary is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and ensuring
board procedures are followed. Ms. Yiu completed not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

The appointment and dismissal of the company secretary are subject
to the Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. Whilst the
company secretary reports to the CEO on the Group’s company
secretarial and corporate governance matters, all members of the
Board have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure
and comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance
and activities. These include interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The Group
encourages its shareholders to attend annual general meeting to
ensure a high level of accountability and be kept informed of the
Group's strategy and goals. The Chairman and the chairman of all
the committees, or in their absence, other members of the
respective committees, are available to answer any questions from
the shareholders.
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Shareholders can convene a special general meeting by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of the
Company as at the date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. The requisitionists must submit
their requisition in writing in which it should state the objects of the
meeting and duly signed by the requisitionists, mailed and deposited
at Rooms 1908-10, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
for attention of the company secretary of the Company; and may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more requisitionists. Such requisition will be verified with the
Company’s share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the company secretary will ask the
Board to convene a special general meeting by serving sufficient
notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all registered
shareholders, provided that the requisitionists have deposited a sum
of money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses
involved in convening a special general meeting. On the contrary, if
the requisition has been verified as not in order, the requisitionists
will be advised of this outcome and accordingly, a special general
meeting will not be convened as requested. Such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves
may do so in accordance with the provisions of section 74(3) of the
Ccompanies Act 1981 of Bermuda. A meeting convened under this
section by the requisitionists shall be convened in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings are to be convened
by Directors in accordance to the Bye-laws and the Listing Rules. Any
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason of the
failure of the Directors duly to convene a meeting shall be repaid to
the requisitionists by the Company.
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Proposals at shareholders’ meetings can be put forward by the
members of the Company holding at the date of the submission of
the proposals not less than one-tenth (10%) of such of the paid-up
capital of the company as at the date of the submission carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the company. The submission
of the proposals must be made within three (3) business days after a
notice of the shareholders’ meeting have been served to all
registered shareholders by the Board. The proposals must be written
and must state the objects of the proposals, and must be signed by
the proposers, and mailed and deposited at Rooms 1908-10, The
Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for attention of the
company secretary of the Company; and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more proposers. The
proposals will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the proposals are proper and in order, the
company secretary will ask the Board to update the resolutions by
serving sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all registered shareholders, provided that the
proposers have deposited a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses involved in publishing supplementary
circular and updating related resolutions. On the contrary, if the
requisition has been verified as not in order, the proposer will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, no resolution will be
updated as requested.

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the head office and
principal place of business of the Company as set out in the
Corporation Information section of this annual report for the
attention of company secretary.

Details of the shareholders' rights and communication policy are also
available on the Company’s website at www.hrif.com.hk.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company maintains a website at www.hrif.com.hk where
information and updates on the Company’s business developments
and operations, list of directors, and their role and function,
constitutional documents, terms of reference of the Board
committees, procedures for nomination of directors for election,
shareholders’ rights and communication policy, corporate
governance practices, announcements, circulars and reports
released to the Stock Exchange and other information are posted.
Information on the Company's website will be updated from time to
time.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Period.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1
to the consolidated financial statements. During the Period and up to
the date of this report, the Group expanded its businesses and
operations by fully utilising its licenses issued under the SFO (type 1,
2,4, 6 and 9 licences). Please refer to the Management Discussion
and Analysis section of this annual report for the discussions on
business review and prospects of the Company which form part of
the Report of the Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the Period and the financial position of the
Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 48 to 186.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Period (FY2014: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 187 to 188. The
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Period are set out in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

During the Period, 1,702,435,038 new shares were issued and
allotted. Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Period are set out in notes 33 and 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Group has not purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the Period.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group are set out in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 52
and 53, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2015, the Company has no reserves available for
distribution (30 April 2015: Nil), in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Period, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to
the Group's five largest customers represented 48.8% of the Group'’s
total turnover and turnover to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 19.7%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors, owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any
beneficial interest in the Group’s largest customers.

The Group is engaged in the provision of financial services. In the
opinion of the Directors, it is of no value to disclose details of the
Group's suppliers.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s business operations are highly dependent on the
economic and market environment in China and Hong Kong. The
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group include but not
limited to (i) market risk that may arise when there is fluctuation of
the equity price of companies invested by the Group; (i) credit risk
that may arise from possible default of the Group’s business
counterparties, including borrowers, trading counter counterparties
and note issuers; and (i) legal and compliance risk that may arise
when the Group is not able to comply with changes in laws,
regulations and rules of regulatory authorities that are applicable to
it and its business on a timely manner due to the Group’s rapid
expansion and development of its business.

The Group assesses, monitors and manages the market and credit
risks through the risk management department which is independent
from the business department, and relevant assessment result is
reported on time to relevant business teams of the Group. After
receiving the assessment and report, relevant business teams will
propose market and credit risk mitigation plans and submit such
plans to the management, after obtaining clearance from legal and
compliance department and risk management department, for
discussion and approval. While relevant business teams are in
charge of implementing risk mitigation plans, the risk management
department cooperates closely with business teams and make
valuable recommendations on risk management.
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The Group's legal and compliance department keeps track of the
development of applicable laws, regulations and rules, and establish,
improve and implement compliance policies for the Group as well as
provides compliance advice for the management of the Group and
relevant business teams. The Group has also engaged external
counsels to provide advice regarding development of laws,
regulations and rules applicable to the Group and its business.

In addition, the Group is currently researching and improving the
existing internal control system to ensure its continuous
effectiveness and better mitigate the risks faced by the Group.
Relevant work is expected to be completed in the financial year of
2016.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Board and the management of the Company is committed to
better protect the environment by encouraging its employees to
reduce consumption of electricity and paper, reduce waste, and use
environmental friendly products whenever possible. The Group is
currently researching on establishing an internal environmental
protection policy.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s legal and compliance department establishes and
implements compliance policies for the Group as well as provides
compliance advice for the management of the Group and relevant
business teams. Steps have been taken to ensure that each potential
business transaction engaged by relevant business teams is in
compliance with laws, regulations and rules, including but not limited
to the SFO, the Listing Rules, anti-money laundering laws, and the
Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act. The Group has also engaged
external counsels to provide advices regarding development of laws,
regulations and rules applicable to the Group and its business.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group recognises the unique position and value of its
employees. Apart from market competitive remuneration, the Group
also provides positive working environment and organises leisure
activities such as birthday parties and football competitions on a
regular basis to build up strong connection with the employees.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to provide excellent services to our
customers with a view to maintaining steady business and asset
growth as well as long term profitability.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the Period and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Liu Xiaodong (appointed as Director on 6 August 2015
and appointed as Chairman on 14 March 2016)

Mr. Jiang Rongjian (appointed on 6 August 2015)

Mr. Xiong Hao (appointed on 2 September 2015)

Ms. Cheng Yan (appointed on 13 October 2015
and resigned on 12 November 2015)

Mr. Fu Jiwen (resigned on 2 September 2015)

Ms. Zhou Baoying (resigned on 2 September 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin (appointed on 23 October 2015)
Mr. Tse Yung Hoi (appointed on 23 October 2015)

Mr. Yeung Siu Keung

Mr. Zhu Chengwu (resigned on 23 October 2015)

Mr. Chen Wai Chung Edmund (resigned on 23 October 2015)

All Directors including independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for a specific term and all Directors are subject to
retirement at the first general meeting of the Company after their
appointment, and thereafter subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
Laws.

In accordance with Bye-law 86(2B) of the Bye-laws, Dr. Wong Tin Yau
Kelvin and Mr. Tse Yung Hoi shall retire from office and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, at each AGM, one
third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation and shall be eligible for reelection. Accordingly, Mr. Liu
Xiaodong and Mr. Yeung Siu Keung shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions, disclosed in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules, required to be disclosed in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure requirement as
applicable to the following continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary, had
been made by the Company in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

() During the Period, the Group earned underwriting income of
approximately HK$3,327,000 from the intermediate holding
company, CHIH in respect of the underwriting of bonds issued
by its subsidiaries.

(i) During the Period, the Group earned underwriting income of

approximately HK$22,798,000 from China Huarong in respect

of the listing and initial public offering of its shares.

The Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions made during
the period ended 31 December 2015 and confirmed that these
transactions were entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or better;

(3) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as
a whole; and

(4) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps as disclosed in
previous announcements.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group on page 38 of the annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor
and have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by
the Company in the ordinary course of its business, and in
accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as whole.

Regarding the related party transactions as set out in note 41(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, the loan from the intermediate
holding company and the corresponding interest are connected
party transactions exempted from announcement, reporting and
independent shareholder’s approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for an initial term of one year which is automatically
renewable for successive terms of one year upon the expiry of the
said term. All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and in accordance with the Bye-laws.

There is no service contract with the Group, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than normal statutory compensation), in
respect of any director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Period.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors nor chief executives
of the Company and their respective associates has any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the period were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities (the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying RZAQFRHORBEBEARD 2 ERER A

Shares of the Company

Approximate

Capacity/ percentage of
Nature of Long position/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Note interest short position Shares held Shares
FriFiR & 2ERITRG
BREER KR Bt =E 55 fEnttE HE/ KB #A BRES T
Camellia Pacific Investment Holding ! Beneficial owner Long position  1,702,435,038 51.93%
Limited (“Camellia”) EmliB A ey
China Huarong Asset Management 1 Interests in Long position 1,702,435,038 51.93%
Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong") controlled corporation ooy
TREREEEERNHBR AR SRR AR
(TR EIZER )
China Huarong International Holdings 1 Interests in Long position 1,702,435,038 51.93%
Limited ("CHIH") controlled corporation ey
PR EF B R AR A A SR NG 2
(T B30 2 o R AR 22 A )
Able China Investments Limited 2 Beneficial owner Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
(“Able China”) EmAA LSy
FERREBR AR ([FEaE])
Wong Pui Hoi 2 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
HiZE controlled corporation ey
ER L NG 2
Huang Qiongzi 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
BB controlled corporation ey
ER NG 2
Lu Zhigiang 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
EE controlled corporation ey
NG 2
Tonghai Holdings Limited* 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
BEERBR AT controlled corporation 7R
ES VNG 2
Oceanwide Group Limited* 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%

EEEARAR

*  For identification purpose

controlled corporation
e VNG 5

a0}

* EHRES
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Approximate

Capacity/ percentage of
Nature of Long position/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Note interest short position Shares held Shares
FriFiR 4 2RITRG
BREER KR Bt &E 55 fEnttE HaE KB #®A BREs T
China Oceanwide Holdings Group 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
Limited* controlled corporation ey
PEDZ B EEBR AR Sy N FIRESS
Oceanwide Holdings Stock Company 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
Limited* controlled corporation e
R BIRA R ek | NGIE 23
China Oceanwide Group Limited 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
Rz EEARAT controlled corporation )
R NG 2
Oceanwide Holdings International 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
co., Ltd controlled corporation )
SR BB R AR SR NG 2
China Oceanwide Holdings Limited 3 Interests in Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
ST IR AR A &) controlled corporation e
SR NG 2
China Oceanwide International 3 Beneficial owner Long position 270,000,000 8.24%
Capital Investments Management EEBEAA ads
Limited
FIZEREREREERBR AR
Cui Zhanhui Beneficial owner Long position 345,624,396 10.54%
EhE EnEBA e
Tong Liang 4 Interests in Long position/ 141,081,000/ 4.30%
®r= controlled corporation Short position
R Eak | NCIE 2 e ke 141,081,000 4.30%
Tong Liang Beneficial owner Long position/ 60,120,000/ 1.83%
&5 BERBEBA Short position
SV v 15,247,000 0.47%
Chu Yuet wah 5 Interests in Long position 200,340,050 6.11%
Zs Qi controlled corporation e

b2 I NCIL: 3o
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Approximate

Capacity/ percentage of
Nature of Long position/ Number of the issued
Name of Shareholder Note interest short position Shares held Shares
PR RR 4 2RITRG
RREE MR B &E 55 fEnttE #e KA #®A BHAESH
Ample Cheer Limited 5 Interests in Long position 200,340,000 6.11%
controlled corporation Jads
e NG 5
Best Forth Limited 5 Interests in Long position 200,340,000 6.11%
controlled corporation ey
SR HI D RH S
Kingston Finance Limited 5 Interests in Long position 200,340,000 6.11%
S BEERAA controlled corporation Fa
ek | VNGIE 23
Notes: B 5 -

1,702,435,038 Shares were beneficially owned by Camellia which is
wholly owned by CHIH. CHIH was in turn owned as to 11.90% by
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & Management Co., Ltd. and 88.10% by
Huarong Real Estate Co., Ltd. both of which were wholly owned by
China Huarong. Therefore, China Huarong and CHIH were deemed or
taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Camellia
by virtue of the SFO.

Able China was interested in 270,000,000 Shares. Able China was
wholly owned by Mr. Wong Pui Hoi, therefore, Mr. Wong Pui Hoi was
deemed to have interests in the Shares owned by Able China by virtue
of the SFO.

270,000,000 Shares were beneficially owned by China Oceanwide
International Capital Investments Management Limited which was
wholly owned by China Oceanwide Holdings Limited. China Oceanwide
Holdings Limited was owned as to 59.65% by Oceanwide Holdings
International Co., Ltd. which was wholly owned by China Oceanwide
Group Limited. China Oceanwide Group Limited was in turn wholly
owned by Oceanwide Holdings Stock Company Limited.

Oceanwide Holdings Stock Company Limited was owned as to 73.67%
by China Oceanwide Holdings Group Limited and 2.72% by Oceanwide
Energy Holdings Stock Company Limited* (Z /& 8£/R1Z=AA% D A IR 2 7).
Oceanwide Energy Holdings Stock Company Limited was owned as to
80% by China Oceanwide Holdings Group Limited and 20% by
Oceanwide Group Limited.

China Oceanwide Holdings Group Limited was owned as to 97.43% by
Oceanwide Group Limited and 2.57% by Tonghai Holdings Limited.
Oceanwide Group Limited was in turn wholly owned by Tonghai
Holdings Limited.

(1) 1,702,435,038 B f& 17 A Camellia B = # A © Mz
AT RERBEBRIEREEES - PEER
BT D B ERMBR RIS EE B ERET AR
LEBRBEEXEERECRARNEEININ%ER K
88.10% 125 - ZMM AR HEPHAERLEH
B o At RIBES REEED] - PEZER KT
B 2 0 B PR 45 AR AR A S E VB Camellia B 2= 78
BREHROPHEEELS

(2) ¥ HE10 270,000,000 B % o B #E as - EERE

BIRBEERERA - B REES RIS K
Pl BB EEWR RN ER AR 2 D P BE
B -

(3) 270,000,000 BT ZHABEAIREEERSR
RARIERMESR  MZARABFZERERA
RIZEWA - PIZERBERA R HZEEREE
BRATHEARS.5%EE  AERRZEESR
RARZEEHES - PCEEBRARRZGER
BRNDERARZEHES ©

BRI B R A R Bl f P B B i E
BRARIRZEBERERBEOAERARKS
73.67% W am 2 2.72% ez © 2/ FREIRIZIRAR DB
RARIDBIAFPEZSERERFRAR LS
EEBR A R)EA 80% kK 20% xS o

HEDZEEREEERARADHRZEEEER
NE SRR R QR B 97.43%H 8 &
2.57% ks - ZBEEERAF HBEERAR
RAZEYER -
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Tonghai Holdings Limited, Oceanwide Group Limited, China Oceanwide
Holdings Group Limited, Oceanwide Holdings Stock Company Limited,
China Oceanwide Group Limited, Oceanwide Holdings International
Co., Ltd and China Oceanwide Holdings Limited were therefore
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned
by China Oceanwide International Capital Investments Management
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Further, Tonghai Holdings Limited was owned as to 88.57% by Lu
Zhigiang whose spouse was Huang Qiongzi. Therefore, Lu Zhigiang and
Huang Qiongzi were also deemed or taken to be interested in all the
Shares beneficially owned by China Oceanwide International Capital
Investments Management Limited by virtue of the SFO.

(4)  Super Century Investments Limited was interested in 141,081,000
Shares. Super Century Investments Limited was wholly owned by Mr.
Tong Liang. Therefore, Mr. Tong Liang was deemed to have interests in
the Shares owned by Super Century Investments Limited.

(5) 200,340,000 Shares were interested by Kingston Finance Limited which
was in turn wholly owned by Ample Cheer Limited. Ample Cheer
Limited was owned as to 80% by Best Forth Limited which was in turn
wholly owned by Chu Yuet Wah. Chu Yuet Wah was therefore deemed
or taken to be interested in all the Shares interested by Kingston
Finance Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Another 50 Shares were beneficially owned by Kingston Securities
Limited which was wholly owned by Galaxy Sky Investments Limited.
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited was in turn wholly owned by Kingston
Capital Asia Limited which was wholly owned by Kingston Financial
Group Limited. Kingston Financial Group Limited was owned as to
49.19% by Active Dynamic Limited which was wholly owned by Chu
Yuet Wah. Chu Yuet Wah was therefore deemed or taken to be also
interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Kingston Securities
Limited by virtue of the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 15 to 33 of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant events after the end of the reporting period
of the Group are set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

44 Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

Hie - REBEFHRAEEN - BEERERQ
A REKREARAR - PEZESEREEAR
AR BEERBRNBRAR  FZEEERA
A ZEEREEERARRPIZERAER DA
PR RREFERFZERERREEERRA
AEGDEE 2B P AR -

SN - B A IR A R i E 558 H 88.57%
o EXBZEBAREE - At REES
EAEES - EE RHEELZOHRE HHEFR
PZEREARAERBERAREREE 22
Befnrh e A AR

@)  ETEEARRR 141,081,000 K5+ #EE
R ERREERATHRRSEELEHE -
At - REEEWR BN ETREER AR
B RIAFIEAERS -

(5) & FIL B 4A R A A% A 200,340,000 A% % 19 4
0 M % 2 7] Bl 8 Ample Cheer Limited 2 & #
A - Ample Cheer Limited f Best Forth Limited #
B80% R F BERTAEREHSG AL 1B
BEHFRBEED - TAEHERANEIERST)
EUBERAB 22RO ERTHEEER

BIHINORBN B FILESBRATERES -
i1 5% 2 7 Bl i Galaxy Sky Investments Limited &
& A& - Galaxy Sky Investments Limited £
Kingston Capital Asia Limited 2 & # % © & & |
SHNELHEEBRARZERSE - FLER
% @ A R 2 7 # Active Dynamic Limited # &
49.19% 5 - BERF RAELEHER - Bt - 1B
BREFLBEGRD - ZTRAETERANEERE
FLBEHERATNERMA 2 2D P A E

m °
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in accordance with the
requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial
reporting process and internal control systems, and compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations. The Audit Committee currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr.
Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin (chairman), Mr. Tse Yung Hoi and Mr. Yeung Siu
Keung. The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the Period.

AUDITOR

During the year, Messrs Zenith CPA Limited who acted as auditor of
the Company for the years ended 30 April 2013, 30 April 2014 and 30
April 2015, resigned and Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was
appointed as auditor of the Company. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the Period were audited by Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution will be submitted to the annual
general meeting to re-appoint the auditor, Messrs Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu.

On behalf of the Board

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited
Liu Xiaodong

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 14 March 2016

EItEEE
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Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

HUARONG INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS SIMSEN INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION
LIMITED)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
48 to 186, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the period from 1 May
2015 to 31 December 2015, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the period
from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

OTHER MATTER

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows and the relevant explanatory notes were prepared based on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
April 2015, which were audited by another auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those statements on 29 July 2015. During the
course of preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015, the directors of the
Company have determined that the prior years' financial statements
of the Group require restatements. Accordingly the comparative
figures have been restated as described in Note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 March 2016
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

idated Statement of Profit or LOSS

1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014t0
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
“E2-1F —T-mE
ER—-RE hA—-HZE
—E-1%§ 1%
+=B=+-H MmA=+H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
sE TR THET
(Restated)
(l=5)
Continuing operations BELEEY
Revenue WA 8 168,003 46,368
Other income and gains or losses, net HipA R E BB FE 9 39,208 5,073
Brokerage and commission expenses BRRAERY (20,872) (8,725)
Administrative and other operating expenses THEAMLCEHT (74,738) (71,567)
Gain (loss) on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEERE 2 W (FE)
investments 96,575 (14,754)
Impairment on available-for-sale investments A HERERE = (16,377)
Reversal of (provision for) impairment of loansand & 3% R ek BR 20 (B Aol (48 )
accounts receivable, net FE 24 1,392 (684)
Finance costs HEER 11 (33,663) (9,876)
Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations 5 E4& 2% 2 BRI EF (B12) 10 175,905 (70,542)
Income tax (expense) credit FER (A E 14 (20,690) 7
Profit (loss) for the period/year from continuing BECLER B/ FEEH
operations (E18) 155,215 (70,535)
Discontinued operations BRIEREER
(Loss) profit for the period/year from discontinued B ARG £ 7% 7 HIRS /£ 8
operations (B8)&EH 15 (15,818) 3,907
Profit (loss) for the period/year B/ E R F (B18) 139,397 (66,628)
Profit (loss) for the period/year attributable to: R/ ERRM (B18) -
Owners of the Company AREHEAA
— from continuing operations —RERBECEER 155,215 (70,535)
— from discontinued operations — REBRIHEEET (15,818) 3,907
139,397 (66,628)
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to owners KARHEE ANELFTR
of the Company BAI(E1E) 17
From continuing and discontinued operations REFBELERERELEER
— Basic — &R HK5.74 centsi#{l  HK(4.57) cents &l
— Diluted —&F HK5.67 centsi&fl  HK(4.57) cents &l
From continuing operations REFELEEY
— Basic — &R HK6.39 centsi&fll  HK(4.84) cents il
— Diluted — % HK6.31 centsi#fll  HK(4.84) cents 1Ll
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

E—RFRA—HEZZT

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014 to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—B-EF —T-F
AA—HZE FA—H=ZE
—E-fF —T—hF
+=-BA=+-8H mMA=+H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(i3 Fix FET
(Restated)
(ke E75)
Profit (loss) for the period/year HIR,FEE T (E518) 139,397 (66,628)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Ht2mEUkE (Bx)
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently — ER@rJgEEF DA EREY
to profit or 10ss: IBH :
Fair value gain (loss) on available-for-sale EH HEREZAABER
investments = (E8) 22 75,534 (7,874)
Reclassification upon impairment of A ERERERER
available-for-sale investments \*E 22 - 16,377
Reclassification adjustments relating to B/ FEERIDEMHE
disposal of available-for-sale investments EREZEND AR
during the period/year 22 (96,859) 14,721
Reclassification adjustments relating to B,/ FEEEDRED IR
distribution of Distributed Group during SEEHDEAR
the period/year 1,511 -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINERZEREZSE
foreign operations
Exchange differences arising during Wi/ FEEL 2 EN =5
the period/year (1,621) (2,937)
Reclassification adjustments relating to i,/ FEABYRED R
distribution of Distributed Group during SEZEHNDEAR
the period/year 10,604 -
Other comprehensive (expense) income Hﬂ?ﬁ/ﬁfﬁ 2 (FZ)
for the period/year, net of tax = (FABRFIE) (10,831) 20,287
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2R,/ FE2EmRE (FX)
for the period/year B 128,566 (46,341)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE(REARS,/FE 2R (A )
for the period/year attributable to: Gk
Owners of the Company V/NETEZ Z=DN
— from continuing operations — REFELEER 133,890 (47,311)
— from discontinued operations — REERIEREER (5,324) 970
128,566 (46,341)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

are MR

As at 31 December 2015 R=—E—HF+=-_A=+—H

31.12.2015 30.4.2015 1.5.2014
—E-RF —T—AF —MmF
+=A=+-H MmA=+H HA—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bzt T FEL TEL
(Restated) (Restated)
Gl (&5)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment R =Y E 18 3,419 751 5473
Goodwill S - - 22279
Other long term assets HERBPEE 19 6,653 6,141 4,220
Intangible assets B EE 20 4,778 2,350 2,350
Financial assets at fair value through RO EEFAEREEL
profit or loss PREE 21 313,418 - -
Investments in senior notes RELEEZRE = - 80,000
Available-for-sale investments AEEEZRE 2 = 96,453 28,841
Finance leases receivable EARERE - - 60,916
Investment in an associate R—REBERR2IRE 23 190 - -
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 328,458 105,695 204,079
Current assets TEBEE
Finance leases receivable ElRERE - - 7,716
Loans and accounts receivable B3 R 24 912,032 120,201 630,727
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT 208 - T4 R E M REN
BRI 25 15,920 13,190 374,304
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEMABREZ
profit or loss SREE 21 438,346 1,451 1,678
Tax recoverable A ERHIE 10 - 192
Restricted bank balances RIBHIRITH 5 26 623,241 280,004 138,057
Pledged bank deposits BHEPETER 27 10,353 10,725 10,591
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBEER 27 3,040,911 68,337 381,509
5,040,813 493,908 1,544,774
Assets of Distributed Group classified DEABEDRTHEEAZ
as held for distribution to owners BHREREE 15 - 1,172,440 -
Total current assets MEEERE 5,040,813 1,666,348 1,544,774
Current liabilities ,?.EEJEF
Accounts payable FEITER 28 602,269 294,938 161,811
Other payables and accruals ﬁwﬁﬁ ERKETER 29 65,945 6,472 27,553
Finance leases payable Fgﬁﬂé% g - - 83
Amount due to an associate EN—BEARTIE 23 190 - -
Interest-bearing borrowings *# SEE 30 - 53,913 -
Tax payable JERTiR 16,244 1 2,694
Convertible notes issued BRTAHRRER 31 26,393 - -
711,041 355,324 192,141
Liabilities of Distributed Group classified SEARBEIRTHEEALZ
as held for distribution to owners BHOREBEEE 15 - 134,170 -
Total current liabilities BB GRS 711,041 489,494 192,141
Net current assets RBEEFE 4,329,772 1,176,854 1,352,633
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERTHESE 4,658,230 1,282,549 1,556,712
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Re ISR

As at 31 December 2015 R=ZE—HF+_-_A=+—H

31.12.2015 30.4.2015 1.5.2014
—E-IF —E-AHF T—mF
+ZA=+-H MmA=+H hAR—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt & TR T T
(Restated) (Restated)
¢=vl)) (lmE5)
Non-current liabilities EREBRE
Convertible notes issued BRTREER 31 - 24,480 265,923
Other payables and accruals HinENER e ER 29 1,424 1,898 1,069
Deferred tax liabilities ERERIEAR 32 13,515 - -
Interest-bearing borrowings SEEE 30 3,875,250 - -
Financial liabilities at fair value through BOAEEFAEREERL
profit or loss TRAE 32,886 - -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEERE 3,923,075 26,378 266,992
Net assets BERE 735,155 1,256,171 1,289,720
Equity Bi
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR A)HEA AfE(EIER
Share capital BB 33 3,278 1,576 906
Equity component of convertible notes "Hﬁ BREEERLS 31 36,780 36,780 447 490
Share premium and reserves RIVEERERE 695,097 1,226,798 841,324
735,155 1,265,154 1,289,720
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive  REME2EREEAEEES
income directly related to Distributed Group B ARES R THEBAZLE
classified as held for distribution to owners AREERE 2R 15 = (8983) -
Total equity ] 735,155 1,256,171 1,289,720
The consolidated financial statements on pages 48 to 186 were F48E 186 B 2R a M BHEREN T —"F =
approved by the Board of Directors on 14 March 2016 and are signed A +TINBLESSMAETHLN T EERAES

on its behalf by:

Liu Xiaodong

=T
Director

EE

Xiong Hao
RE %
Director
EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEEmEER

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A —Z—HAF A A—HBE T —RAF+_A=+—H L5

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR
Available-
for-sale Retained
Share investment Currency  Convertible profits
Issued premium  Contributed  revaluation translation notes equity (accumulated Total
capital account surplus® reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
THEZ TERRE REEA
BRRE  ROBER HARRY REEGHE NERERE ExfE  (RiER) BREE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEL TET Fh TET FhEL FET FEL Fh
At 1 May 2014 RZZ-NERA—H 906 1,057,579 274,160 (49,595) (6,046) 16,288 32967 1,326,259
Prior year adjustment (see note 6(¢)) BEEERZ(RNEEE) - 127,946 - 46,185 - 431,202 (641,872) (36,539)
At 1 May 2014 (restated) Z-MER[—A(BEF) 906 1,185,525 274,160 (3,410) (6,046) 447,490 (608,905) 1,289,720
Loss for the year EJ‘ Eﬁfﬁ - - - - - - (66,628) (66,628)
Other comprehensive income (expense) — EEE M2 E N (FIx)
for the year
Fair valug loss on available-for-sale RNEREZAABEER
investment - - - (7,874) - - - (7.874)
Reclassification upon impairment of RAEHERERER
available-for-sale investments kb - - - 16,377 - - - 16,377
Reclassification adjustments relating to BRERLETHLE
disposal of available-for-sale REZEFHEHE
investments during the year - - - 14,721 - - - 14,721
Exchange differences arising FEELZERZER
during the year - - - - (2937 - - (2.937)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FE2ENE (HR)EE
for the year - - - 23224 (2,937) - (66,628) (46,341)
ISSue of shares upon conversion of HRTRRERBRTRD
convertible notes (note 33(a) (M3£33(a) 670 659,183 - - - 410,710) - 249,143
Special dividend paid (note 16) BERIRE (M3 16) - - (236,351) - - - - (236,351)
At 30 April 2015 (restated) RZZ-RAEMA=TR(ES3) 1,576 1,844,708 37,809 19,814 (8,983) 36,780 (675,533) 1,256,171
Profit for the period BEEA - - - - - - 139,397 139,397
Other comprehensive income (expense)  ERRIE B 2 U (B%)
for the period
Fair value gain on available-for-sale MRNERE AR EENRE
investments - - - 75,534 - - - 75,534
Reclassification adjustments relating to ﬁfeﬁﬁﬂfﬁﬁ’i—ﬂﬁ\ﬁ%
disposal of available-for-sale REZEFNRHE
investments during the period - - - (96,859) - - - (96,859)
Reclassification adjustments relating to RSN EEEZ
distribution of Distributed Group Exipptld = = = 1,511 = - - 1,511
Exchange differences on translation of REBNEHIERER
foreign operations
Exchange differences arising during HREsERER
the period - - - = (1,621) = = (1,621)
Reclassification adjustments relating to BEEESREH LY
distribution of Distributed Group Zé%ﬁ”*ﬁuﬂ%
during the period - - - - 10,604 - - 10,604
Total comprehensive income (expense) HRrEkE (R 88
for the period - - - (19,814) 8,983 - 139,397 128,566
Shares premium reduction? BT EHIR Y - (1,386591) 1,311,647 = = = 74,944 -
Shares issuied (note 33(b)) BRI (15 33(0) 1,702 466,467 - - - - - 468,169
Distribution in specie of shares in a ENHE-HHEL TZ
subsidiary (notes 15 and 16) Rt (15 R 16) - - (1,209,841) - - - 92,090 (1,117,751)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+t-A=+-8 3,278 924,584 139,615 - - 36,780 (369,102) 735,155
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Following the passing of the special resolution of shareholders on 24
July 2015, the share premium account was reduced pursuant to
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the bye-law of the Company. The
share premium account was first applied to offset the entire amount of
accumulated losses of the Company and the remaining balance was
credited to the contributed surplus account of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the Company’s contributed
surplus is distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

idated Statement of Changes in Equity

—HFREA-HE-ZE-AF+-A=+—HI-HH

B

(i) WZE-—RFEA T RBBRRERIRESR
% ERBEARE-NN\-FREVERAREZ
R AEAARIANRBR R B AR - B tn it B AR #18F FA LA
BHARR2RAFEER - MBREFAARRF
Z AR -

(ii) *E}FE%L A% RARARZHABBANRET
ERTDIR TR
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014 to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-I1F —T—mF
ERA—HZE THA—H=E
—E-EHF —T—HF
+=—HA=+-—H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BsE FExT FH&T
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Cash flows from operating activities K& IE>RELHE
Profit (loss) before tax B A A (E1E)
— From continuing operations — REEHEREER 175,905 (70,542)
— From discontinued operations — REERIEEEER 15 (4,409) 20,195
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs BMEEM 35,348 14,412
Interest income FE A (1,136) (2,325)
Net fair value gain on financial assets BAREEFABRE Y
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEZAAEE
WA (54,719) -
(Gain) loss on disposal of available-for- HEHDERE Y
sale investments (Yezs) E518 (95,064) 14,754
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BARBETAERE
at fair value through profit or loss Zemasr
~RaEEKE (34,894) -
Depreciation e 1,438 3,780
Provision (write-back of provision) REIRTS & #E
for long service payments, net (B faEm) 558 253 ?3)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment [EEE 2 BE 79 207
Provision for impairment of finance BhE S EGRIA
leases receivable and loans and LA R B 51 K FEUR BR 3R
accounts receivable, net REREFE 8,426 85,005
Provision for impairment upon Al ERE R ERE
available-for-sale investments - 16,377
(Write-back of) provision for 1818 (B D) BB
reinstatement (388) 625
Bad debts written off AR = 287
Loss on reclassification of foreign PAE 7 IR & B G HNE
currency translation reserve from B RS E
equity to profit or loss in relation to HEZEERCEE
Distributed Group 15 10,604 -
41,443 82,772
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014 to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
. —T—mF
EFHA—HZ AA—B=Z=
—B-HF  -THfF
+=BA=+—H MA=+H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FE&T FHEIT
(Restated)
(#e&E7)
Decrease (increase) in finance leases JE I e & R &R A (3E0)
receivable 21,559 (85,597)
Increase in loans and accounts receivable E%K&E@HSZEE%M hn (824,417) (439,398)
(Increase) decrease in prepayments, TERIE ~ Bl & M HEA
deposits and other receivables i3 HﬁzﬁE R ($80) ek (3,024) 352,158
(Increase) decrease in financial assets DEABIEEEZeMEE
classified as held for trading (1Z ) w4 (422,092) 227
Increase in restricted bank balances ZRRHISRITAE BRIB N (329,652) (155,680)
Increase in accounts payable JAE A5 BR FR A% 1 290,210 150,443
Increase in other payables and accruals — H b fER R N EEHE
il 37,510 5,793
Decrease in amount due from former JE UL AT 2 B R FRIE R >
group company 9,560 -
Cash used in operations KEEGARS (1,178,903) (89,282)
Tax paid [=ANERE] (2,349) (9,785)
Net cash used in operating activities LEEE AT 2 IS /F 5 (1,181,252) (99,067)
Cash flows from investing activities KREZFZEZ2RERE
Interest received B ULH 8 1,136 2,325
Proceeds from redemption of senior notes && B8 % =% 7 FriS 5718 - 88,658
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HERHEHEKRE 2~
sale investments FriSskIE 68,929 41,435
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BEMRE
property, plant and equipment T B 5 E 11 100
Purchases of available-for-sale EEAH Hj/%?xﬁ
investments (10,903) (118,536)
Purchase of convertible bonds BEIEEAEAABETA
designated as at fair value through Bk TRRES
profit or loss (275,000) -
Increase in other long term assets Hith R HIE B N (512) (1,921)
Purchases of items of property, BEYE BEKL
plant and equipment HiBIERE (2,938) (4,162)
Decrease (increase) in pledged BIRIRIRITIERK
bank deposits A (3B an) 372 (134)
Acquisition of subsidiaries L i B BB~ A (2,462) -
Net cash (used in) from investing activities % & &8) (FTR)EE Y
IH 4 %%E (221,367) 7,765

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH 55



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nﬁ/\ﬂ%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁiﬂi

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

—hAFRA—HE=E

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014 to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-FHE —
ERA—HZE THA—H=E
—E-ff —T—HF
+=—HA=+-—H MA=+H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE F#&xT FHT
(Restated)
(ge&E5)
Cash flows from financing activities ®BEEBH2HEHRE
Net cash outflow on distribution in specie  E# 9k 2 RE 7k H %58 15 (87,474) -
Issuance of share capital BITRAR 468,169 -
Contribution from Second-Tier Limited i? WEHESRBHR
Partner of Consolidated Investment ARANLE
Fund 67,780 -
Interest paid ERFLE (2,036) (4,490)
Capital element of finance lease BMEAEHES 2 EALD
rental payments = (11
New borrowings raised g 75,896 337,650
Loan from the intermediate holding PREERAR ZER
company 3,875,250 -
Repayment of interest bearing borrowings €& BEE (137,570) (204,874)
Dividend paid B E = (236,351)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities g & ;EEFTS (FTH)IRE
SEEA 4,260,015 (108,076)
Net increase (decrease)incashand BRERREZEER
cash equivalents BinCRD) FEE 2,857,396 (199,378)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ~ FAESF¥ 24 K&
of period/year REFMEIEER
— as stated in the consolidated — R ERE SRR
statement of financial position 68,337 381,509
— attributed to discontinued operations — — B 4% |F AR & 2T pE(Y 15 115,195 -
183,532 381,509
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [EXRE 852 %5
net (17) 1,401
cash and cash equivalents at RE ERz2EER
end of period/year HE&ZEER 3,040,911 183,532
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of operations of the Company is
situated at Rooms 1908-10, 19th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen'’s
Road Central, Hong Kong.

On 30 January 2015, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement (as supplemented by the supplemental agreements
dated 20 March 2015 and 20 May 2015) with China Huarong
International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Huarong (HK)
International Holdings Limited, an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of China Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd.)
("CHIH"), pursuant to which CHIH conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 1,702,435,038 new shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.275 per subscription share (the “Subscription”). The
aggregate nominal value of the subscription shares was
HK$1,702,435. The aggregate subscription price of the
subscription shares was HK$468,169,635. The completion of
the Subscription took place on 31 August 2015, and
1,702,435,038 subscription shares was duly allotted and issued
to Camellia Pacific Investment Holding Limited (“Camellia”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of CHIH. Immediately after the
completion of the Subscription, there were 3,278,107,918
shares of the Company in issue and the shareholding indirectly
held by CHIH, amounted to approximately 51.93% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue of the
Subscription shares. Accordingly, Camellia became the
immediate controlling shareholder of the Company and CHIH
became an intermediate holding company of the Group. China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong”), a
company established in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
and whose shares are listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, became the indirect controlling shareholder of
the Company. China Huarong is a PRC Government related
entity as it is controlled by Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

E—RFRA—HEZZT

1.

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

One of the conditions precedent for the completion of the
Subscription is that the Company shall undergo a group
reorganisation (the “Group Reorganisation”) and effect a
distribution in specie of shares in Modern Series Limited, a
then wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (“MSL") (the
“Distribution in Specie”).

On 23 March 2015, the Company announced details of the
Group Reorganisation and Distribution in Specie. As at 30 April
2015, the assets and liabilities related to MSL and its
subsidiaries (the “Distributed Group”) were classified as held
for distribution to owners and the results of the Distributed
Group were presented as discontinued operations in the
annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 30
April 2015. The principal activities of the companies which
comprise the Distributed Group are bullion and forex contracts
broking and trading, provision of finance lease, pawn loan,
medium and short term financing services and financial
consultation services. The Group Reorganisation and
Distribution in Specie were completed on 3 August 2015.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RARAIREEER (&)
(continued)
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. RRBZEBEBR/IREER - ARAE
Information and particulars of the Company’s principal 2B AR ZERKFFEAT :
subsidiaries are as follows:
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary
establishment share capital/ Percentage of
Name and operations registered capital equity attributable to the Company Principal activities
ERITRBEZ
e EBRRA
£ BUREEME EMEXEE ANAEEREE L TEEK
31 December 30 April
2015 2015
ZE-1F —Z-AHF
+=ZB=+-H MA=+H
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
HE iF3 =L i
Linewear Assets Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100% - - 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 1% REZK
RBELES/BF
Excel Vision Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision for sub-leasing
ERERERAF B 1,000/ 7T arrangement
REDELHE
Huarong International Asset Hong Kong HK$150,000 - 100% - 100%  Provision of asset
Management Limited 30 150,000 7T management services
EREREEERER AR REEEERRSE
(Formerly known as Simsen
Asset Management (HK)
Limited
AERITAEER (B%)
BRAR)
Huarong International Securities Hong Kong HK$1,340,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Securities and futures
Limited A% 1,340,000,000 78 7T contracts broking and
ERERESERAA trading and provision of
(Formerly known as United corporate finance
Simsen Securities Limited advisory services
AMBRTHEEFARAT) EHRBEANELER
HEENRERE SR
RERER R
Skymart Global Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% - - - Money lending
REEBREBBRAR 5 187 EBE
Brilliant Focus Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100% - - Investment holding
EREBRATF 30 187 REZR
Huarong International Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 - 100% - - Advisory and corporate
Capital Limited BE 20,000,000 ¢ financing
ERERREERAA BRREERE
Admire Idea Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - 100% - - Investment in convertible
ERAERDA Hong Kong 1003 7T bond
EBRELEE/BF ARRERRE
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1.

60

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

1. AFRRKEEER(H)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary
establishment share capital/ Percentage of
Name and operations registered capital equity attributable to the Company Principal activities
BRITRARZ
EmEL/ EBRRA
£8 BUYREEMY EMEXEE ANAEEEEB DL TEEH
31 December 30 April
2015 2015
ZE-IF —Z-nf¥
+=A=+-H MA=+H
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
HE M HE A
Beyond Steady Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - 100% - - Investment holding
BHBERAA Hong Kong 100%7T REER
EBRAEE/BE
Huarong International Asset Cayman Islands/ US$1 - 100% - - Investment in fund
Management Great China Hong Kong ESH EeRE
Investment Fund Limited HEHS/ B
Huarong International Asset Cayman Islands/ HK$232,853,873 - Note (iii) - - Investment in equities
Management Great China Hong Kong capital contribution P & (i) RiERE
Investment Fund L.P. MERE /B8 142328538738
("HIAM Fund L.P.") (note (iif))
(B3 (i)
Firstmount International Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - - 100% - Investment holding
Hongkong Ev REER
RBRZHEE/ A%
Key Gains Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - - 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong 100%7T REER
RBRZHES/ A%
Simsen Asset Management (Asia) ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - - - 100%  Investment holding
Limited ) 15,000,000 7T REZR
ROTBEER(TM)BRAR
Simsen Capital Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 - - - 100%  Money lending
RTHBREBRAA £ 1,000/ 7T EE
Simsen Financial Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - - - 100%  Insurance broking and
RKTeBRBEERAA E30) 5,000,000 7T consultancy services
R a0 KB R
Simsen International Financial Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - - 100%  Management and
Group Limited 0 10,000 7T secretarial services
RTEREREEEFRAR EERWERE
United Simsen Bullion Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - - - 100%  Metal broking and trading
RITH a2 EBRAR 0] 1,000,000/ 7T CEELEREE
United Simsen Forex Hong Kong HK$105,000,000 - - - 100%  Forex contracts broking
Dealers Limited o 105,000,000 75 7 and trading
RITH S EEBRAR MESHELERESR
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

—hAFRA—HE=-Z—

hFE+-A=+—HLLHM

1. AFARKEEEH(H)

(continued)
Nominal value
Place of of issued and
incorporation/ paid-up ordinary
establishment share capital/ Percentage of
Name and operations registered capital equity attributable to the Company Principal activities
ERITRBEZ
M, LERERA
28 BUREE MY EMEXREE ANREEREE DL TRER
31 December 30 April
2015 2015
“Z-n% —T-hE
+T=ZA=t+-H MA=1H
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect
H# ik ER %

Beijing Dong Fang Hui Investment  The People’s RMB250,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of medium and
Consulting Company Limited Republic of China - A B # 250,000,000 7 short term financing
(notes () and (i) REARLRE services and financial

IREH /Efrx uu EAARL consultation services
(HIEE ) & A2 A RS R

R AR

Beijing Jinshengtai Financial The People’s RMB50,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of medium and
Consulting Company Limited Republic of China A& # 50,000,000 7 short term financing
(notes () and i) EE AR AAE services and financial

LReH ?‘X& SHABRD consultation services
(P& () = (i) TRt R R A RS

BB R IR

Beijing Yuedetong Financial The People’s RMB15,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of medium and
Consulting Company Limited Republic of China A& # 15,000,000 7T short term financing
(notes (i) and (ii) REARLRE services and financial

TRREREBERERAR consultation services
(BREE () & (i) AR R A RS R

BISEER RIS

Beijing Wanrong Pawning Company  The People’s RMB40,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of pawn loan
Limited (notes (i) and (ii)) Republic of China A & # 40,000,000 7 services

LRERAEEREMAT HE AR AFE REREETRS
(BREE () & (i)

Shanghai Xingrong Pawning The People’s RMB10,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of pawn loan
Company Limited Republic of China - A &% 10,000,000 7 services
(notes (i) and (ii) HEARARE REREEFRS

HEERARERAR
(PEE () B (i)

Solomon International Leasing The People’s US$18,000,000 - - - 100%  Provision of financial lease
(Tianjin) Co, Ltd (notes () and (ii)) Republic of China 18,000,000 T services

ZRMEBRE(RE)BRAR  FEARLNE REBERERS

(B () B (i)
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, primarily affected the results for
the period/year or formed a substantial portion of the net
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excess
length.

Notes:

0]

(ii)

(iif)

The unofficial English translations or transliterations of Chinese
names are for identification purpose only.

The company is registered in form of wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise under PRC law.

One of the subsidiaries of the Group has subscribed for 71% of
the limited partnership interests of HIAM Fund L.P.
(“Consolidated Investment Fund”) as a limited partner (the “First-
Tier Limited Partner”) during the period ended 31 December
2015, another two subsidiaries of the Group act as the general
partner and the investment manager of the Consolidated
Investment Fund, respectively. As the Group has control over
HIAM Fund L.P., it is accounted for as a subsidiary.

The Fund was set up on 3 November 2015 with a capital
contribution of US$21,300,000 from the First-Tier Limited Partner
and US$8,700,000 from an individual investor who is not related
to the Group (the “Second-Tier Limited Partner”), for a period of
12 months subject to an extension of the term of the Fund for
an additional 6-month period at the sole discretion of the
general partner of the Consolidated Investment Fund.

According to the limited partnership agreement, at the end of
the term of the Fund, the First-Tier Limited Partner will be
entitled to a priority return of 100% of its own capital
contribution and a preferred return at a simple interest rate of
8% per annum calculated from the date the capital contribution
was made; thereafter the Second-Tier Limited Partner is entitled
to 100% return of its own capital contribution. Thereafter 60%
and 40% of the residual amount of the Consolidated Investment
Fund will be distributed to First-Tier Limited Partner and Second-
Tier Limited Partner respectively.

Accordingly, the interests of the Second-Tier Limited Partner in
the Consolidated Investment Fund is presented under non-
current liabilities as the Group has the unconditional right to
defer repayment to the Second-Tier Limited Partner to beyond
12 months from 31 December 2015. In view of the priority return
to the First-Tier Limited Partner, the interests of the Second-Tier
Limited Partner is classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Per the terms of the limited partnership agreement, if the net
asset value of the Consolidated Investment Fund falls below
85% of US$30,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Value"), the Second-Tier
Limited Partner is obliged to make additional capital contribution
to the Fund to ensure that the Guaranteed Value is maintained.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

During the period, the reporting period end date of the Group
changed from 30 April to 31 December to align the Company's
financial year end with China Huarong. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements for the period cover the
eight-month period ended 31 December 2015. The
corresponding comparative amounts shown in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and related notes cover a twelve-
month period from 1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015 and therefore
may not be comparable with amounts shown for the current
period.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules
regarding annual accounts have been amended with reference
to the provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) (the "new C0") regarding preparation of accounts
and directors’ reports and audits and to streamline with
HKFRSs. Accordingly the presentation and disclosure of
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
financial period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 have
been changed to comply with these new requirements.
Comparative information in respect of the financial period from
1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015 are presented or disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements based on the new
requirements. Information previously required to be disclosed
under the predecessor Companies Ordinance or Listing Rules
but not under the new Co or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out in Note 4.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3.

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSS

issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the period:

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the period
has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the Period and prior year and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

In addition, the Group has applied HK(IFRIC)-INT 17 “Distribution
of non-cash assets to owners” for the first time in the period to
the Distribution in Specie, whereby the non-cash distribution of
shares in MSL to the Company’s owners is measured at the fair
value of the shares distributed on distribution date.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs 3
(continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective which

may be relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

Financial instruments?

Revenue from contracts with
customers?

Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations’

Disclosure initiative’

Clarification of acceptable
methods of depreciation and
amortisation’

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception’

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

B Effective for annual periods beginning on a date to be
determined, with earlier application permitted.
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new
requirements for general hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and (b) limited
amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (“FVTOCI") measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

o all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

° in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group'’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs

3.

FERAFITREETERBMBRESE

(continued) Al (&)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers ERUBREERNEISEREEFS
(continued) B (E)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the
amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements give some guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality in practice.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments to HKAS 1 will have a material impact on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
Statements.

Except for the above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the new and revised HKFRSs
listed above will have a material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTESHHEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill Gk

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there
is indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Distribution in specie

Where the Company distributes ownership interests of a
subsidiary to its equity holders, the dividend declared is
measured at the fair value of the shares distributed at
distribution date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Distribution in specie (continued)

The subsidiary is classified as disposal group held for
distribution to equity holders when the Group is committed to
distribute and the distribution is highly probable. Immediately
before the initial classification of the disposal group held for
distribution to equity holders, the carrying amounts of all the
assets and liabilities of the disposal group were measured in
accordance with applicable accounting policies set out in this
note.

Disposal group classified as held for distribution to equity
holders is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and
fair value less costs to distribute.

Dividends

Special dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a special general meeting.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant

influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in

the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are

incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using

the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an

investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and

adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the
Group's interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net

investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal

or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTESHHEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates (continued) BERBEE QAT (E)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group's investment in an associate. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment l0ss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset, the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a part
interest in the associate is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the
same basis as would be required if that associate had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR MR
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEETEHERME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates (continued) RENBE AT (&)

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, ESEEREANEE Y — Mg AT
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the Ro5%  BIEZBE A NRETIHMESE

associate are recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
improvements and furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or l0ss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in
respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEETEHERME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued) BREE (&)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other BEUNEEREFEEZRHE(ELX
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of EHERZEHE) (&)

goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
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loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) o
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing HE

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group'’s net investment outstanding in respect of
the leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities

(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), available-for-sale (“AFS") investments and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of

financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest

income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts

(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and

other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which HKFRS 3
applies, (i) held for trading, or (iii) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading or
contingent consideration that may be paid by an acquirer as
part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or

loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes

any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and is

included in net fair value gains on financial assets designated

as at FVTPL line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 43.

AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as (a)

loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)

financial assets at FVTPL. The Group designated certain items
as AFS financial assets on initial recognition of those items.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as AFS
financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial assets are

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

under the heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation

reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined

to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the available-for-sale investment revaluation

reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or
loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is

established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEETHEBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) ST A (H)

Financial assets (continued) THEE (8)

Loans and receivables B R EWERF

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including finance leases receivable, other long
term assets, loans and accounts receivable, deposits and other
receivables, restricted bank balances, pledged bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition
of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For AFS investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for

impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the

Group's past experience of collecting payments, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the

impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the

exception of loans and accounts receivable, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are

recognised in profit or loss. When a loans and accounts
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against

the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS investments is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not

exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS investments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation

reserve.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEETHEBE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued) £RTHR (&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments fﬂﬁ ERRETA

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue Costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

The interests of the Second-Tier Limited Partner in the
Consolidated Investment Fund are designated as at FVTPL. A
financial liability is designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial

EERBETZEEERATADRES
Zﬁﬁ?ﬁFZiEWaM&éﬁﬂ%t N AT
ArEgMmMoBrnema@aliEs -

BRATA
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FORHIRR BRI TR TERR o
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REEREESTREBREBAZINETS
$EE Fﬁﬁ’&fcf Bt AEEE - BT
B e®ad B’\%)JJHE HﬂEEZ%}E’A
e TE;#)\TE

o BBETERAAEALST
Bt B R o

BEHIRZ

e SHARRTREEXTRAGEMAR

assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed SREZHEKE D - MBEAEEZ
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in BB E RN R B - AR

accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including accounts payable, other
payables, finance leases payable, amount due to an associate
and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible notes issued

The component parts of the convertible notes issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. A conversion option that will be settled by
the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar
non-convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the
instrument’s maturity date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Convertible notes issued (continued)

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible notes issued, the balance
recognised in equity will be transferred to retained profits. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or 10Ss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes issued using
the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or l0ss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net

amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities

simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and

demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short

maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand

and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present

obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is

probable that the Group will be required to settle that

obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision

is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money

is material).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FTESHHEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Taxation FiiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
period/year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

PR T B S T0 48 7R 5 € JE A5 B0 38 S R FE A
TRZ M e

AEERNRARNASRE,FE2ER
BaAERE - BRBUEN RS BE R
Hiv2ERRERA2H 2 [BRBRATEN | T
R - To R E I At A B E A 2 R
SR 2 WIAR - TNERF ABARE &
AR 2 BB IS - REEAFEHRIA
BEDZRBREHRCHEMKIEL LOH
M2 REE -

BREFRBERGEMBERR2EERAGR
T8 S 5T B R M P R R AR &
RzERZEMER - BEEHAAE—K
ATERRME R ZEM T AR - BT
BT A B Rl — AR AE & R B0 1) AT P LA 3K 88
AT HR B AT FERR 2 AR AT HURE B
MR BBNLEREERBEME
HEERZR(EBEHRIN BRI TER
RBEMNHEEN ZBERT - BERIT
MEEERBERNE T AR 1t
MEAERARERELEREZR  ATE
HERELHIARE -

EERIA R BT IR E R E A7) R
RAZRENRNEEEE 2 EEMREZ
ERREREZRMER  EEARETS
EREZRBORERERE IR TENA
RERED 2 BRI - REBKRERE
SRR 2 AT HUR S B Z R A A 2RI

PREREER 2 Mm - ARNEHRN T R
REEE 2 1G0T HERR

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH 87



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE ISR R MR

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business.

(@) Fees and commission income for broking business is
recorded as income on a trade date basis;

(b)  Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition;
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESFBREE(H)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(c) Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ right to receive payment have been
established;

(d)  Underwriting commission and placing commission are
recognised as income in accordance with the terms of
the underwriting agreement or deal mandate when the
relevant significant acts have been completed; and

(e) Other service income is recognised when the relevant
service has been rendered.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period or is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of its
payroll costs, depending on the location of the subsidiaries, of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEETEHERME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued) Sk (48)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial REIJFEEMBmE  AERBINEBZ
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign BEHBGEYIRBE R Y IERKRE 5K
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the SEZZ25E®BENEL) c WMAKRFXIA
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing BHORBARNTHERME o FEERERZE
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses H(A) REAE2EREAAERERFA
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the T2 [ W R IE T (BB B R FEIE Az (10
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in HR)) e

other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under

the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed to non-

controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the R EEINETR (BNHEREE R BINETS
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal ZEEER  KEEPREKELMREAT
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a (BIEEINETS) Z1EHIHE - A EER
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint BETHEERE (BIEBINER) 28
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation mEREBREENASREE)R  AQH
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of WEARLZESMNES R AR
the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of HERENMHEZER

that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are

reclassified to profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. BEREFHETRMEE

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompany disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, estimates
and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

REAEEGEVBHRRFTETREFL
RUAFZEME2MBA - X BEREBIE
CHRALERBRERRABEREZH
B~ AR RRER - L FHRER A 2T
PREAEEERERRFTELHIFEER
EXBEIREAEFLERRAE -

RERASEETREZBES  EHE
EFHUTHEAMBRANCHERDHE
BRRERTZE 2 HB - EFF R
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of loans and accounts receivable

The Group reviews its loans and accounts receivable portfolio
to assess impairment on a regular basis. In determining
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the Group makes
judgement as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and accounts
receivable before the decrease can be identified with an
individual account receivable in that portfolio. This evidence
may include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group,
or national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on assets in the Group. Management uses estimates
based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when scheduling its future cash flows.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale and
recognises movements of their fair values in equity. When the
fair value declines, management assesses the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment that should be
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As
at 31 December 2015, no impairment losses have been
recognised for available-for-sale investments (30 April 2015:
HK$16,377,000). The carrying amount of available-for-sale
investments at 31 December 2015 was HKS$Nil (30 April 2015:
HK$96,453,000).

Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised on the estimated
tax losses of HK$104,892,000 (30 April 2015: HK$88,475,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 5. BEAREFHERMEE (E)

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes 'D\J‘M“E FTERMAEBRE

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair REBEHHDEENBERYHHRBMS I
value for financial reporting purposes. NRE {E;Hr; o

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group REFTEERBEAAEER  AKEE
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. A1TIER T & %ﬂ%ﬁé%ﬁ/ﬁwm%T S8UE -
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third EF—ERAZBTRENGER  ~EEE
party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The %ﬁﬁ*ﬁ ﬁtﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂkfﬂéﬁ NS
management of the Group works closely with the qualified EREHEERIIFMEERMEREE - U
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation W EAHERERB AR ZEHIE - 8
techniques and inputs to the model. The finance department B ARARTESTEREGRG
would report the valuation findings to the Board of Directors of BRER ITHMEBEEXNEERABGLAAEBE
the Company every month to explain the cause of fluctuations WEZ I ©

in the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that REEERHERE(BEWIEENAIHE
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair MSZEE 2 B AR Mt E o Eal&mI
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 21, 31 B2 RNAEE - [5E21 - 31 435I B H
and 43 provide detailed information about the valuation ErTSsEEERBEZAABEMERANY
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the HERE BABBREZHREZZ2ER -
determination of the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS 6. BEFERAE

During the course of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December
2015, the Directors have determined that the prior years’
financial statements of the Group require restatements in
relation to (i) impairment on available-for-sale investments; (ii)
impairment on loans and accounts receivable of the Distributed
Group; and (iii) adjustments on interest expense and carrying
amounts of liability and equity components of the Convertible
Notes (as defined in note 31) for the years ended 30 April 2014
and 30 April 2015.

The following tables disclose the prior years' adjustments that
have been made and the reconciliation of the restated
amounts of the comparative figures presented in each of the
line items in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows to the amounts
previously reported in prior years’ consolidated financial
Statements.

RmEAHE (B —F-—AFAA—HE=
T-AF+-A=1+—R) ZHFEaMHB®REK
BREF EFHR - AEEREEFES
RATEBEZMBHRRATES : ()T H
HERE ZRE : (N0 IKkE IZEﬁk

JEYBRFORME : R(NATRKREE(EER
ME3DRBE—E—NFNA=1THEIE_
Z-RFEMHA=TRHIEFE BRI
KRaEREmaDREEFHE

TEREBCSERZBEFERE  AKB
EFE2EEVBHRRREI SR iREE
#2R FEEEREMEEAKRER  FE
MBIRRAE - RERSBHRARES
ERERANMZ i&Tétbf%ﬁ(%%&i?lJu
Rk -
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6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFAE(HE)
(a) Consolidated statement of profit or loss for (@) BZ-—Z—HEFMWA=+HILHF
the year ended 30 April 2015 EZzGREERR
Year ended Year ended
30 April 2015 Adjustments 30 April 2015
HE-E- BE-E-1F
mA _‘i' E! MA=1+H
LEE il EE
(Note (v) (Restated)
(HIzE ) (&5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Continuing operations BELCSER
Revenue LN 46,368 - 46,368
Other income and gains or losses, net Hi WA R s B85 5073 - 5,073
Brokerage and commission expenses TIEREEREX (8,725) - (8,725)
Administrative and other operating expenses TR At 845 % (71,567) - (71,567)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale investments H & f#t K&/ & 7 B8 (14,754) - (14,754)
Impairment on available-for-sale investments At &R ERI(E (FiH5E ()
(note (i) - (16,377) (16,377)
Provision for impairment of loans and accounts PR EREFE
receivable, net (684) - (684)
Finance costs (note (i) BEER (ML) (3,488) (6,388) (9,876)
Loss before tax from continuing operations BELEER I BRTAEE (47,777) (22,765) (70,542)
Income tax credit FigHhiEe 7 - 7
Loss for the year from continuing operations SECEERCFEER (47,770) (22,765) (70,535)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Profit for the year from discontinued BRIEEEER 2 FEE
operations (note (i) (3 i) 80,265 (76,35) 3,907
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ADRHEANEGEEL T (B1B)
owners of the Company 32,495 (99,123) (66,628)
Earnings (10ss) per share attributable to ARFTHE AEESRET
owners of the Company (note (iv)) (E58) (M3 (V)

From continuing and discontinued operations ~ KBEHFELERER HELEK

— Basic — &K HK2.23 cents &l HK(6.80) cents il HK(4.57) cents A1l

— Diluted — 5% HK2.23 cents il HK(6.80) cents il HK(4.57) cents Ll
From continuing operations REBECLEY

— Basic — &R HK(3.28) cents &l HK(1.56) cents il HK(4.84) cents /il

— Diluted — R HK(3.28) cents 7Ll HK(1.56) cents il HK(4.84) cents 1L
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6.

PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
(@) Consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year ended 30 April 2015 (continued)

Notes:

(M

(i)

Impairment on available-for-sale investments

The Group did not record any impairment loss for
available-for-sale investments with significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below cost for the
years ended 30 April 2014 and 2015. The Group has
understated the available-for-sale investments
impairment losses by approximately HK$46,185,000 and
HK$16,377,000 for the years ended 30 April 2014 and
2015 respectively. The Group overstated the available-for-
sale investment revaluation reserve by approximately
HK$46,185,000 as at 30 April 2014 and HK$62,562,000 as
at 30 April 2015.

Accounting treatment for the issue of the
Convertible Notes

In prior years, the Group recognised the carrying amount
of equity component of the Convertible Notes by
deducting the fair value of the liability component from
the issue proceed, rather than from the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole on the
issuance date of the Convertible Notes issued. In addition,
the Company did not use the borrowing rate of
comparable borrowings with similar credit rating of the
Company as the discount rate when determining the fair
value and initial carrying amount of the liability
component. The Group understated interest expense of
the Convertible Notes issued by approximately
HK$6,419,000 and HK$6,388,000 for the years ended 30
April 2014 and 30 April 2015, respectively. The Group
understated the equity component of the Convertible
Notes by approximately HK$431,202,000 and
HK$35,441,000 as at 30 April 2014 and 2015, respectively.
The Group overstated the liability component of the
Convertible Notes issued by approximately HK$83,839,000
and HK$4,708,000 as at 30 April 2014 and 2015,
respectively. The Group also understated the share
premium recognised on the conversion of the Convertible
Notes issued by approximately HK$127,946,000 and
HK$450,964,000 as at 30 April 2014 and 2015,
respectively. The Group overstated the retained profits by
approximately HK$475,309,000 as at 30 April 2014 and
HK$481,697,000 as at 30 April 2015.

6. BEFEHAEA)
(a) BE=FT-HEMNA=+HLHF
EzRERHER(H)

B

() AHEERERE
HE_Z-—-NFR_ZT—RHFWNA
“HHLEFE AEBYERZS
AREERBRREARAZ 7]
PEREFBEAIRERE - A%
E Al SR E R ERERE
EZZ—NFER-_T—HFWMA
=+tHLEFES D RLY
46,185,0005% 7T %2.16,377,00078 7T
REEGRAIEHESRE 2 BEEFHE
R-Z—NFENA=+BBE2EK
4946,185,000/8 TN —ZT—HEF
A=+ BB 2 762,562,000 %
e

(il BOTRRRBZETEE

RBAEFE  AEEBBBEBITAH
BRIEMRABESY 2 AR EBEMN
HRUBREEES S 2EE
B MI3ERT BB BT R R
BTASEASRTAZERBAR
BE - I KRRV EFEAEE
HAREANBEZ AT REREZ
BESREABTRBSSANE
BERBEEEEZIRE - KEEH
BEBITARREE R BFHE R
HEZ--NFNA=1THEK=Z
—AFNA=TRALEFESRIDR
496,419,0007 7T }2.6,388,000/8 7T °
REEGRATRBRZEESTORZ
T-ER -T—REMNA=1+H
2 Bl A $] #9431,202,0007 T K
35,441,000 7T ° NEE B D BT
ARBREREEBHSN T —NF
M_ZE—RFMA=1+HBHBIBE
2 %) 83,839,0007% 7T & 4,708,000
T o AKBE N BB EITAR
BEERRZBOEER - —/N
ER-_ZT—AFMA=+HEHH A
¥} #49127,946,0008 T XK
450,964,000 7T ° A E B FHR B
AR =—ZF—MEMA=+HBHEE
3} 49475,309,0008 7T K B = &
—AFMNAZ+THBBEE2RY
481,697,000 7T ©
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PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued)
(@) Consolidated statement of profit or loss for

the year ended 30 April 2015 (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

Impairment on loans and accounts receivable and
finance leases receivable

The Group did not recognise any collective impairment on
the loans and accounts receivables and finance leases
receivable of the Distributed Group in prior years. The
Group understated the impairment losses of loans and
accounts receivable and finance leases receivable of
Distributed Group by approximately HK$120,378,000 and
HK$76,358,000 for the years ended 30 April 2014 and
2015, respectively. The Group overstated the loans and
accounts receivables and finance leases receivable of the
Distributed Group by approximately HK$120,378,000 as at
30 April 2014 and HK$196,736,000 as at 30 April 2015.

Earnings (loss) per share

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 30 April 2015 were restated
due to the above adjustments. As a result, the basic and
diluted earnings per share of continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 30 April 2015 both
decreased by HK6.80 cents. The basic and diluted losses
per share of continuing operations for the year ended 30
April 2015 both increased by HK1.56 cents.

The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss have been restated to re-present the
Distributed Group’s operations as discontinued
operations.

6.
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6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFERAE(HE)

(b) Consolidated statement of profit or loss and (b) BE-_Z—HEFMWA=+HILHF
other comprehensive income for the year EzHGeERREMZEmKER
ended 30 April 2015

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2015  Adjustments 30 April 2015
BE-Z-0#¥ BE-E-RE
mA=+8 mA=+A
IHFE AR ILFE
(Note 6(a)(v)) (Restated)
(GEEI0) (E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET
Profit (loss) for the year FEHF (EEB) 32,495 (99,123) (66,629)
Other comprehensive income (expense) Hib 2w ()
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently Hi#& s EHHERIBRERE Y
to profit or 10ss: HE -
Fair value loss on available-for-sale AEHERERAAEBERE
investments (7,874) - (7,874)
Reclassification upon impairment of RN HEREREREN
available- for-sale 8 (M3 6(a)(0))
investments (note é(a)(i) - 16,377 16,377
Reclassification adjustment relating to EHRFEHETHDERE
disposal of available-for-sale ZEHN D EAE
investments during the year 14,721 - 14,721
Exchange difference on translating BEBIEB R EE
foreign operations:
Exchange differences arising during FEEAZELER
the year (2,937) - (2,937)
Other comprehensive income for the year, 2 £ 2 EUzs (NEFIE)
net of tax 3,910 16,377 20,287
Total comprehensive income (expense) ARRHEBANELEE
for the year attributable to owners 2EE (X)L
of the Company 36,405 (82,746) (46,341)
Total comprehensive income (expense) EhFEEENE (X)) 858:
for the year attributable to:
owners of the Company Z/NCIE YN
— from continuing operations —RARBELEEK (40,923 (6,388) (47,311)
— from discontinuing operations — REBRIEEEER 77,328 (76,358) 970
36,405 (82,746) (46,341)
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PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFAE(HE)
(c) consolidated statement of financial position () R-ZE—NEREA—BZ&HEEH
as at 1 May 2014 AR F
1 May 2014
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 1 May 2014
—ZT-|mE
AA—H —E-NE
(REFIHR) ok HA—H
(Restated)
(&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R KEE 5,473 - 5,473
Goodwill FEES 22,279 - 22,279
Other long term assets HitREEE 4,220 - 4,220
Intangible assets BYEE 2,350 - 2,350
Investments in senior notes REXABREZRE 80,000 - 80,000
Available-for-sale investments AERERE 28,841 - 28,841
Finance leases receivable ERRERE 60,916 - 60,916
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 204,079 - 204,079
Current assets RBEE
Finance leases receivable (note 6(a)iii) FEU R ETRE (BT 6(a)i) 18,540 (10,824) 7,716
Loans and accounts
receivable (note é()(ii) B R AR 3R (BT3E 6(a)in) 740,281 (109,554) 630,727
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRHIE - 5T REMER
receivables R 374,304 - 374,304
Financial assets at fair value through mAREBEFAEBRERE S
profit or 10ss MEE 1,678 - 1,678
Tax recoverable A eI 192 - 192
Restricted bank balances R EIRI TS 138,057 - 138,057
Pledged bank deposits BHARTER 10,591 - 10,591
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEER 381,509 - 381,509
Total current assets MEVEELE 1,665,152 (120,378) 1,544,774
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6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFERAE(HE)
(c) Consolidated statement of financial position () R-ZE—NEREA—BZ&HEEH
as at 1 May 2014 (continued) Bz (&)
1 May 2014
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 1 May 2014
—Z-|mEF
AA—H —E-mEF
(R%&5I%R) Fiokad EA—H
(Restated)
(=751)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FHEL
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable FERERR 161,811 - 161,811
Other payables and accruals HiEMNERREER 27,553 - 27,553
Finance leases payable ENmERE 83 - 83
Tax payable ERRIE 2,694 - 2,694
Total current liabilities MBS EEE 192,141 - 192,141
Net current assets RENVEEFE 1,473,011 (120,378) 1,352,633
Total asset less current liabilities AERERTDAR 1,677,090 (120,378) 1,556,712
Non-current liabilities E =i
Convertible notes issued (note 6(a)(ii) BETARKRER
(B3 6(a)) 349,762 (83,339) 265,923
Other payables and accruals HiERNRRRETER 1,069 - 1,069
Total non-current liabilities FnEaGEE 350,831 (83,839) 266,992
Net assets BEFE 1,326,259 (36,539) 1,289,720
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners RREHER AEGRER
of the Company
Share capital [N 906 - 906
Equity component of convertible notes AR ERER DD
(note é(a)(ii) (BT EE b)) 16,288 431,202 447,490
Share premium and reserves B in i 8 R
(notes 6(a)(i) to (iii) (B =E 6(a)(0) 2 (iii)) 1,309,065 (467,741) 841,324
Total equity R 1,326,259 (36,539) 1,289,720
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6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFAE(HE)
(d) consolidated statement of financial position (d) R-Z—HFNA=+HZESE
as at 30 April 2015 BRI &
30 April 2015
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 30 April 2015
—E-FHF
mA=+H et Y
(REFIHR) AR mA=+H
(Restated)
(&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WE &R 751 - 751
Other long term assets HEtREEE 6,141 - 6,141
Intangible assets BYEE 2,350 - 2,350
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 96,453 - 96,453
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 105,695 - 105,695
Current assets RBEE
Loans and accounts receivable ERRERER 120,201 - 120,201
Prepayments, deposits and other TBFHIE - T REMER
receivables BRFX 13,190 - 13,190
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFAEBREZS
profit or loss BEE 1,457 - 1,451
Restricted bank balances R EIRI TS 280,004 - 280,004
Pledged bank deposits BHARTER 10,725 - 10,725
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 68,337 - 68,337
493,908 - 493,908
Assets of Distributed Group classified DEARBENRTHRAEAZ
as held for distribution to Ko REBEE
owners (note é(aj(iii) (B F 6(a)ii)) 1,369,176 (196,736) 1,172,440
Total current assets MEVEELE 1,863,084 (196,736) 1,666,348
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable TERTEESR 294,938 - 294,938
Other payables and accruals HiENERRESER 6,472 - 6,472
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 53,913 - 53,913
Tax payable FERRIE 1 - 1
355,324 - 355,324
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NF

—HFREA-HE-ZE-AF+-A=+—HI-HH

6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6.
(d) Consolidated statement of financial position

BEFERAE(E)
(d R=-ZE—HEFMA=+RHZ&HE

as at 30 April 2015 (continued) B AR R & ()
30 April 2015
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 30 April 2015
—E-EF
A=+H —E-5f%F
(REFIHR) AR mE=+H
(Restated)
(8E5))
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FAET
Liabilities of Distributed Group classified DEARBEDRTHEBAZ
as held for distribution to owners KHREEEE 134,170 - 134,170
Total current liabilities MEBELEE 489,494 - 489,494
Net current assets MENVEEFE 1,373,590 (196,736) 1,176,854
Total asset less current liabilities BERERRDERE 1,479,285 (196,736) 1,282,549
Non-current liabilities *RBEE
Convertible notes issued (note 6(a)(ii) BRITAIRRER
(BT EE6(a)ii) 29,188 (4,708) 24,480
Other payables and accruals H{MEHHE AR E R 1,898 - 1,898
Total non-current liabilities EnBaBEE 31,086 (4,708) 26,378
Net assets BEZE 1,448,199 (192,028) 1,256,171
Equity B
Equity attributable to owners ARAHEB AELER
of the Company
Share capital [ 1,576 - 1,576
Equity component of convertible notes Tﬁﬂxﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
(note 6(aj(in) (B =E b)) 1,339 35,441 36,780
Share premium and reserves =B &fﬁ{%
(notes 6(a)() to (iii) (MF=E 6(a)0) Z (iil)) 1,454,267 (227,469) 1,226,798
1,457,182 (192,028) 1,265,154
Amounts recognised in other REM2EREERERED
comprehensive income directly related *E?%TT EDIRTHA AL
to Distributed Group classified as held for ~ S E&EEIRE - £%
distribution to owners (8,983) - (8,983)
Total equity BREE 1,448,199 (192,028) 1,256,171
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—AERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFE(E)
(e) Consolidated statement of changes in equity (e) R=SZE—NNFERA—HZ&HZEE
as at 1 May 2014 mB R
1 May 2014
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 1 May 2014
—E-MmEF
EA—H —E-mF
(RE5IHR) A HA—H
(Restated)
(F=E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
Issued capital BEITRA 906 - 906
Share premium account (note 6(a)(ii) R0 % (& Bk (P 5E 6(a)ii)) 1,057,579 127,946 1,185,525
Contributed surplus BABH 274,160 - 274,160
Available-for-sale investment revaluation — aJft HE 2 R E B EE
reserve (note 6(a)(i)) (Bi=E6()0)) (49,595) 46,185 (3,410)
Currency translation reserve INEME R (6,046) - (6,046)
Convertible notes equity reserve AR EEREE
(note 6(a)ii) (BiFE 6(a)ii)) 16,288 431,202 447,490
Retained profits (accumulated losses) RBEF (BEER)
(notes 6(a)(i) to (iii)) (GEREIEIWD) 32,967 (641,872) (608,905)
Total equity R 1,326,259 (36,539) 1,289,720
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFE(E)
(f) consolidated statement of changes in equity ) R-ZE—HFEFTA—BHZHEE
as at 1 May 2015 mB R
1 May 2015

(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 1 May 2015

—E-RF
HA—H —E-RF
(REFIR) AE "A—H
(Restated)
(F=E5)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Issued capital BETIRA 1,576 - 1,576
Share premium account (note é(a)(ii) 1% 17 i B R (FiTEE 6(a)i)) 1,393,744 450,964 1,844,708
Contributed surplus AR 37,809 - 37,809
Available-for-sale investment revaluation  AJftHE 2R B E (L HEE
reserve (note 6(a)(i)) (HzE6()) (42,748) 62,562 19,814
Currency translation reserve N A f %1% (8,983) - (8,983)
Convertible notes equity reserve T}ﬁﬂxﬁﬂé S
(note 6(a)(in) (B EE 6(a)i) 1,339 35,441 36,780
Retained profits (accumulated losses) REHH (/\quJEﬁa)
(notes 6(a)() to (iii)) (P EE 6(a)(0) Z (i) 65,462 (740,995) (675,533)
Total equity B 1,448,199 (192,028) 1,256,171
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

6. PRIOR YEARS ADJUSTMENTS (continued) 6. BEFEFAE(HE)
(g) Consolidated statement of cash flows for (g BE-_ZE-—HAFMA=1+HLE
year ended 30 April 2015 EZ@aReRER
30 April 2015
(As previously
reported)  Adjustments 30 April 2015
—E-RF
A=+H —E-RF
(RESIHR) i mAE=+H
(Restated)
(E7)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities KEFB HASRE
Loss before tax i RIEE
— From continuing operations — REBEREER (47,777) (22,765) (70,542)
— From discontinued operations — REBRIELEERK 96,553 (76,358) 20,195
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs BEEH 8,024 6,388 14,412
Interest income FEMBA (2,325) - (2,325)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEHBEREZER
investments 14,754 - 14,754
Depreciation e 3,780 - 3,780
Write-back of provision for long service REORBEBERLDFE
payments, net ©) - €)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HENE BEMREERZ
plant and equipment B8 207 - 207
Provision for impairment of finance RRBERE  URERKE
leases receivable and loans and W BR SRR (B Rt T 58
accounts receivable, net 8,647 76,358 85,005
Provision for impairment upon AEHEREZRERE
available-for-sale investments - 16,377 16,377
Provision for reinstatement BERE 625 625
Bad debt written off ZEARM S 287 287
82,772 82,772
Increase in finance leases receivable PR E &0 (85,597) (85,597)
Increase in loans and accounts receivable &3k & fig Uk BE 4 0 (439,398) (439,398)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits ?Eﬁm © 7l d RE M AR
and other receivables TR A 352,158 352,158
Decrease in financial assets classified %iﬁ?%?%f’ﬁ BEEvoREE
as held for trading B 227 227
Increase in restricted bank balances PR IR TAE SR N (155,680) (155,680)
Increase in accounts payable e BR SRIE I 150,443 150,443
Increase in other payables and accruals HAh e BRI R BT & A 0 5793 5,793
Cash used in operations REXKRARS (89,282) (89,282)
Tax paid BEAHE (9,785) (9,785)
Net cash flows used in operating activities &&ESFMAZE SR EF5E (99,067) (99,067)

The Directors are of the opinion that the effect of the EERA LRSI RABRZFEY
restatements and adjustments described above has no BEUHEZE T -—AFMNA=THILSF
significant impact on the cash flows from or used in EREREE RS MAR SR
financing and investing activities for the year ended 30 EEKAMERTE -

April 2015.
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

ﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁ n_lI_

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the period, in order to more accurately reflect the
resources allocation and assessment of performance of the
Group, the structure of the financial reports provided to the
Board, being the chief operating decision makers, has been
changed such that financial information relating to corporate
finance and asset management and direct investment
operations, which were previously reported to the chief
operating decision makers in aggregation with those relating to
the securities operations, are separately reported with effect
from the period. Accordingly, it is determined that the change
in the structure of its internal organisation and reporting has
resulted in the composition of operating and reportable
segments to change.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
from continuing operations are now determined to be as
follows:

(@ the securities segment comprises the broking and
dealing of securities, futures and options contracts and
the provision of margin financing services;

(b) the corporate finance segment provides securities
underwriting and sponsoring and financial advisory
services to institutional clients; and

() the asset management and direct investment segment
comprises asset management services and direct
investments in equities, bonds, funds, derivative
instruments and other financial products.

The corresponding segment information for the comparative
period presented in these consolidated financial statements
have been restated to reflect the change in structure.

E—RFRA—HEZZT

7.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH
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B IR M R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit (oss), which is measured consistently with the
Group's profit (loss) before tax except that impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments, gain or loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments, finance costs and other
unallocated expenses including certain staff costs, certain

rental expense, certain legal and professional fee and certain

other expenses, incurred for strategic planning of the Group
are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude available-for-sale investments, tax

recoverable, other unallocated assets and assets of Distributed

Group classified as held for distribution to owners as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax payable,
other unallocated liabilities and liabilities of Distributed Group
classified as held for distribution to owners as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference

to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the
then prevailing market prices.

(a) Operating segments

The following tables present the revenue and results
from continuing operations for the period and the year
ended 30 April 2015 and certain assets, liabilities and
expenditure information for the Group’s operating
segments as at 31 December 2015 and 30 April 2015 and
period/year then ended. The comparative figures have
been re-presented to conform with the period’s
presentation.

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(a) Operating segments (continued)

From 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
e IS ERER M R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

7. BE2WER (B

(a) REIEE
=
+=

B=+—H
Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance  investment Total
EEEER
E5 b¥mE HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR TET
Segment revenue GEELON
Revenue from external REIREFZ
customers WA 44,911 59,370 63,722 168,003
Other income and gains or HAi A Rz sg
losses, net B8 2,125 - 34,894 37,019
47,036 59,370 98,616 205,022
Segment results NEEE 28,658 44,431 91,717 164,856
Gain on disposal of available- for- & At HH &% &
sale investments Al G 96,575
Finance costs BEEH (33,663)
Other unallocated income and ~ Ef AR D EIA K
gains or losses, net KRS EEFE 2,189
Other unallocated expenses HibRAREH (54,052)
Profit before tax from continuing HERKEEK 2
operations B ATEF 175,905
Income tax expense TR (20,690)
Profit for the period from B
continuing operations - li5heagal 155,215

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A=E—RAFRA—HE=-Z

—HE+ZA=1+—RLLHH

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BEIWER(HE)
(continued)
(@) Operating segments (continued) (a) KEIE(E)
From 1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015 :f MERA—HEZ-_ZT—AFN
A=+H
Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance investment Total
BEEER
Feges TERE BEERE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THEL FHEL FAT
Segment revenue EELON
Revenue from external REMRER ZHWA
customers 34,941 11,427 - 46,368
Other income and gains or Hih AR @ EE
losses, net FE 679 4,250 - 4,929
35,620 15,677 - 51,297
Segment results DHEEE 9,786 10,103 (199) 19,690
Loss on disposal of available- for- &Rt HERE 7 FiE
sale investments (14,754)
Impairment on available- for-sale AT {tHER B RE
investments (16,377)
Finance costs BEEH (9,876)
Other unallocated income and ~ E R D E WA R I ok
gains or losses, net ERTE 144
Other unallocated expenses HinxpERZ (49,369)
Loss before tax from continuing ~ HELL %55 7
operations KA EE (70,542)
Income tax credit FEHESR /
Loss for the year from continuing HERKEEK 2
operations FEEBR (70,535)
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REFER(E
(continued)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) K&EE(E)
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE—RE+-A=+—H
Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance  investment Total
EEEER
EH TrERE HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TEx
Segment assets NEEE 2,361,876 26,423 789,385 3,177,684
Tax recoverable A EFE 10
Other unallocated assets (note (i) H A HEEZE (M () 2,191,577
Total assets LEBE 5,369,271
Segment liabilities PEAE 605,911 8,031 42,436 656,378
Tax payable FERTIR 16,244
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEEE 13,515
Other unallocated liabilities HinxHEafE
(note (i) (FIEE D) 3,947,979
Total liabilities BELE 4,634,116
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

- hFRA—RAE_T-RF+-A=1+—HI-HH

7. BE2WER (B

(@) EEE(E)

From 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 :i TFREA-HE=-ZZ—HF
+=—A=+—H
Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance  investment Total
BEEEER
#H TrERE HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEx
Other segment information: HitpBEER
Interest income fromloanand ~ EFRFEREEIH
margin financing activities FEWA 8,844 - - 8,844
Net (losses) gains on BARBEFABRE
financial assets at fair value JemEE(BE)
through profit or loss W% (696) = 55,472 54,776
Placing and underwriting fee RERBHEERA
income 70 59,220 - 59,290
Other service income HipRBBA 16,972 150 8,250 25,372
Fair value gain on financial BARBESABRE
liabilities at fair value through ZEMEEANEE
profit or loss Wiz - - 34,894 34,894
Depreciation nE 239 17 5 261
Reversal for impairment of loans & 2 % e i B 2 i (8
and accounts receivable, net Bl 1,392 - - 1,392
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BEREE
property, plant and equipment I8 2 &8 - 16 - 16
Capital expenditure* BARRAZ 512 - - 512
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

7.

E—RFRA—HEZZT

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(continued)

(a) Operating segments (continued)

As at 30 April 2015

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

RETEER (F)

(a) R&EDE(E)
:f AFEMA=+H

Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance investment Total
BEEER
E5 rERE EBRRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THL THL
Segment assets NEEE 479,433 50 216 479,699
Available-for-sale investments  A[{ HERE 96,453
Assets of Distributed Group NEBREDRTHEEA
classified as held for LEDREEEE
distribution to owners 1,172,440
Other unallocated assets (note () Efh Rk A EE (FEE()) 23451
Total assets BERE 1,772,043
Segment liabilities AEERE 299,374 - 29 299,403
Tax payable FENTIE 1
Liabilities of Distributed Group "*ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂ’ﬁ FPETHEEA
with the assets classified as ZENKEBERE
held for distribution to owners 134,170
Other unallocated liabilities HinxoEaE
(note (ii) (B aE (i) 82,298
Total liabilities BELES 515,872
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

R MY RE

—hAFRA—HE=E

—HE+ZA=1+—RLLHH

7. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. REIWER(E)
(continued)
(a) Operating segments (continued) (a) R&EDE(E)
From 1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015 :f MERA—HEZ-_ZT—AFN
A=+H
Asset
management
Corporate and direct
Securities finance investment Total
BEEER
EH rERE ERRE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FiEr TR
Other segment information: HEthHEER
Interest income fromloanand ~ ERRHEREEH 2
margin financing activities FIEWA 6,154 - - 6,154
Net gains on financial BANEEABRR
assets at fair value through ZERMAERRFE
profit or loss 942 - - 942
Placing and underwriting fee RERBHEERA
income 350 10,757 - 11,107
Other service income HipRBBA 953 670 - 1,623
Depreciation nE 588 373 - 961
Provision for impairment of loans &z J& JiE Ut B 50 (B %
and accounts receivable, net EFE 684 - - 684
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BEREE
property, plant and equipment  JEE 2 &8 95 - - 95
Capital expenditure* BARRY * 2,825 - - 2,825

* Capital expenditure consists of additions to other long
term assets.

Note (i):

Note (ii):

112

The balance comprises bank balances of
HK$2,169,165,000 (30 April 2015: HK$11,851,000),
prepayments and other receivables of HK$15,333,000
(30 April 2015: HK$11,600,000), intangible assets of
HK$4,286,000 (30 April 2015: Nil) and property, plant
and equipment of HK$2,793,000 (30 April 2015: Nil).

The balance comprises other payables of
HK$46,336,000 (30 April 2015: HK$3,905,000), interest-
bearing borrowings of HK$3,875,250,000 (30 April
2015: HK$53,913,000) and the Convertible Notes
issued of HK$26,393,000 (30 April 2015:
HK$24,480,000).

*

@)

P EE (i
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

E—RFRA—HEZZT

7.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)
(b) Geographical information

()

All continuing segments’ operations are primarily located
in Hong Kong and substantially all of the Group’s revenue
is derived from Hong Kong.

The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property and equipment; and the location of
the core operations in the case of other specified non-
current assets. All non-current assets of the Group are
located in Hong Kong.

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers who contributed over 10% of

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

7. BE2WER (B

(b) HEEHR
FARERENBEBIBURE
B MASBEBREDWALTREE
o

IMERRENE @ HEFRDEE
Zﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬁéiﬁﬁzgﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ

AN EIFRBEEMS - B
iﬁﬁihﬁﬂ'ﬁk@/b%ﬁ‘&ﬁﬁ&iﬁﬁﬁm °
AEBE2HIFRDEEIURES -

(c) ARAEEFFZESH
HAEBERWAEREB10%NEP

total revenue of the Group are as follows: WA -
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—FHE — PO
ERA—HZE TH—H=
—E—REF —E—RF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Customer (ultimate holding KETEMESHEZER
company) from corporate (BRI AR
finance segment 22,798 -
Customer from corporate finance JKEMEREHEY TP
segment 33,094 10,757
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—AERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

8. REVENUE 8. WA
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-FF S USEES
BA—HBZE AFA—H=E
—E-FE —E—RF
+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHEIT
Continuing operations BESEER
Fees and commission income from FH - BHENEREA KL 2
securities, futures and options WE &mEBA
contracts broking 19,721 26,542
Net gains on financial assets at fair BAREEFABREY
value through profit or loss S REENEFE 54,776 942
Interest income from loan and margin -~ B M ERVE RS 2 M E YA
financing activities 8,844 6,154
Placing and underwriting fee income Bl RAEHEERA 59,290 11,107
Other service income (note) H b BRI U A (B 7E) 25,372 1,623
168,003 46,368
Note: Other service income represents investment advisory, consultancy Mt HADRFBUWAIE AL B R AR Frie
and arrangement services provided by the Group during the period. WA - B RLHERY
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B B ERAM R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

9.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS OR LOSSES, NET 9. HihWARWEREEFE
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-EF —E—F
BA—HBZE AHA—HE
—E—FHEF —T—HhHEF
+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FAET
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Interest income B A 1,110 371
Foreign exchange differences, net ME R R (904) (67)
Fair value gain on financial liabilities BAREBEFABREZ
at FVTPL eRAE s AR BEKE 34,894 -
Others Hi 4,108 4,769
39,208 5,073
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

—hAFRA—HE=E

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

10. PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX 10. BRBIADER (E518)
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
- T MEF
BEA—HZE AR—RA=E
—E—FF —E—RF
+=—HA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET

The Group's profit (loss) before tax from 7R E= [E435 45 48 & ¥ 75 2 R R Al

continuing operations is arrived at w A (EE) Bk (GEA)

after charging (crediting): T5|&18 :

Depreciation e 549 961
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE MENMREER

plant and equipment e 23 95
Minimum lease payments under ERARERES

operating leases:

Office premises WREYE 11,002 13,474

Office equipment MAEHRME 100 130

11,102 13,604
(Reversal of) provision for impairment  SE{EE5 18 (B @) B4 %58

loss, net (1,392) 684
Bad debts written off s AR - 287
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN BN & 2,880 775
Referral fee for underwriting of shares B D 2 ENE

(Included in brokerage and (RESELMEERS)

COMmMIsSion expenses) 7,801 100
Legal and professional fees FERRBEEER 7.336 4,564
Directors’ and chief executive’s EFENEATBRAEMNE

remuneration (note 12) (FfzE12) 2,753 1,650
Employee benefit expenses (excluding EERFMBESZ (TBEEEN

directors’ and chief executive’s BES1TBRAE#ME)

remuneration) (note 12): (FF3E12) -

Salaries and other benefits* e RHMBER 32,533 18,713

Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIMHR

(defined contribution scheme) (FRBEEZEE) 636 648

Provision for long service RERGSREFE

payments, net 255 36
Provision (write-back of provision) RENA 2 FRERE
for unused annual leaves (B ERmE) 537 (124)
* Approximately HK$289,000 (30 April 2015: HK$108,000) was * #9289,0008 L (ZE—RAFWMA=+H :
included in “Brokerage and commission expenses” in the 108,000/ 7T) Bt AfraBmk 2 [ 4
consolidated statement of profit or loss. R AR
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAERA—BE - T—AF+-_A=+—H LM

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. EEH
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-HF —T-F
EA—HZE AA—H=E
—E-hF —E—RF
+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FiET
(Restated)
(F&&E5))
Continuing operations h%@*‘“%iﬁ
Interest on bank loans RITERZFIE 22 10
Interest on finance leases raﬂéffﬁfZﬂ B - 1
Interest on other loans HERZFE 1,338 2,167
Interest on loan from the intermediate R AR &2 52
holding company 30,390 -
Imputed interest expense on MR RECHEEN SR
Convertible Notes (note 31) (FzE31) 1,913 7,698
33,663 9,876
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12.

118

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12.

REMUNERATION
Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the period/
year is as follows:

EERESTHRAEME

B/ FAZEERESTTRAEMEMT

1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-FE —ZE—JOF
ER—HZE TH—H=
—E—FEF —E—REF
+=—BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fees W 746 1,650
Other emoluments: HibEN g -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e FUHREYAE
in kind 1,613 -
Retirement benefits RKAE A 73 -
Discretionary bonuses BIEIEAL 321 -
2,007 -
2,753 1,650
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERBEITBRAEME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the period/ B/FR REER EMRAREERT
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the RPIBEZESRERTRARMESNT
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Ms. Cheng Yan
Chief executive (appointed on
Mr. Liu Mr. Jiang Mr. Fu Ms. Zhou 13 October
Mr. Xiong Hao Xiaodong Rongjian Jiwen Baoying 2015 and Total
(appointedon  (appointedon  (appointedon  (resignedon  (resigned on resignedon 1 May 2015 to
2 September 6 August 6August  2September 2 September 12 November 31 December
2015) 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015
BRzt
(A=2-1%
tEt=A @
THER BZfE &R —2-1f
fERE EREE BREEE BEEE BEZzt “2-1f HA-HE
(R=2-1% (A=%-1% (W=%-2Ff (W=%-3F (R=%-3F +-A+zH “2-1%
hA-REZH) NAABEZE) NERREZEfR) AAZEEE) NAZHEAE) BfE) tzA=t-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR TER TER TER
(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS @) #17Es
Fees we o = = 370 | - a1
Other emoluments: Eftde -
Salaries, allowances and e 2HREMNE
benefits in kind 324 586 550 - - 153 1,613
Discretionary honuses WA 138 - 183 - - - 32
Retirement benefits SEINER| 6 4 2% - - - 73
Sub-total Nt 468 627 759 370 | 153 2,418

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries. Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is also the Chief executive of the Company during

the period.

FRARTRATEREZMETEREEARR
AINEMBRARIEBRERE - BN FEER
SRR RITHAEE -
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERBEITBRAEMS (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Mr. Zhu Mr. Chen Wai Mr. Tse Dr. Wong Total
Chengwu Chung, Edmund Yung Hoi  Tin Yau Kelvin 1 May
(resigned on (resigned on  (appointed on  (appointed on 2015 to
23 October Mr. Yeung 23 October 23 October 23 October 31 December
2015) Siu Keung 2015) 2015) 2015) 2015
F-b
REREE REmLE HEBrE BEXWEL —E-1F
(R=2-1%F (R=%-2% (R=ZT-1F (R-B-IFf TR-RE
TA=t=H tA=t=B tA=tZH t+A=t=H “%-1%
) BoR%EE 2:3) Ezf) Ezff) +tZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TERL TEn
(b) INDEPENDENT NON- (h) BIFBTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ki 101 80 58 48 48 335
Other emoluments: 2@ :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥¢ 2UREYHE
kind - - - - - -
Discretionary bonuses Bygea - - - - - -
Retirement benefits RIEH - - - - - -
Sub-total Nt 101 80 58 48 48 335
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments LI RBERTES e B E Y
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of EARRRESERA -
the Company.
Total @t 2,753
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERBETHRAEMS (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)
Mr. Fu Ms. Zhou
Jiwen Baoying Total
(resigned on (resigned on 1 May 2014
2 September 2 September to 30 April
2015) 2015) 2015
wEt
—T—OF
HEEC kA BERLZ L HA—AZE
(R=ZZ—A%F (R=Z—A%F —T—RF
NLA = HEHE) FLAZBEHE) mA=+A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET
(a) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (@ BTES
Fees we 1,080 120 1,200
Other emoluments: HinB & :
Salaries, allowances and e FUR
benefits in kind WA _ _ _
Discretionary bonuses YIS TEAL - - -
Retirement benefits RIREF - - -
Sub-total et 1,080 120 1,200
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were FHATATES 2 e FZHEEAR
mainly for their services in connection with the A HEMBARISHBEHA -
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

—hAFRA—HE=E

—HE+ZA=1+—RLLHH

12. EZRESTRAEME (F)

Mr. Chen
Mr. Zhu Wai Chung,
Chengwu Edmund Total
(resigned on (resigned on 1 May 2014
23 October Mr. Yeung 23 October to 30 April
2015) Siu Keung 2015) 2015
HEt
FAEREE PRIGTA S 4 —T—UEF
(RZZ—HF (R=ZT—0F hA—AZE
+A-+=H +A=-+=8 —E-0F
BT B REE B ) MA=+AH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHAT FHET FHT
(b) INDEPENDENT NON- (b) BIYFHTES
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Fees ik 210 120 120 450
Other emoluments: Hinie
Salaries, allowances e 2MR
and benefits in kind EWHE - _ _ _
Discretionary bonuses EIETEAT - - - -
Retirement benefits RIKEF - - - -
Sub-total NEF 210 120 120 450

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of

BRI FRITES M T E AN
EARBEEEM -

the Company.

Total @5t 1,650
Apart from the directors, the Group has not classified any other BRESIN AEEREBE-_T—AF+=
person as a chief executive during the period ended 31 A=+—BILHBHEEBE_Z—HFMNA

December 2015 and year ended 30 April 2015. There was no
arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the period
(year ended 30 April 2015: Nil).
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

E—RFRA—HEZZT

13.

The five highest paid employees did not include any directors
for the period ended 31 December 2015 and included one
director for the year ended 30 April 2015, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the period of the five (year ended 30 April
2015: four) highest paid employees who are non-directors of

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

TEBEHES

BE-_Z-—AF+-_A=+—H8I-HH -
TEBEeHFRETITBETLMES MR

HEZ

T-HFMUA=+TRHILFE 1%

BEOFEENEE—RESE HMEHS
HREXWF12 - BRAK (BE=-Z—1
FMAZ+THILFE IR AR AHRSH

the Company are as follows: FEEREZHMESFBOT
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-HF —F
AR—HZE hA—HZE
—E-HE —E—RF
+=A=+-—8H MA=+8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Salaries and other benefits %F K E A a7 5,802 6,793
Pension scheme contributions R B 156 173
5,958 6,966
The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose BATHEMER Y RSHEESERE A
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: HMT
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-HE —F
AR—H=ZE hA—HZE
—EB-fHE —T—hF
+=—A=+—H MA=+H
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAE EBEAH
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 A 7T 1,000,000 4 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T 2 1,500,000 7 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7% 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T & 2,500,000 4 7T 1 1
5 4
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

124

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(year ended 30 April 2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable

profits arising in Hong Kong during the period.

For the year ended 30 April 2015, no provision for Hong Kong
profits tax has been made as certain of the Group's
subsidiaries operated in Hong Kong have available tax losses
brought forward from prior years to offset the assessable
profits generated during that year.

14. FISHAX (ER)
HAW - RBEB R 5T 1E R PR IR
R165% (BE_ZE—RAFENA=+tHILF
[ : 16.5%) SRR BB FSTEAE -

BHE-_ZT-—AFOA=+THIEFE AR
AEEREAREZETHRARBR A
EF R AT AR HZF EPTEERRY G
Mz BIRER B EHER BN EHE
=

1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-REF —ZE O
HFHA—HZE AEA—B=ZE
—E-AEF —E—RF
+=H=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHxT FHEIT
Continuing operations HEREEK
current tax: BIEARLIA
Hong Kong BE 7,183 -
Overprovision in prior years: BEFEBREERE
Hong Kong BB (8) @)
7,175 (7)
Deferred tax (note 32) EFERIE (M 5E32) 13,515 -
20,690 (7)
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued) 14. FEHMAX (ER) (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense (credit) applicable to profit BARQNRBEMEE B Z AT HETE
(loss) before tax at the statutory rate of Hong Kong, where the ZBRBREF (BE) maRRERY (EE)
Company is headquartered, to the tax expense (credit) is as ERIERY (Ke) 2 YWEENT ¢
follows:
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-REF —EF-NF
ERA—HZE AA—B=Z=
—E-HE —EFE-RHF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
(Restated)
(&&E5))

Profit (loss) before tax from continuing

FEEEEBZBRBA

operations @Al (EE) 175,905 (70,542)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% WEEMEN6.5% 18 2118 29,024 (11,639)
Income not subject to tax BRI 2 WA (16,169) (19)
Expenses not deductible for tax PAIHOR 2 X 5,444 12,908
Overprovision in prior year BEFEHBERE (8) @)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods ) Fa &1 BRI 2 I8 &5 18 (6,064) (3,683)
Tax losses not recognised REERZ TIAREIE 8,773 2,364

Tax effect of deductible temporary

difference

THRHEE 2 HH S
(310) 69

Tax expense (credit)

MR (%) 20,690 7)
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15.

126

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
DISTRIBUTED GROUP

On 30 January 2015, the Company entered into a conditional
subscription agreement (which was later supplemented by the
supplemental subscription agreements dated 20 March 2015
and 20 May 2015) with CHIH (the “Subscriber”), pursuant to
which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
1,702,435,038 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.275
per subscription share (the “Subscription”). One of the
conditions precedent for the completion of the Subscription is
that the Company shall undergo a group reorganisation as set
out in the subscription agreement (the “Group Reorganisation”)
and effect the Distribution in Specie.

On 23 March 2015, the Company announced details of the
Group Reorganisation and the Distribution in Specie. As at 30
April 2015, the assets and liabilities related to the Distributed
Group have been classified as held for distribution to owners
and the results of the Distributed Group have been presented
as discontinued operations in the annual financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2015. The principal
activities of the companies which comprise the Distributed
Group are bullion and forex contracts broking and trading,
provision of finance lease, pawn loan, medium and short term
financing services and financial consultation services.

The Group Reorganisation and the Distribution in Specie were
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at
a special general meeting held on 24 July 2015. The completion
of the Distribution in Specie was conditional on certain pre-
conditions which were specified in the Company’s circular
dated 30 June 2015.

Details of the Group Reorganisation and the Distribution in
Specie were set out in the Company’s circular dated 30 June
2015. As at 3 August 2015, all the pre-conditions were fulfilled,
and thus, the distribution of shares of MSL to the then owners
of the Company pursuant to the Distribution in Specie became
effective and unconditional on 3 August 2015.

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015

15.

BALEEEBRES RES

R-ZE—HE—A=+RH AAFEFH
HERBRR IR ([RIES DRI B R
WE(EEKERA-—E—RE=A-+H
M-_E-RAFRA-t+HZERREE
) Bt REFERHERERBERE
RAIBRGRERRAEETRIBERS
0.275 7 T g 3%} 2517 1,702,435,038 A% 1 1%
D(REBEE]) - TRABEHEZHF—
T8 SE R AN A B B AR R SR I 1 At
HTEREA(EEEL]) KEYDIK

RZE—RAF=A=+=H £ARAE
SEHEARBEYORZFE - R_F—H
FOA=1H FHEKIREEZEER
BEEOBAKIEDRTHEEA  MED
EEBZEZECRNAEEBRE_T—RF
MA=THIFEZFEVBERREIN A
ERIEEEER - AR IREBRZZE
RAZEIBEBRES MINESH 2 KL
REE RUBMEEES #AEER $H
Ko 55 BRR A AR 7% A B B TS R R AR S o

SEBAREY D KEARRE LR
TE-RFEEA-TMARTZRRER
Rk - B IKBFARB RN
T-RAFRNA=TRZBHMIBETE
RIGIHEZRR - TTETTK ©

EHEBEEAREND RZFBEHNAER
AESMA—ZE—RAENAZ+THZBEH-
WZE—HFENAZB ' FiBEREHD
EER - BIMSLER D IR B E W 5 IR E D IR
FARRBEEAER-_T—RAFNA=H
TR PK B AR



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
AR A B ISR R MY EE

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND 15. ERUEREXBREDIKER ()
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)
The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit REEEERRZUEBBTEEES - HE
or loss have been restated to re-present as if the discontinued B RIS EEB N LR AR RAR D&
operation had been discontinued at the beginning of the BRI HREH LY - KROIFEEBMPNAL
comparative period. The results of the Distributed Group for B/ FEZEEZFAT -

the period/year are presented below.

1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
3.8.2015 30.4.2015
—E-hF —E—MF
EFA—HZE AHR—HB=Z=
—E-hF —E-HF
NA=H mMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBxT FHETT
(Restated)
(#£&E7)
Revenue WA 30,945 198,893
Other income and gains or losses, net B g A R z5sk & 18,558
(note (iii)) D)) 9,599 2,684
Brokerage and commission expenses 42 R4 B sL (23) (667)
Administrative and other operating TR R B b4 e i =2
expenses (21,312) (91,858)
Provision for impairment of finance R ERE ERRERIRR
leases receivable, and loans and B EREFE
accounts receivable, net (9.818) (84,321)
Finance costs BEEM (1,685) (4,536)
Profit before tax from discontinued B EER 2 R AR T
operations 7,706 20,195
Income tax expense FriS®iF sz (2,348) (16,288)
Profit after tax from discontinued BRI EER 2 BRTRE R T
operations 5,358 3,907
Loss on reclassification of available-for- 7k MSLEF G148 5k 5 E
sale investment revaluation reserve EFOBEIHEERE
in relation to the Distributed Group EAERFEE 2 EE
upon distribution of MSL (1,511) -
Loss on reclassification of foreign D REE G INE B E EER
currency translation reserve from EmENHEEERE CEE
equity to profit or loss in relation to
Distributed Group (10,604) -
Income tax expenses arising on transfer 23 4% /K & B FrE 4 AT 15
of the Distributed Group (note (ii) ME (M) (9,061) -
(Loss) profit for the period/year from BRIMHSEER M,/ FE
discontinued operations (E8B)&=F (15,818) 3,907
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)

128

Notes:

(0]

(iif)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value of
the shares of MSL distributed to the shareholders of the
Company approximated the carrying value of the net assets of
the MSL Group of approximately HK$1,117,751,000 as at 3
August 2015. The difference between the carrying amount of the
net assets of the MSL Group and the fair value of the shares of
MSL was considered insignificant by the directors. The fair value
of shares of MSL As at 3 August 2015 was estimated by
independent valuer using market approach based on price-to-
book ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of
marketability. The valuer used a price-to-book ratio of 1.17 and a
lack of marketability discount of 15% was adopted for the
valuation of MSL Group.

Management of the Company are of the view that the
Restructuring of the Group would be subject to “Bulletin of the
State Administration of Taxation on Issues of Enterprise Income
Tax on Indirect Transfer of Assets by Non-resident Enterprises”
(“Bulletin 7”) and taxable in China. An amount of HK$9,061,000
in tax provision has been made for the current period. The
provision was determined based on the estimated fair market
value of MSL shares (determined by management of the
Company using the net carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities of Distributed Group). The fair market value attributable
to the PRC taxable assets was then determined by reference to
the fractional amount of net asset value of the Chinese Entities
compared to the total net asset value as of 31 October 2014.
The applicable tax rate of 10% is then applied after taking into
account deductible costs.

Amount of HK$9,061,000 was recognised as other income from
Mr. Cui Zhanhui (“Mr. Cui”) in relation to the PRC tax liabilities.
On 26 June 2015, the Company and Mr. Cui, one of the existing
beneficial owners of the Company, entered into a deed of
indemnity, pursuant to which Mr. Cui has undertaken to fully
compensate and indemnify the loss which may be suffered by
the Company by reason of, among other things, any tax liability
that may be incurred pursuant to applicable laws and in
connection with the reorganisation and distribution of the MSL
Group. Mr. Cui shall fully indemnify the Company on a dollar-to-
dollar basis against any loss, taxation, claims, liability, costs,
expenses, penalty, etc. suffered by the Company by reason of
any matters in connection with the reorganisation and
distribution of the MSL Group. By virtue of the deed of indemnity
and the tax provision made under Bulletin 7 (see (ii) above), the
Group recognised HK$9,061,000 as the amount due from Mr. Cui
(included in other receivables as at 31 December 2015).
Management of the Company considered the recoverability of
the amount due from Mr. Cui is satisfactory.
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)

15. BRLEERBERESIRERE ()

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Distributed "HOREERDEABEANR - —HFN
Group as at the date of distribution and as at 30 April 2015 are R=TRHZEERGEZEZ2HEAINOT :
as follows:
3.8.2015 30.4.2015
—E-—AE —E—RF
NA=H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
(Restated)
(F&&E5)
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment L E Y 3,434 4,699
Goodwill RS 22,279 22,279
Available-for sale investments AHRPERE 115,163 1,490
Finance leases receivable Bl mERE 115,106 134,548
Loans and accounts receivable B R EBIRTR 891,729 871,415
Prepayments, deposits and TEfIIE - Bl &k
other receivables H IR 3K 16,850 9,066
Tax recoverable AU e A 16 16
Restricted bank balances IR IR TR AR 147 13,732
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEER 87,474 115,195
1,252,198 1,172,440
Liabilities =L
Accounts payable JE T BR K (195) (17,316)
Other payables and accruals E TR R IERT B (54,276) (29,040)
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEEE (70,975) (78,813)
Tax payable FET IR (9,001) (9,001)
(134,447) (134,170)
Net assets of the Distributed Group Ky REB 2 BEFE 1,117,751 1,038,270
Amount recognised in other S REFEFEZFBAIRN
comprehensive income and Eme2EREER &
accumulated in equity directly REZRRT 28
related to Distributed Group
Negative currency translation reserve BEYNEBRERE (10,604) (8,983)
Negative available-for-sale investment B aHt HER E S (L H
revaluation reserve (1,511) -
Net cash outflow arising on BN IRELEZ RS RLFRE
distribution in specie
Cash and cash equivalents relinquished »RIRE MIR&ZEHEEB 87,474 N/ATiE R
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15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND 15. BERUEREXBREDIKER ()
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)
The net cash flows incurred by the Distributed Group which are
included in the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group are as follows:

FRARKEGARERER ZEDIRE
ZIREREFREMT

JiE]

130

1.5.2015 1.5.2014

to to

3.8.2015 30.4.2015

—E—-HF —E-EF

ERA—HZE TH—H=

—E-0F ZE—hF

NA=H MA=+H

HK$’000 HK$'000

F#ExT FH&T
Operating activities R 586 (340,418)
Investing activities WEEE (10,902) 85,898
Financing activities BhEEE) (19,008) 195,835
Net cash outflow WE ML FEE (29,324) (58,685)
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)
The Distributed Group's (loss) profit before tax from KR REECRIHELEEB 2 BT AT (EE)
discontinued operations is arrived at after charging (crediting): S A TN, (GEA) U TS BmER :

15. BRLEERBERESIRERE ()

1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
3.8.2015 30.4.2015
—E-HF —T-F
Ef-AE  RBA-A=Z
—E-REF —E-hF
NA=H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Interest income FLEUA (26) (759)
Foreign exchange differences, net e N Z 55 165 (649)
Depreciation e 889 2,819
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE - BER
plant and equipment REHEB ZEBE 56 12
Minimum lease payments KEMHRERS
under operating leases:
Office premises /N 2,777 11,034
Office equipments PRERRE 27 90
2,804 11,124
Fair value gains on equity investments AR BETABREY
at fair value through profit or loss BAKE 2 A EEKE (57) (67)
Auditor’s remuneration 1% EREN N & 126 475
Employee benefit expenses EERNAYZ (TBREZEER
(excluding directors’ and E=THRAEME) :
chief executive’s remuneration)
Salaries and other benefits e MEMBET 9,844 45,615
Pension scheme contributions IR ET B R
(defined contribution scheme) (TrafttaataD 120 477
Write-back of provision for long REIBR TS & BB R R 558
service payments, net (2) 39)
(Write-back of) provision RAEERGBER), B
for unused annual leaves (5) 34
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND 15. CRLEREXEBREDIKEE (F)
DISTRIBUTED GROUP (continued)
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
3.8.2015 30.4.2015
—B-hF —E-EF
BA—HBZE AHA—HZE
—E-RF —E—h%F
NA=H WMA=+H
(Restated)
(FeE3%1))
(Loss) earnings per share: Sk (E8E) BF
Basic, from the discontinued ER(BRIEEEER)
operations HK(0.65) cent #&flll  HK0.27 cent &1l
Diluted, from the discontinued BE (B RIEEEET)
operations HK(0.64) cent &4l  HK0.27 cent /&1l
The calculations of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share BRI EEB s BRERREE (EE)
from the discontinued operations are based on: BATIRBE AT SIERE
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
3.8.2015 30.4.2015
—E-HF —E-mEF
HA—HZE AR—H=E
—E-HF —ET—hF
NA=H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&TT

(Loss) profit attributable to owners of KAFIHA AEY

the Company from the discontinued BRIEEEER Y (B518) &5

operations (15,818) 3,907
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EsT E@AREAR (F518) &7

shares in issue during the period/year 7 83 /4F A B 21T 3@ A% hNiE

used in the basic (loss) earnings per T E(FEE17)

share calculation (note 17) 2,430,365 1,458,193
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{Est &G #E (1) 27

shares in issue during the period/year 7 BB, /4 A2 32474 i PR AN

used in the diluted (loss) earnings per EHE(MIEE17)

share calculation (note 17) 2,490,365 1,458,193
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. RE
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-EF —E—F
BA—BZE AR—A=Z
—E—FHEF —T—HhHEF
+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Special dividend — HK$0.15 per RIS — SR EEA0.15 8 T
ordinary share - 236,351
Special dividend by way of the LAE SRS RS —K
Distribution in Specie of shares B8 A B (9 < B RIAR B
in a subsidiary (defined and (BERBERWE5)
explained in note 15) 1,117,751 -
Pursuant to the approval by the shareholders of the Company BEARFRENR-_ZE—RAFELA=-+T
at the special general meeting held on 24 July 2015, the AT ZREFRRE 2 #E& - KARR
Company distributed the ordinary shares of MSL to the —E-AFN\A=ZHREKEEDIRKRMSLEE
shareholders on 3 August 2015. A% °
The amount of dividends is based on the carrying amount of BESEDNEENDREBR DR EE
the net assets of the Distributed Group amounting to SHERMEE117,751,0008 TEE - &5
HK$1,117,751,000 at the time of distribution. Details of the IREEREREZFIEHNMGES -
asset and liabilities distributed are set out in note 15.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final EETERI T RAFRA—HE_-Z
dividend for the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 —hAF+ZA=+—B I BERMN TR
(1 May 2014 to 30 April 2015: Nil). HRe(ZE—NFRA—HZ=-_Z—h1F
MA=+H:Z)-
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17.

134

B IR M R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

—hAFRA—HE=E

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share
from continuing and discontinued operations are based on the
following data:

17.

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

RAREEABRGEERERN (FR)

REBECERER LSRR
REABRESRERLEEEHZ ERE
A B AE AR (598) YR T a5

1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-hfF —F-mF
ERA—HZE AA—B=Z=
—E-HF —E—RF
+=HA=+-—8” MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Restated)
(reE5))
Earnings (loss) X (E8)
Profit (loss) for the period/year REsTESRERZF 2
attributable to owners of the Company AR A% A AFEIEEAN,F R
used as earnings for the purpose of s (E518)
basic earnings per share calculation 139,397 (66,628)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BrE#sTRR o 22
shares:
N/A
Interest on Convertible Notes issued BEETUREREERZFE 1,913 T EA
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of RERTE S REERF (BE)
dilutive earnings (loss) per share 2 B (E518) 141,310 (66,628)

Number of shares

& E
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—REF —ET—hF
+=HA=+—H MAB=+H
‘000 ‘000
T F &
Number of shares BoEAE
Weighted average number of ordinary BEstEBIRERERN 2 @Bk
shares for the purpose of basic N9 2 (BT 5E 15)
earnings per share calculation (note 15) 2,430,365 1,458,193
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BT BRERBEEE N/A
shares on Convertible Notes issued Tk & 60,000 @A
Weighted average number of ordinary ﬁﬁ{’Ea EgREERN 2
shares for the purpose of dilutive AR hn i FI5 B (M 5E15)
earnings per share calculation (note 15) 2,490,365 1,458,193
In calculating the diluted loss per share figures presented for R BHE_ZT-—AFMA=THLFE

the year ended 30 April 2015, no adjustment has been made in
respect of the dilution impact of the outstanding Convertible
Notes issued as their assumed conversion would have an anti-
dilutive effect.
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AR e SRR M RE

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

17. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (l0ss) per
share from continuing operations attributable to the owners of

17. XAFEBAEBEBRER (BR)
(/&)

REFEREXLK
ARRHEBEANBIERERBBEREEBZE
BREAR LGSR (ER) THREA T 8E

the Company is based on the following data: Ec
1.5.2015 1.5.2014
to to
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-hfF —E—OF
BA—HBZE AA—H=E
—E-HF —E—hF
+=ZA=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(Fg &%)
Earnings (loss) 27 (E8)
Profit (loss) for the period/year RAREE NG, FEEH
attributable to owners of the Company  (&518) 139,397 (66,628)
Adjusted for: Loss (profit) for the period/ #FE : KB RIHEE %KY
year from discontinued operations R, FEEE CER) 15,818 (3,907)
Profit (loss) for the purpose of basic METERAFBEEER 2 EBR
earnings (loss) per share from AEREF (BE) 2aF (BE)
continuing operations 155,215 (70,535)
Effect of dilutive potential BEEELBR TR
ordinary shares:
Interest on Convertible Notes issued BT MR ER 2 8 N/A
1,913 ANiE A
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of dilutive FtEtERAZHERLL LB BK
earnings (loss) per share from BSE AN (BE) 2 &7 (BE)
continuing operations 157,128 (70,535)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from discontinued operations is HK0.65
cent per share (30 April 2015: earnings of HK0.27 cent per
share) and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations
is HK0.64 cent per share (30 April 2015: earnings of HK0.27 cent
per share).

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share.

PR o EE EXFHRAE EEREAR
wHEN (BEB) E8R -

RECKIEREEK
REEREREER 2 BREANBERAE
PO6SEM(ZE—RAFOA=1TH : 8K
EN0.278M) - URKREERIEEER
ZEREESERATR04EIN( T -1
FOA=1TAH : GRAHNO0.2778l)

FrAo &R EXFRAEESRERR
wHERN (ER)E8R -

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH 135



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR MR

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. W% BERRE

Furniture,
equipment
Leasehold and motor
improvements vehicles Total
HEWE B - BB
#£1& kARE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FERT
31 December 2015 R-ZE-"E+=-A=+—H
COST BAE
At 1 May 2015 RZE—AFHEA—H 4,389 10,516 14,905
Additions NE 184 2,746 2,930
Disposals HE (935) (1,563) (2,498)
Transferred from Distributed HREREEDREE
Group during the period 256 54 310
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H 3,894 11,753 15,647
ACCUMULATED Rt ERAMAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2015 R-ZE—RAFHA—H (3,889) (10,265) (14,154)
Depreciation provided HINITERE
during the period (310) (239) (549)
Disposals HE 935 1,540 2,475
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hE+ZA=1T—H (3,264) (8,964) (12,228)
CARRYING VALUES IREFE
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+-A=+—H 630 2,789 3,419
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. W% - BERRE (&)

(continued)
Furniture,
equipment
Leasehold and motor
improvements vehicles Total
HEME M - BRAE
£ RAaE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
30 April 2015 R-ZZE-HEEWMA=+AH
COST BAE
At 1 May 2014 R—E—MEHRA—H 10,954 20,480 31,434
Additions NE 2,890 1,272 4,162
Disposals HE (3,450) (2,422) (5,872)
Exchange adjustments 0 5 3% 21) ) 27)
Transferred to assets included EBRETADEARBE
in disposal groups classified DERTHEEAZLESE
as held for distribution Z B EE (FiI3E15)
to owners (note 15) (5,984) (8,808) (14,792)
At 30 April 2015 RZE—RFNA=1H 4,389 10,516 14,905
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Bt ERFEME
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 May 2014 R-ZE—MEHA—H 8,471 17,490 25,961
Depreciation provided FRITERB
during the year 1,959 1,821 3,780
Disposals HE (3,319) (2,175) (5,494)
Transferred to assets included BRI AN EAEE
in disposal groups classified DERTHEEAZHESEE
as held for distribution to B (fzE15)
owners (note 15) (3,222) (6,871) (10,093)
At 30 April 2015 RZE—RFNA=1H 3,889 10,265 14,154
CARRYING VALUES REFE
At 30 April 2015 W-ZE—REMA=+H 500 251 751

The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt BERZREEB AERERIA

depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per THEERFTE :
annum:
Leasehold improvements — 25% or over the lease terms, THEWHERE  25% R (RS
whichever is shorter ERLE)
Furniture, equipment 25% t0 33% R BEN 25% 2= 33%
and motor vehicles e
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

19. OTHER LONG TERM ASSETS 19. HERHBEE
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-H%F —E—RF
+=—HA=+-—8” MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Deposits with The Stock Exchange of EEBAEZSMARA A
Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK"): (BB s
Compensation Fund BEAS 293 293
Fidelity Fund ERES 250 250
Admission fee paid to Hong Kong NFEBPREEFRARZ
Securities Clearing Company Limited A2 & 250 250
Deposit with the Guarantee Fund MAPREERIBEFRREES
of the Central Clearing and {E Z 3R
Settlement System 2,691 1,750
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of SEHK — ZF/BE s FrEifE s E Ay
Options Clearing House Limited ERARZFEESRS 1,524 1,636
Deposit with the Reserve Fund of BEHREHEERRRAFIZ
Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing &4 iE4e
Corporation Limited 1,645 1,962
6,653 6,141
20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE
Trading Other
rights licences Total
BEER% Htthg i st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THET TAT
cosT BAE
At 1May 2014 and 30 April 2015 R-ZE—NFRA—H
RZE-RFMNA=+H 20,171 - 20171
Additions NE - 2,428 2,428
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF+-A=+—H 20,171 2,428 22,599
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT ZiHRE
At beginning and end of years/period  RE /BRI R/ HiER 17,821 - 17,821
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+-_A=1+—H 2,350 2,428 4,778
At 30 April 2015 RZZE-RFMA=+H 2,350 - 2,350
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B B ERAM R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

21.

The trading rights represents the eligibility rights to trade on or
through the SEHK and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited
and have no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
Group can use to generate net cash flows. As a result, the
trading rights are considered by the management of the Group
as having indefinite useful lives because they are expected to
contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely. The trading rights
will not be amortised until their useful lives are determined to
be finite. Instead, they will be tested for impairment annually
and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.
No impairment is considered necessary.

Other licences used for the Group's operations are expected to
be renewable without significant cost. Therefore, licences are
considered by the management of the Group as having
indefinite useful lives. These licences will not be amortised until
their useful lives are determined to be finite. Instead, they will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired. No impairment is
considered necessary.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

20.

21.

BREE (&)
RABENRREBRERIMRBENE
RHMBRABETR G ZAEREN
AEERANELERSREFHE  ®AXA
THRIEARR S - Fitt - AEBEERERA
HREHERAR I KAEHREZRE
FE MGFEAAERAERFY  -HEE
HuE BEMRERERA - BEXSHE
AT H#E - ESESFRIRERE - A
AL RBRATREHERE - BRI
2 FEORE ©

AREBEBIR 2 LR RIEH A TE&
MAERERKA « Bt - AEEERE
RAZSERAGERAEREH - ZF
RS TEE  BEEHEERFINE
BBER  WEBESFHIRENH - UFE
BEGRBRAELIRRE - BATILES
ERE -

BARBEFABERZEMEE

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—FEF —E—HF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Non-current: FEmED
Unlisted investments ELEMIRE
Convertible bonds, at fair value #gRES (AR EE)
(note (i) (HE=E@)) 313,418 -
Current; e
Listed investments EHiRE
Equity investments, at fair value RAKE (RANEE)
(note (ii) GEID)) 435,958 1,451
Unlisted investments ELTIRE
Put option of a listed equity ERAE 2 RO HAE
investment, at fair value (note (iii)) (LA EE) (HEE) 2,388 -
438,346 1,451

E Fh B R
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A —ZE—HFHA—HE_-FT

21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes:

(i) On 12 November 2015, the Group acquired unlisted convertible
bonds, with principal amount of HK$275,000,000 which was

issued by an independent party, a listed company in Hong Kong,
and bears fixed interest rate of 4% per annum payable quarterly,

and matures on 12 November 2017, extendable at the issuer’s

sole and absolute discretion, to 12 November 2018 with initial

conversion price of HK$0.77 per share. The convertible bonds
are freely transferrable. The fair value of the convertible bonds
amounted to approximately HK$313,418,000 as at 31 December
2015, which was estimated by an independent firm of

professional valuer. The Group does not expect that the

convertible bonds will be transferred to third parties by the
Group within the next twelve months and has accordingly
classified the convertible bonds as a non-current asset.

as at 31 December 2015 and 30 April 2015.

(iif)

The above equity investments were classified as held for trading

On 30 December 2015, the Group purchased a put option at a

consideration of approximately HK$2,388,000 which gives the
Group the right to require the issuer of the options, an

independent third party, to purchase a maximum of 45,920,000
shares of a listed company in Hong Kong, at exercise price of

HK$5.2 per share. The option is exercisable any time within 1

year before the maturity date on 30 December 2016.

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

—HE+ZA=1+—RLLHH

BAREEFAESRZEHEE

(%)
e

(i)

(iif)

R-ZT—AF+—A+=-8 AEEKRE
H—XEBLTRARCBYE =) %72
JEEm AR ES - ARE %A 275,000,000
BT BEFRIBZETEFRFE A
REEEBYN -_Z—+F+—A+=8
FER - ATIREIT A Z ME— RBETIBEIR
NHEHBEBEROT7ATEHE—Z— N\
F+—A+t=ZH TBERESFTEHE
FEoAIBRRES I AREBER-T—RTF
+= A =+—H#% %313,418,000% 7T

TR B BEMEMATHET - NEETEH
RART ZEARERM BT EEATRR
BHEFE=F BB ARERESFSER

IERBEE ©

RZZE—h&+_A=+—HE=Z—
i@ﬂ +8- tph$&§“ﬁﬁ%¢
RZE—RAF+ZA=1+H  AEEUR

B 492,388,000 JL B8 B ARG F - BE
AEBMAEESKBERITABIE=R)
L\)\fﬂf BERS2ETEE —RKEBELM

TEE‘%45920000H§H§T o ZAARERT IR
—ANFE+-A=THEHE—FR
BERFTTIE ©

—?

22. IHEERE

31.12.2015 30.4.2015

—E-HE —E—RF

+=A=+—H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT FHET

Listed equity investments, at fair value A ERE - HAREBE - 96,453
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

22.

23.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

During the period, the gain in respect of changes in fair value
of the Group's available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive income/expense amounted to
approximately HK$75,534,000 (30 April 2015: HK$7,874,000 fair
value loss), of which a gain of approximately HK$96,859,000 (30
April 2015: a loss of HK$14,721,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss upon disposal and HKS$Nil (30 April 2015: loss of
approximately HK$16,377,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss upon impairment.

During the period, the Group disposed of approximately
HK$69,214,000 available-for-sale investments to independent
third parties and transferred approximately HK$104,284,000
available-for-sale investments to MSL Group at market closing
price prior to its distribution.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE AND AMOUNT
DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

22.

23.

AHEERE (B

HR ASEAHEEREANEEY
FmMRAEMEEKEF T ERZ WS
/375,534,000 T(ZE—REMA=+H :
A EEFIE7,874,000/8 T) » Hrp Uk
#996,859,000/ C(—E—RAFWA=+H :
E51814,721,0008 L) R ERBREME2E
WmEmpEsmaEak mMEBT(=
T—HFMNA=1H: EE416,377,000
BT RMELRERBEMEEKEERS

BEHmeEER -

RARE  AEEERBLE =T HER
& B 469,214,000 7T - WD H
KATZ W ERMSLEEE Er &%
& #9104,284,000 7 7T

R—BBREQATAZREREN—F

il NSRS

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—-HF —E—HF
+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T
Cost of investment in an associate R—EEE QR Z B KA
Unlisted JELET 190 -

No profit or loss has arisen from the associate since the set up
of the associate, China Huarong Tianxing Oversea Acquisition
Fund 1 Limited, from 21 July 2015.

The amount due to an associate of approximately HK$190,000
as at 31 December 2015 is unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH

% & /X & China Huarong Tianxing Oversea
Acquisition Fund 1 Limited & —Z—HA%F+
AZ+— BRI AKR - I 8 = A s A
HE1E -

R-Z—AF+-_A=+—8 BN

Hsh & X RISRIA XD 190,000 8 7T A AR -
BRARENRER -
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

24. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

142

24. ERREWARR

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-0F —T—TF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Margin loans to customers MEFELEZRESERK 868,474 86,037
Accounts receivable from: KE THEIEZ BIWEREK
— securities, futures and options — %5 HENEEERY
dealing services
— clients = 9,614 30,017
— brokers, dealers and clearing — R REEREFE
houses 9,749 7,590
— corporate finance (note) — RERE () 26,366 120
914,203 123,764
Provision for impairment in relation to: B 5I|& 185 B 2 EEBE
Margin loans to customers MEFPEREZRBSER (1,951) (3,285)
Accounts receivable from: KB THEIE 2 FEWEREK -
— securities, futures and options —#%5  HERHEEERS
dealing services
— clients — 5P (220) (278)
912,032 120,201

Note: Amount included approximately HK$3,327,000 underwriting
income from the intermediate holding company and
HK$22,798,000 underwriting income from ultimate holding
company. Details are disclosed in note 41(b).

Securities, futures, options dealing services

The Group allows a credit period of up to the settlement dates
of the respective securities, futures, options transactions or a
credit period mutually agreed with the contracting parties.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables so as to
minimise credit risk. Loans for margin financing are secured by
the pledge of customers’ securities as collateral. The amounts
of credit facilities granted to them are determined by the
discounted value of securities accepted by the Group. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management. Overdue
accounts receivable bear interest with reference to the Hong
Kong dollar prime rate.
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

24.

ﬁﬁk#&%ﬁﬁ n_lI_

LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
(continued)

Securities, futures, options dealing services
(continued)

Loans to securities margin clients are secured by clients’
pledged securities with fair value of HK$5,287,325,000 (30 April
2015: HK$477,598,000). Significant portion of the pledged
securities are listed equity securities in Hong Kong. The loans
are repayable on demand subseguent to settlement date and
normally carry interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate + 1% to 15%
per annum (30 April 2015: Hong Kong Prime Rate + 1% to 15%
per annum). Securities are assigned with specific margin ratios
for calculating their margin values. Additional funds or
collateral are required if the outstanding amount exceeds the
eligible margin value of securities deposited. The collateral held
can be repledged and can be sold at the Group’s discretion to
settle any outstanding amount owed by margin clients.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 91% (30 April
2015: 58%) of the total loans to securities margin clients were
due from the Group’s five largest securities margin clients. The
balance includes an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$793,446,000 (30 April 2015: HK$50,290,000) which is neither
past due nor impaired, of which the whole amount is secured
by clients’ pledged securities with an aggregate fair value of
HK$4,654,012,000 (30 April 2015: HK$241,922,000). The Group
believes that the amount is considered recoverable given the
collaterals are sufficient to cover each balance on individual
basis.

E—RFRA—HEZZT

24.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

&R (&)
#F - HE - BEE

R % FE UL AR R
BR% (8)

BFEHFRBESCELZEFANEL 2K
?M%Wﬁﬁ ERBLF 2R REBES
5,287,3250008 L (=T —HFMA =+
A : 477,598,000 7L) ° B HEFHH KEL
DEBESLTRAZS - EHERERE
HEBBREREE  —MBRAFHEES
REEMNEMEE1SE(ZZ—RFNA
“t+H:FHEEBREENENESR
%Eﬁﬁ°ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%%iz%ﬁéﬁf
Dt EERBLEE  BREERBLRB
EFEAZELFNAERRESLEAE  Ag
ERBFPIREENESTIERR - IFE
AR @A AR mMAEE A BB
CHENEBERESEFPEMN ZIMKRE
EEE

AEENFAFTREFPREZERBEY
EERBAENB(ZE—RAFMNA=+H:

58%) '  EREAEBRAREFEFFREF °

EHRBERE—EROHAIRECLESELY
793,446,000 T (ZE—RAFMA =10 :

50,290,000/ 7T) * R 2L EHEP A

S BIELAFER4,654,012,0008 T (—E—H
FPNA=+H:24192200087w) 22 HE
WEHFIERT - AEBEEZSEERA
AE - DEREREZERGBZHER
KA o
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24. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. ERREWERR (&)
(continued)
Securities, futures, options dealing services #H - HE  HREERE(E)
(continued)
An aged analysis of the Group's accounts receivable at the end A7 B 6 i Bk AN S [ P W BR 30 (FRRORUE
of the period, based on the trade date for cash client and BE)IRAES2EP (MBERELEH 7R
settlement date for others excluding margin loans to customers FEER) 2R GEHREMEE ZEHRE
and net of provision for impairment, is as follows: HZ BRER DT T
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—ZE-hfF —ET-hF
+=ZA=+—H MA=+H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 1 month BIHAZ= — (& A 44,509 37,238
110 3 months —Z=={@A 652 28
3 months to 1 year “RBAE—%F 237 79
Over 1 year —F A 111 104
45,509 37,449
No ageing analysis is disclosed in respect of margin loans to WEFABFFPEL ZCRESEFIRERER
customers, as in the opinion of the Directors, the ageing S TTHREERA  ERIESFFER
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of B ¥BME - RS EEIMEE -

business of securities margin financing.

The movements in provision for impairment of loans and ERREWRFURERE 2 S8 T
accounts receivable are as follows:

31.12.2015 30.4.2015

—E-HF —T-0F

+=ZA=+—H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T FHIT

(Restated)

(seE5)

At beginning of period/year WERF ) 3,563 137,067
(Reversal of) provision for impairment S E RSB (B m) B 5 5a

losses, net (1,392) 684

Impairment loss provision related to S IREEBR 2

Distributed Group BEEERE - (134,165)

Exchange adjustments & 5 Fa 5 = (23)

At end of period/year AER R 2,171 3,563
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

24. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. ERKREWERR (&)

(continued)

Securities, futures, options dealing services
(continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment of loans and
accounts receivable is provision for individually impaired loans
and accounts receivable of approximately HK$2,171,000 (30
April 2015: HK$3,563,000) with carrying amounts before
provision of approximately HK$3,865,000 (30 April 2015:
HK$3,582,000). These individually impaired loans and accounts
receivable relate to customers that do not have sufficient
amount of collateral at the end of the reporting period and are
not expected to be fully recoverable.

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are past due
but not individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
is as follows:

& HE - HEEERE (R

bt g W R N BRSO B B R AR E I 2R
BERKERFRR 2 B H#2,171,000/8 7T
ZE-—AFMA=+H:3563000%
7T) - ERIEBAERT 2 BRE{EA) /33,865,000
BT(ZE—REFWHA=+H : 3582000
FBTT) © %% B 52 IR 8 e U B R e B R
RIREFETRBIETMERRmSEL
BEFER - MIEBTEEEWE -

30 % {8 5 3% B AR A RE 2 IR R TR 2
BRECDATINE -

31.12.2015 30.4.2015

—E-FE —E—RF

+=HA=+—H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FH&TT

Less than 1 month past due wETE—EA 8,141 16,025
1to 3 months past due B —=={EA 652 28
3 months to 1 year past due BE=EAE—F 231 79
Over 1 year past due BE—FL 111 104
9,135 16,236

The Directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of those receivables that
were past due but not impaired as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality or listed securities of clients
are held as collateral against certain receivables and thus the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

EEZRA MRFCBHBERBEZER
BREmME ARNEEERYBEARES Y
RAETFPZ LmEFERE TRWIAZ
Eifm  ZFEKDREST2EKRE
BRI IF AR E R
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

24. LOANS AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 24. ERKREWEERR (&)

25.

146

(continued)

Securities, futures, options dealing services

(continued)

& HE - HEEERE (R

The carrying amounts of the Group’s loans and accounts FEEERREUERZ RABERATE
receivable are denominated in the following currencies: ¥eaHE -
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-FE —E—RF
+=A=+-—H WMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Hong Kong Dollar BT 905,363 118,027
United States Dollar (“USD") ETT 6,669 2,174
912,032 120,201
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. EAFRIE SR HMEWERR
RECEIVABLES
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—FHEF —ZT—RHF
+=ZBA=+-—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Prepayments TE FOE 2,237 1,066
Deposits HES 4,137 11,389
Other receivables (Note (i) H o e AR R (B RE () 9,546 735
15,920 13,190
Note: BeE
(i) As mentioned in note 15, Mr. Cui shall fully indemnify the 0] SANB 15 AT - E R A MAR TR
Company for the tax provision made under Bulletin 7, the Group BERBE7RASED ZHEREE K
recognised HK$9,061,000 as the amount due from Mr. Cui. 7R 5 B 8 32.9,061,0007%8 7T A FE U B St
Management of the Company considered the recoverability of ZHIE o RRRIEERERABRAT LU FE
the amount due from Mr. Cui is satisfactory. Wk e 2 FE o
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

26.

27.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licenced
banks to hold clients” monies arising from its normal course of
business licenced by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the "SFC"). The Group has classified these clients” monies as
restricted bank balances under the current assets section of
the consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding amounts payable to the respective clients
on the ground that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of these client’s monies. The Group is not permitted to use the
clients” monies to settle its own obligations.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS

26.

27.

ZRHRITAEER
AEERFRIBITHRBILERRPS - U
FRERETEEFLMEEHEREZR
g((BEEDEMXBZLEXBBIET
EEXZEPHIE - AEBHZEEP KA
DBEEEAMBERAR I RBEER T Z
SRHIRITAES - WREE AR TP RIE
ZIEMRASIIBA A EEEZ ERMER
N THBEP ZHAERE - AEETE
NEFPRERBTEART ZEE -

RERRSEEEBURCERR
T

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-AEF —E—RF
+=HA=+—H mMAB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH R 3,040,911 68,337
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITFR 10,353 10,725
3,051,264 79,062

Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans i RITE R E TR
(note 30) (PfF5E30) 10,353 10,725
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEMEER 3,040,911 68,337

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$11,210,000 (30 April 2015: HK$11,432,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH

RREAETER  ASEZRS RIRTT
K82 4911,2100008 T(—E—HEW A
=+H8 11,432,000 7T) AAREE -
ARBTEBEARBAEMER Rl
B35 P B HMNE B IR K0 R A5 TE - B 0E A
EERRT  AREREZAEEETY
BEHONEEBZBITBAREL R AEME
fgg o

FRIVITZREBRBRTE B TR KR
BUZBHME - REAKEHREF/ L=
P BHESERZERENF—RE
=EATE - LAD RIHZ R R B B 17 K
R PRERA B o RITAEBR R E A7 KT
RS R A EERIFZRTT
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28. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

29.

148

28.

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable at the end of
the reporting period, based on the settlement due date, is as

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

FE 1 BR X
R & R 5

B ANEEZEMNERTIR
ERAHZ g

follows:

31.12.2015 30.4.2015

—E-hfF —E-HF

+=ZA=+-—H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FH&TT

Current to 1 month BNEfZE—(E A 602,269 294,938
The accounts payable are unsecured and repayable on the ENERAEBEALEREHEEE 2 W

settlement date of the relevant trades or upon demand from

customers.

The accounts payable included in disposal groups held for
distribution to owners (note 15) of approximately HK$195,000
(30 April 2015: HK$17,316,000) is repayable on demand or aged

within 1 month.

As at 31 December 2015, accounts payable with carrying
amount of approximately HK$566,209,000 (30 April 2015:
HK$276,154,000) are interest-bearing at bank savings deposit

HEgRE P ERER -

FABESRTFTHEBAZHESE (M T
15) 2 FEAHBRFN49 195,0008 T (—ZE— R F
WMA=+H :17,316,000/8 T) 7Bz Bk(E

ENRRE—EAN -

RZE-AF+-A=+—H KREEY

566,209,000 7T (— &

—REWHA=TH:

276,154,000/ 7T ) Z FEN R FIZIR1THE

rates. EHFES S o
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HinENSIRARETEH

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-f8F —T—HF
+=A=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET

Current portion: mENE S
Other payables (note () A A BR 30 (BT R ) 15,562 3,082
Interest payables (note (i) FEHFI B (B FE (i) 30,387 923
Accruals (note (i) FESTE A (B3 (i) 19,996 2,467
65,945 6,472

Non-current portion: EmBIEL D
Accruals fEFTE A 1,424 1,898
1,424 1,898
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

30.

—hAFRA—HE=-Z—

hFE+-A=+—HLLHM

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (continued) 29. HtENEFRRESTER (&)
Notes: (T
[0) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average (i) HEMERE TR  FHEANEA=
term of three months. Major other payables represent 8 R o REBo Bt e BR R AR TR MR TE IR
HK$9,503,000 (30 April 2015: Nil) interest received in advance ARBEFABRECSREE 2 TRR
from convertible bonds investment designated as at financial BEHILEFE.9,503,0008 L (=T —HF
assets at fair value through profit or loss. MA=+H:%Z)-
(i) Interest payables are incurred from the interest bearing loan iy ERMNEXREFHERARALLEAR
from the intermediate holding company of an aggregate amount 500,000,000 7T 2 5T B E &+ L F F &%
of US$500,000,000 at annual interest rate of 5.761%. 5761EFH 8 °
(i) Accruals mainly represent HK$15,006,000 (30 April 2015: (i) EFAERAETERENH S RIEL
HK$2,345,000) salaries and bonus payable. 15,006,000 8T (ZE—HFMA=+H :
2,345,000 7T) °
INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 30. FFTEEBE
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-EF —AF
+=-BA=+—H MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Current portion: RENEE D -
Unsecured other loans (note (i) IR E M E R (M) - 53,913
Non-current portion: EMENE D
Loan from the intermediate holding REFHEZERARZER
company (note (ii)) (B = (i) 3,875,250 -
Notes: PiE -

0]

(i)

The unsecured other loans were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and interest bearing at a fixed rate of 10% and were
repayable within one year from the end of the reporting period.
The loans were fully repaid during the period.

During the period, the intermediate holding company, CHIH
provided a loan to the Company in an aggregate amount of
US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,875,250,000) (“Company
Loan”). The loan bears annual interest rate of 5.761% and is
repayable in 3 years from the end of the reporting period.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH

0] EARARE M & T OB TTRHE L 1R B E
FI0EA R AmBmERRARRET—
FAEER - BN EREFEER -

(i) HAPY - P REEAR A B R B EE m B R A )
AN B2 4 — 28 424 %8 /5 500,000,000 3
fz(*H%Eés,m,zso,ooo;%ﬁ)zféwm
AER] - BRIRFFEK5761E5 &
Ifﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁfﬁ#ﬁﬁ«étﬁ FNEE -
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30.

31.
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B IR M R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has revolving loan facilities
which are secured by pledge of the Group'’s time deposits with
carrying amount of approximately HK$10,353,000 (30 April
2015: HK$10,725,000) (note 27). The Group has not utilised
these facilities at the end of the reporting period (30 April 2015:
Nil).

In addition, the Company has provided corporate guarantees in
respect of the Group’s banking facilities to the extent of
HK$30,000,000 (30 April 2015 HK$40,000,000). The Group has
not utilised any of these banking facilities at the end of the
reporting period (30 April 2015: Nil).

CONVERTIBLE NOTES ISSUED

On 19 February 2014, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) with a nominal
value of HK$500,000,000 to an independent third party. The
notes are convertible at the option of the noteholders into
ordinary shares within 36 months from the date of issuance of
the Convertible Notes at the initial conversion price of HK$5
per conversion share. Any Convertible Notes not converted will
be redeemed on 18 February 2017 at the outstanding principal
amounts. The conversion price for the Convertible Notes was
adjusted to HK$0.5 per share on 9 April 2014, upon completion
of the issue of bonus shares. A total principal amount of
HK$135,000,000 Convertible Notes was converted into
270,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company during the year
ended 30 April 2014. On 4 July 2014, a total principal amount of
HK$335,000,000 Convertible Notes was converted into
670,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company. In July 2014, the
independent third party has transferred his convertible notes
to Mr. Cui Zhanhui ("Mr. Cui") (£ (5 ##), a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Immediately after the conversion on 4 July 2014
and as at 31 December 2015, the outstanding principal of the
Convertible Notes issued by the Company amounted to
HK$30,000,000 which was held by Mr. Cui. The effective
interest rate is 12% per annum (30 April 2015: 12% per annum).

All outstanding Convertible Notes were subsequently converted
to ordinary shares on 7 January 2016. (See note 46).
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30.

31.

—HE+ZA=1+—RLLHH

TEEE (&)
WZZ—RAE+-_A=+—0 A&£@z
BEREZRBEUNEHAEEERTDEDN A
10,353,000 T (—ZE—REMA =10 :
10,725,000 70) (M5t 27) 2 & HiTe s 1EIR
e RIEHR AEBENABEZSH
B(ZZ—RFEMA=+H T)-

AN RRRERAREZRITRHERS
30,000,000 T (ZE—HEMA=+H :
40,000,000/ 7T ) $R 1 ZE IR o RS HA
K AEEHKRBATAZSRITRE (=
T-REMA=+H: )

ERITURERRERE
RZZE—NFE_A+hB AREIHE—H
W37 58 = J5 347 E {8 /4 500,000,000 8 7T 2
TR MR ER([ATREEE]) - ZEA]
HERSFEARAIBRERETA SR
EARNABBEBE  VIHAIBELRT
B SRR 5T o (AR KR T AR R
B2AREEASBBEN _ZT—+tF_A
+NBEE - R_Z—FEY AN BAR
BITSER S - AR BB R IRED AR
AEROSHEL HEZZT—WFHNA=1
HIEEE - AN£ 48%8 135,000,000 7T 2 7]
BT E IR B 3% 5 270,000,000 f% AN A 7 X
Bl A-E—NELANA AE A%
335,000,000 Tt 2 AT R EEE H i A
670,000,000 xR A B EiBAZ o R =Z—Y
F+A BUF=-HCALARARTERE
BB A ([ AL SR IRRERE -
EB_ZT-NFLtANALBREBEEA T
—AFE+-A=Z+—8 " ARBFAHEITZ
8 AR 4, ¥ AT 2% 52 95 AN € 58 4 30,000,000
BT AESLERE - BEREMNERE12%
(ZZE—AFWA=+H : §F12%) -

AERMALGBABREREZER
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

31. CONVERTIBLE NOTES ISSUED (continued)

Fair value of equity component on initial recognition was
determined to be approximately HK$613,000,000 using
Binomial Option Pricing Model. Valuation of the Convertible
Notes is based on certain key inputs, including 0.98% risk free
rate, 119.88% volatility, zero dividend yield, HK$17 stock price
on issuance date of the Convertible Notes, conversion price of

HK$5 per conversion share and 3 years option life.

Fair value of the liability component on initial recognition was

31.

ERITARERER (&)
RIIETER =R A < R EETIER
—_EAMEETEEAEBEE OB
613,000,0007& 7T » Al AR 2 H{E Ty iR
ETTIZEHARB(BRERRM X
0.98% ~ 18 119.88% ~ TR B F - KA
REBETHRZBRET7ET  LBRES
B S 3 R 4 578 7T I = R B R A A ER) &t
o

NMicERBEABELIPZARBEN S
355,890,000/8 7T © AL ERRFIE 12% 8437

determined to be approximately HK$355,890,000, being the
present value of the future cash flows discounted at 12%
effective interest. The fair value of the liability component is
deducted from the fair value of the instrument as a whole,
with the resulting residual amount of approximately
HK$613,000,000 being recognised as the equity component.

ZARBEEREZRE - AABEBER
DEIRE TABEZAR(EE - D

613,000,000 7% ;e B MR Atz 2l o

The movements in the liability and equity components of the

Convertible Notes as follows:

ABRER BERERI O ZEEHIT

Liability Equity
component component Total
S8EHS R Fay
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FEL FAL
At 1 May 2014 (Restated) R-ZE—NERA—H(LE5) 265,923 447,490 713,413
Imputed interest expense (note 11) HERN SR (1) 7,698 - 7,698
Conversion of Convertible Notes REBABEEE (249,141) (410,710) (659,851)

At 30 April 2015 (Restated) R-ZE—RFMA=+H

(e E3) 24,480 36,780 61,260
At 1 May 2015 (Restated) RZZE—RFRA—A(EE7) 24,480 36,780 61,260
Imputed interest expense (note 11) HEREHZ (1) 1,913 - 1,913
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-hF+-A=+—H 26,393 36,780 63,173
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the period/
year are as follows:

—hAFRA—HE=E

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

32. Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
ELRIBRERY, ER22BHNT

Temporary difference
on unrealised gain/(loss
of FVTPL investments

BRANEEFABREZ
REZFRBRKE (HER)
FIFEH
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E—REF —RF
+=B=+—-8 MA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
At beginning of the period/year i) - -
Charged to the consolidated statement  Rig& gz Mk (M 14)

of profit or loss (note 14) 13,515 -
At end of period/year FER 4R 13,515 -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$104,892,000 (30 April 2015: HK$88,475,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies in which the losses arose. The Group does
not have tax losses arising in the Mainland China as at 31
December 2015 (30 April 2015: HK$2,400,000 tax losses).
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these tax losses previously as it was not considered probable
that the tax losses can be utilised in the foreseeable future.

At 30 April 2015, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Group's subsidiaries established in
Mainland China that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these
subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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AEE B EBEETIEEE# 104,892,000
B(ZZE—RAFWMA=+H : 88,475,000
L) AR BRI ELEEBIERR Y
RRERBES RN =_FT—FHF+=-A
=t—H AEETEETFEANMEET
BEE(CE—RAFNA=1+H: HEEE
2,400,000 7T) © (AR AT KA LR A R
KRB ARIBEIE  BUCATRAREZER
BEEMRIEERIBEE -

RECZ-—RAFOA=1tHEH KAEERFTEH
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
Shares [iigv)
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-—TE —E—RF
+=HA=+—H MAB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHIT
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000,000 ordinary shares 1,000,000,000,000 Hx
of HK$0.001 each S EE0.001 BTz L@k 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE
3,278,107,918 ordinary shares of 3,278,107,918 s H AR EE
HK$0.001 each (30 April 2015: 0001 Bz EBlR(ZE—heF
1,575,672,880 ordinary shares of MA=+8 :1,575,672,880 i%
HK$0.001 each) FRRMEE0.001 Btz EiEAk) 3,278 1,576
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as AAR 2 RAGEBM AT -
follows:
Number
of shares Total value
REE #E
‘000 HK$'000
F iz FHET
At 1 May 2014 R-ZE—NFERA—H 905,673 906
Issue of new shares upon conversion HIRATR N E IR R T AR (D
of Convertible Notes (note (a)) (M3E @) 670,000 670
At 30 April 2015 and 1 May 2015 RZZE—RFMA=FTAK
—E—AFHA—H 1,575,673 1,576
Issue of new shares upon Subscription  328& EIER 21 TH IR 5
(note (b)) (FF5E (b)) 1,702,435 1,702
At 31 December 2015 R-E—FAFE+=-A=+—H 3,278,108 3,278
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33.

154

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Notes:

(@  On 4 July 2014, a total principal amount of HK$335,000,000
Convertible Notes has been converted into 670,000,000 shares
of the Company.

(b)  Pursuant to the subscription agreement and its supplemental
agreements, 1,702,435,038 subscription shares have been duly
allotted and issued to Camellia Pacific Investment Holding
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of CHIH on 31 August 2015.
Immediately after the completion of the subscription, there are
3,278,107,918 shares of the Company in issue and the
shareholding held indirectly by CHIH amounted to approximately
51.93% of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company.

Pursuant to the subscription agreement, the intermediate
holding company, CHIH provided an unconditional and
irrevocable undertaking to the Company that CHIH will provide
loans in the aggregate principal amount of US$1,000,000,000 (the
“Company Loan") to the Company within 180 days from the date
of Subscription, the terms of which will be of (i) a term of 3 years
with annual interest rate of 5.761%; and/or (i) a term of 5 years
with annual interest rate of 6.686%.

Up to 31 December 2015, a total amount of US$500,000,000
(equivalent to HK$3,875,250,000) loan from CHIH has been
drawn down by the Company. The loan bears annual interest
rate of 5.761% and is repayable in 3 years.

All shares issued during the period rank pari passu with the
then existing ordinary shares in all respects.
Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 34. BR#ESE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

The directors of the Company consider that it is important to
continue to provide eligible participants with an additional
incentive by offering them an opportunity to obtain equity
interest in the Company and to reward them for contributing to
the long-term success of the business of the Group.
Accordingly, pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting held on 9 September 2011, a new
share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was adopted to
replace the Old Scheme and the Old Scheme was terminated
with effect from 9 September 2011. The New Scheme became
effective on 9 September 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the New Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the New Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
exercise date. Any further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Share options to be granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s shares
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH
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35.

36.
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B IR M R

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain
vesting period and ends on a date which is not later than 10
years from the date of offer of the share options.

The subscription price of the share options is determinable by
the directors of the Company, but must be at least the higher
of (i) the SEHK closing price of the Company’s shares on the
date of offer of the share options which must be a business
day; and (ii) the average SEHK closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the SEHK's daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

No option has been granted or outstanding under the New
Scheme during the period ended 31 December 2015 and year
ended 30 April 2015.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior periods are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 52 and
53 of the consolidated financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings, which were
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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37.

38.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Huarong International Securities Limited (previously known as
United Simsen Securities Limited) (“HISL"), an indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company was joined as the 10th
defendant to the High Court action HCA 64/2012 commenced
by Mayer Holdings Limited (“Mayer”) as plaintiff (the “Action”)
and was served with the Re-amended Writ of Summons and
Re-amended Statement of Claim for the Action. Mayer is
claiming against HISL for damages for, among other things,
breach of contract. HISL has sought legal advice on the alleged
claims against it. Based on their understanding of the factual
background concerning the alleged claims against HISL, the
Directors consider that HISL has a defence of merit and will
therefore direct HISL to defend the alleged claims strenuously.
HISL was in the course of providing relevant information to the
High Court and there was no substantial progress as at 31
December 2015 and up to the date of authorisation for issue of
these consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other material
contingent liabilities at 31 December 2015.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group leases certain of its office properties and office
equipment under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to three
years (30 April 2015: one to five years), and those for office
equipment are for terms of five years (30 April 2015: five years).

37.

38.
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38.

39.
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

38.

REBNEE &)

RO BRI 52 4505 - AR BRI T 51 89S
B8y TS S RNALN 2 KRS
ERSREDT -

31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-FE —E—RF
+=—BA=+—H WMA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Within one year —FR 12,409 30,007
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZFENT (BEEEMT) 826 32,613
13,235 62,620
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. KEBHEAR

On 21 July 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Brilliant Focus Limited (“Brilliant”) from an
independent third party, at a total cash consideration of
RMB1,170,000 (approximately HK$1,462,000) which is
principally engaged in investment holding.

On 18 August 2015, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Skymart Global Limited (“Skymart”) from an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$1,000,000, which is principally engaged in the provision of
money lending business.
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39. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. WEBMELQR (&)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Brilliant SEERKENNEBB 2 AT#REE R
and Skymart at the date of acquisition were as follows: ABEZARBENT :
Brilliant Skymart Total
BER K& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FH&TT
Non-current asset EMENEE
Intangible assets mEE 1,462 966 2,428
Current asset MEVEE
Prepayments, deposits and BRHIE - FIE Rk
other receivables E At FE U R SR - 34 34
1,462 1,000 2,462
Net cash outflow arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is as WENBARELEZREMEFEAT
follows:
HK$'000
FH&T
Consideration paid in cash EESNRE (2,462)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired B T ER e IR SEER &R -
(2,462)
Since the acquisition, Brilliant and Skymart did not contribute BUREELAZE - BIEIE R KEW M BRI A S
to the Group's turnover or to the Group's consolidated results. BEEXBANEELEERE -
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40. COMMITMENTS

@

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 38 above, the Group had at the end of the
reporting period commitments of HK$Nil (30 April 2015:
approximately HK$13,532,000) in respect of net open
position of bullion contracts and HK$Nil (30 April 2015:
approximately HK$193,000) in respect of net open
position of forex contracts undertaken in the ordinary
course of the Group's business.

Capital commitments
Capital expenditures contracted, but not provided for at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

—hAFRA—HE=E

40. EiE

@)

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

BB b SCPM R 38 R Al 2 4% 2 A0 4 7
I RIREHETER - AEER
AREBBREPILIFATFREES
BRRIIESR D ZEAED R
REETL(ZFE-—RAFMA=1H:
#713,532,0008 7T) ROTBT(ZE
—hFMA =+ H: #193,000%
JT) e

BAEYE
NI s HAR T AR R AT RER BB
AARFETIT

31.12.2015 30.4.2015

—B-EHF —T-RF

t=A=+—-H MA=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Property, plant and equipment W -« BB KR = 1,147
Save as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting B EXHERE - RS M T4

period, the Group did not have any significant
commitments.

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

160

@)

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The emoluments paid to the directors of the Company,
who are the key management personnel of the Group,
are included in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(o)

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group did not
have any material transactions with related parties during
the year ended 30 April 2015.

During the period ended 31 December 2015, the Group

E—RFRA—HEZZT

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

(b)

41. BEREALRS (&)

R EX K FER A MIEREREM A D
FRIEEIN  AREBRBE_FT—1
FOA=THBFELEAGHEEA
THETEAERARS -

BE-T - AFF_A=+—HAIH

had the following material transactions with related A - Zli’%léﬁiﬁﬁﬁ BATHETUTE
parties. AR

Underwriting Interest
income expense
X[ ON FIEB®
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Intermediate holding company (i) AR AR A A () 3,327 30,390
Ultimate holding company (ii) SEPERR AR ) 22,798 -
26,125 30,390

(i) During the period, the Group earned underwriting
income from the intermediate holding company,
CHIH in respect of issue of a bond by its subsidiary.
The total amount represented continuing
connected transactions.

During the period, the intermediate holding
company CHIH provided an aggregate amount of
US$500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$3,875,250,000)
Company Loan. The loan bears annual interest rate
of 5.761% and repayable in 3 years. Approximately
HK$30,387,000 the interest payables are incurred
from the Company Loan during the period.

(i) During the period, the Group earned underwriting
income from the ultimate holding company, China
Huarong Asset Management Co., Ltd in respect of
the listing and initial public offering of its shares.
The total amount represented continuing
connected transactions.

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Huarong
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (“China Huarong"), which is
indirectly controlled by the PRC government through the
Ministry of Finance (the "MOF"). MOF is the major
shareholder of China Huarong as at 31 December 2015.
For the current period, in addition to those disclosed
above, the Group has undertaken transactions with
certain entities directly or indirectly owned by the PRC
government, including but not limited to receiving loan
facilities and rendering underwriting services. The Group
is of opinion that these transactions are individually
insignificant and were carried out in normal business
terms that do not require separate disclosure.
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) B g B R 4R HxZPﬁEEE
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 42. BEREsz2eMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FEemTARRENETER CRA
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (ERURNE
As at 31 December 2015 R=—Z-A2F+=-A=+—H
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial
assets
designated
as at
fair value
through Held for Loans and
profit or loss trading  receivables Total
EER
DREETA
BREkZ EXR
SREE BFEE PEMRBR X st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET
Other long term assets HiREBE - - 6,653 6,653
Loans and accounts receivable ERREKER = = 912,032 912,032
Financial assets included in FTAFERFIE -
prepayments, deposits and HEE:
other receivables ERzemiE - - 13,683 13,683
Financial assets at fair value BRARBERA
through profit or loss BakrepiE 313,418 438,346 = 751,764
Restricted bank balances TIREIRITES - - 623,241 623,241
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER - - 10,353 10,353
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeSAEEE - - 3,040,911 3,040,911
313,418 438,346 4,606,873 5,358,637
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

42. ZEH B D 2RI A (H)

(continued)
Financial liabilities SRMAEE
Financial
liabilities
designated
as at Financial
fair value liabilities at
through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
EER
AREEFA  REERE
BEE2 SRz
CREE CREE @t
HK$'000 HK$‘000 HK$'000
THERT TERT THER
Accounts payable JERBRRL - 602,269 602,269
Financial liabilities included in STAEMEMRIRETER
other payables and accruals ERARE - 45,949 45,949
Convertible Notes issued REGEESES - 26,393 26,393
Interest-bearing borrowings HEEE - 3,875,250 3,875,250
Amount due to an associate R —FEE & R R50I8 - 190 190
Financial liabilities at fair value through BORBEFABREZCHERE
profit or loss 32,886 - 32,886
32,886 4,550,051 4,582,937
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
As at 30 April 2015
Financial assets

42. ZEHB D 2RI A (H)

RZZE—RFHA=1+H
CRIEE

Available-for-
Held for Loansand  sale financial
trading receivables assets Total
Rk AftHEZ
BIEEE JEMBE SR TREE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT FHET FHET
Other long term assets HEhRHEE - 6,141 - 6,141
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - - 96,453 96,453
Loans and accounts receivable ERREBERR - 120,201 - 120,201
Financial assets included in BSEIECER
prepayments, deposits and HES &
other receivables RV EREE - 12,124 - 12,124
Financial assets at fair value BORBEFABREL
through profit or loss SREE 1,457 - - 1,457
Restricted bank balances XIREIRITE - 280,004 - 280,004
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER - 10,725 - 10,725
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBE4EM[IER - 68,337 - 68,337
1,451 497,532 96,453 595,436
Financial liabilities CRIBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SR AR B AR
ZE@AatE
HK$'000
FHIT
(Restated)
(KeE5)
Accounts payable FEATBR X 294,938
Financial liabilities included in SFAHMEMBERREAER
other payables and accruals CRIBE 4,005
Convertible Notes issued BT R R 24,480
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE 53,913
377,336
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ¢WMIBZAARBERAAEBERE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIBEZAREENE
This note provides information about how the Group AMAREEFEAESENNEEEHERE
determines fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities IERBEANEBEZEN MZELH
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. Some of ﬁ%&%%ﬂﬁa% AL BN EER N EE
the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are FE-AEEETESREENERAEER
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period on a WEHBRUASEEEER N BEFSE -
recurring basis. The following table gives information about TERREHEANIEECZSEMNEERS
how the fair values of these financial assets and financial BBz A AAEEFREREERE
liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique &@@/\%@F)zgﬂ BN RATER AN - R
and inputs used). Except as detailed in the following table, the REIEERANGE M BHMERERZ Hith
directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts SREENBECRABEEEAREEMR
of other financial assets and liabilities recognised in the oo
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
Increase (decrease)
in fair value of financial
Significant Reasonable instruments by
Fair value as at Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s)  unobservable  changeinkey  reasonable changes in
31 December 2015 30 April 2015 hierarchy  and key input(s) inputs inputs +/- significant inputs
REABAHE
W-B-1f WZB-1F TEHABE 2RESD
TZA=1-A ME=tH ERER EXTTBE  2RESH mEHERIE
ZANEE ZANEE DMEBESR FTHAEE argE (+/4) MEREN(HD)
Financial assets
SREE
Held for trading Listed equity securities;  Listed equity securities.  Level 1 Quoted bid prices in N/A N/A N/A
non-derivative financial — HK$435,958,000 — HK$1,451,000 an active market
assets classified as
"Held for trading
investment”
PBAIGEEERE] . LikaESR: TiREES £ ERMEAR EAE TERm TER TER
BESEFASREE  —IB9O0ET  —1451000E7
Financial asset classifiedas ~ N/A Listed equity securities.  Level 1 Quoted hid prices N/A N/A N/A
" Available-for-sale — HK$96,453,000 inan active market
investments”
ARAIMELEREI . TEE TTRAES F-E ERMSHRIEAE TER TER TER
SRAE — 96,453,000
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ¢RI A AREERAAEEE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) & (1)
Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIBEZAREBENE(E)
(continued)
Increase (decrease)
in fair value of financial
Significant Reasonable instruments by
Fair value as at Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s)  unobservable  changeinkey  reasonable changesin
31 December 2015 30 April 2015 hierarchy  and key input(s) inputs inputs +/- significant inputs
REABAHE
WZZ-1F WZZ-1F IEHABE  2RESD
TZR=t-H MA=1H ERER EXTTEE  2RESH MEHERIA
ZANEE ZANEE MEEESR FTRARE argE (/) MEEEN(HD)
Financial assets (continued)
SRHEE(E
(3  Convertible bonds classified  Unlisted convertible N/A Level3 Discount cash flows Discountrate: ~ 10%(discount ~ Decrease/increase in
as "Financial asset honds issued by a model for debt 34.37% rate ranging discount rate:
designated as at fair value listed company: component. The key from 30.93% HK$11,635,000/
through profit or loss” —HK$313,418,000 inputs are credit 1037.81%) HK$(10,551,000)
rating of the issuer,
cash flows, discount
rate and remaining
time to maturity.

AER TR —RETRRETL TR E BEFIERIRRERE HRE: 10% (738 % WRETH/ L
TﬁmﬂEZﬂﬁﬁEJZ 3 LR ES - BE - TEHAHE 34.37% N F3093% 11,635,007/
ikRES — 313,418,000 BEOAZESTIR 23781%) (10,551,000

BTEE-

Binomial option pricing Volatility: 10% (volatility ~ Increase/decrease in
model for conversion 63.26% ranging from volatility: HK$5,908,000/
option. The key inputs 56.93%to HKS(3,287,000)
are exercise price of the 69.59%)
options, current share
price ofthe underlying ~ Discountrate: ~ 10% (discount  Increase/decrease
assets of the options, 34.37% rate ranging in discount rate:
expected volatility risk from 30.93% HKS6,609,000/
free rate, dividend yield, 1037.81%) HKS(4,833,000)
time to maturity and
discount rate.

BREFRE D 0 : 060RENT  REEN/5Y
TIEER  FBHA 63.26% 5693% % 5,908 00057/
YEANRELTEE 69.59%) (3,287,000 87
BRAGEELRE
TRfE - BERE - Rk 0ITRENT FEE LA/ TH:
ZERHE REx. 34.37% 3093%2 6,609000%7,/
BTESLIBE 37.81%) (4,833 00037
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 43. ¢RI AZAREERAAEEE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) & (47)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments EMIBEZAREBENE(E)

(continued)

Increase (decrease)

in fair value of financial

Significant Reasonable instruments by

Fair value as at Fair value as at Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s)  unobservable  changeinkey  reasonable changesin
31 December 2015 30 April 2015 hierarchy  and key input(s) inputs inputs +/- significant inputs

REABARE
WZE-1F WZE-1F ITHABE 2RESD
TZR=t-H MA=1H ERER EXATTEE  2RE2H MEHERIA
ZANEE ZANEE MEEER ITHALE BABE (+/-) DMEEEN(HD)

Financial assets (continued)

SRHEE(R)

(4)  Put option of equity investment - Unlisted put option issued  N/A Level3 Binomial option pricing Volatility: 10% (volatility ~ Increase/decrease in
classified as “Held for trading by a unlisted company: model. The key inputs 1.2% ranging from volatilty: HK$715,000/
investment” — HK$2,388,000 are exercise price of the 10.08%to HKS(654,000)

options, current share 12.32%)
price of the underlying
assets of the options, Discountrate:  10%(discount  Decrease/increase in
expected volatility, time 071% rate ranging discount rate:
to maturity, risk free from 0.64% HK$28,000/HK$(29,000)
rate, dividend yield and 100.78%)
discount rate.
PERIGEEEREl 2 —BHELAAAEAZ  TER E “EABERERA - TE KRG 0% CRENT RN/ B
RARE 2t iR ¥ETRERE GABERBEL 11.2% 10.08%% 715000387/
—2388000/C 1fefE - HEEEEEL 1232%) (654,000 7
RERE  BHEE-
BTES ERRAE. AR%: 0(FRENT FEETH/ L
BEERARE- 071% 064%E BO0ET/
0.78%) (29,000 72

Financial liabilities

SREE

(1) Interests of the Second-Tier  Interest of Second-Tier ~ N/A Level2 Share of net asset value N/A N/A N/A
Limited Partner in Limited Partner in a based on () the fair
Consolidated Investment Consolidated value of underlying
Fund "Financial liabilities Investment Fund: investment which are
designated as at fair value —HK$32,886,000 public traded equity
through profit or loss” investment and (i the

terms of the
Consolidated
Investment Fund.
RBERABARNGARELS RRBRARA ol £2F EROEERE(BRR  TER TEm TEm
s [EEh REaREES R BERTRE)ZDNE
BOLBEAEREL —32,886,000/%7L BRIGAREERZ
SREE] RpihERRE
For the details of above financial instruments, please refer to B LT EZFE RRT21 R
notes 21 and 22. 22
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

- hFRA—RAE_T-RF+-A=1+—HI-HH

43. ERMIAZARBERAREERE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) ()
Fair value hierarchy AREBEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHAEAAEEERITEZ AR EBEFE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: R
Assets measured at fair value: BARBEITEZEE
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZE-—RF+=-A=+—H
Fair value measurement
DAEBETE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—FE) (=) (B=B) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR TR
Financial assets at fair AR EBFAER
value through profitor loss 7 &g &E 435,958 - 315,806 751,764
Financial liabilities at fair BARBEFABR
value through profitorloss & @aE - 32,886 - 32,886
As at 30 April 2015 RZZE—RFMA=1+H
Fair value measurement
NREEFE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(F—E) (=) (=) Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments 96,453 - - 96,453
Financial assets at fair value 1A R BE ABZER
through profit or loss JEMEE 1,451 - - 1,451
97,904 - - 97,904
During the period ended 31 December 2015 and year ended 30 BE-_T-AFt+t-A=+t—HLHEEEK

April 2015, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2.

BE_T-OAFMA=THLFE F—

BrE_BzMBIEARBETEES -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF  43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during

the period are as follows:

& (&)

ERMIAECAREBEERAREEE

BN EZERABEFEZESHUT

31.12.2015
—E-RF
+=ZA=+—H
HK$'000
FET
Convertible bonds classified as financial assets DEAETERAEANBEFABEREZ
designated as at fair value through profit or loss: SRMEEZBRRES
At beginning of the period AR -
Purchased during the period AR BEA 275,000
Interest earned during the period HAE BB 258 (1,497)
Fair value gain recognised on financial asset BEARZRAABEFABREZ
designated as at fair value through profit or loss SREEER AL BB 39,915
At end of the period REAR 313,418
31.12.2015
N-E—FHE
+=B=+—H
HK$°000
FET
Put option of equity investment classified as held for DEAFEEEREZBRARE 2
trading investment: FRh AR
At beginning of the period AR -
Purchased during the period HARIEA 2,388
At end of the period REAR 2,388
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise available-
for-sale investments, other long term assets, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and accounts receivable,
deposit and other receivables, restricted bank balances, pledge
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable,
amount due to an associate, interest-bearing borrowings, other
payables, convertible notes issued and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, equity price risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an asset and
liability denominated in foreign currency will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's foreign
currency risk primarily arises from sales or purchases by
operating entities in currencies other than the entities’
functional currency.

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A=E—RFRA—HE=-Z

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44.

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Details of financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies, other than the functional currency of
each operating entity at the end of the reporting period were

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

MEEREE B ERBEKR (&)

S B ()

NEREBEMINEEE AN ZINEFHEZ
THEENERBENREHBATERZ
BT

as follows:
Foreign
currency 31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-1F 1%
S +=A=+-H mA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Loans and accounts receivable Bz R EWER usb ET 6,669 2,174
Cash and cash equivalents BeKkBeEEEA usb ET 2,331,378 2,246
RVB ARE 857 707
Restricted bank balances XIRGIRI TR usD ET 25,120 2,603
RVB AEE 357 426
Pledged bank deposits BEARITER RVB ARE 10,353 10,725
Other receivables Hb R usb e 301 -
RVB ARE 102 -
Accounts payable JESBE TR usD ey (24,955) (2,647)
RVB ARE (357) (426)
Interest-bearing borrowings EEE usb ES (3,875,250) -
Other payables H A FEHER IR UsD eI (30,387) -

As USD is pegged to HKS$, the Group does not expect any
significant movement in the USD/HK$ exchange rate. The
following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit (loss) after tax.

MR ETTEETTANE - AN EIERIE T
RABTZERYBEMERNES - TRE
i#i&iﬁﬂFﬁ%#ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂmﬁﬂ%%
‘‘‘‘‘‘ B2BERT  RNEBRHEEN(ER)
%T/\EMETZ/\EE/%EM@Z@@E °
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44.

172

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)
As at 31 December 2015

MEEREE B ERBEK (&)

ShEEE RS ()
R-ZE-HFE+=-H=+—H

Decrease/
increase in
profit after

tax

MRBL &R

W18

HK$'000
FET

If Hong Kong Dollar strengthens/weakens against
RMB by 5%

BBTAARBHEBE%
472

As at 30 April 2015

R-ZE—HFWHA=1H

Decrease/
increase in
loss after tax
GRS
BN
HK$'000
FHT

If Hong Kong Dollar weakens/strengthens against
RMB by 5%

BB AREEIE THES%
477

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e B HRRNE

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 A==

E—RFRA—HEZZT

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

financial asset designated as at fair value through profit or loss
and put option of equity investment as classified as held for
trading investment disclosed in note 43.

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. BIERKMERE 2 BERBUER ()
AND POLICIES (continued)
Equity price risk % R E A R
The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from REEAZABRARBEFABREZS
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (see note 21) mEE(RNMF2) KA HEERE (R
and available-for-sale investments (see note 22). F22)MEEZRERERES -
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a 5% (30 TREATEMEEMBERFTE AR
April 2015: 5%) increase/decrease in the relevant stock price, HERER RSB TER 2REE 8
with all other variables held constant, based on their carrying BRZEER LA TERS%(ZZ—RFN
amounts at the end of the reporting period. A=1H8 :5%) B2 §KE -
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-HF+=-H=+—H
Increase/ Increase/
decrease Increase decrease
in prices of (decrease) in other
underlying Carrying in profit comprehensive
instrument amount after tax income
HETAER REARR  Ht2Eks
/T EEE B (HL) #h/ By
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FET THERT
Investments: RE:
Financial assets at fair value EAABETAER
through profit or loss: SHEAE:
— Held-for-trading listed —BEEELT
equity investments RAREE 5% 435,958 18,201 -
— Unlisted convertible bonds — E LA ES increase/ 313,418 23,108/ -
decrease 10% (20,668)
EH/TH10%
— Put option on listed equity — LRAREZ increase/ 2,388 (1,681)/ =
investment LR decrease 10% 6,416
EH/TH10%
Financial liabilities at fair value BAREBEFMABEEZ
through profit or loss: tRAaE:
— Interests of the Second-Tier — KB ERABARGAS
Limited Partner in Consolidated REESHER
Investment Fund 5% 32,886 (8,237) -
The equity price effect on convertible bonds classified as HoBAETEIZAABESAEBRECS

MEEZARKRES  URSBERIFEE
BEREBARE 2RO RELERN
MTD£43&E§°
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44.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

As at 30 April 2015

—hAFRA—HE=E

—hRFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

MEEREE B ERBEK (&)

B R EREE R (B
R-ZE—RAMA=+H

Increase/ Increase/
decrease decrease
in prices of Decrease/ in other
underlying Carrying increasein  comprehensive
instrument amount loss after tax income
HETAER BREREE  HozEks
A/ T REE B,/ i/ m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TAET
Investments listed in: RTFME EmoieE
Hong Kong e
— Held-for-trading —BEEE 5% 1,451 61 -
— Available-for-sale — At E 5% 96,453 - 4,027
Interest rate risk F == @ B

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to loans and accounts receivable, deposits with banks
and accounts payable. The Group is also exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate borrowings and fixed
rate convertible bonds held by the Group. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
Group closely manages its exposure arising from margin
financing and other lending activities undertaken by allowing
an appropriate margin on the interest received and paid by the
Group.

The Group prices these loans receivable strategically to reflect
market fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest-rate
spread.
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44.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Prime Rate arising from the
Group's variable interest rate instruments. As at 31 December
2015, if the interest rate had been 50 basis points (30 April
2015: 50 basis points) higher/lower, the Group's profit after tax
would increase/decrease by HK$16,447,000 (30 April 2015: loss
after tax would decrease/increase by HK$705,000).

The sensitivity analysis above is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
(30 April 2015: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk that would affect profit
or loss is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of market
interest rate arising from the Group's investment in fixed rate
convertible bonds.

As at 31 December 2015, if the interest rate had been 100 basis
points (30 April 2015: 100 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group'’s profit after tax would
decrease/increase by HK$3,291,000/HK$5,679,000 (30 April
2015: Nil).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the
carrying amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the Board of Directors of the Company has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
receivable at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment provision for losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

E—RFRA—HEZZT

44.

ERERSRERAERAR/ ZB—AFFH

—RFE+ZA=+—HLLHM

MEEREE B ERBEKR (&)

HEREFZRR K
AEEBZReREFERBEEEFRA
EETFHFRTAMELEZBERESRF
R e W-_E—REF+-_A=+—08"
MR REM, SR A S0EES (T —RHEF
MA=+H :S0EEL)  AEBERER
F 12 o0, 4 16,447,000 T (—E—H
FUA=+H: BRHEEBEKD, HEm
705,000 7T) °
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RAEEZ SRR T AREEFENARER -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from loans and accounts receivable are
disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank balances are placed with various authorised institutions.

Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider the credit

risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are

banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-

ratings agencies. The Group has exposure to the concentration

of credit risk from one bank of approximately HK$1,550,660,000
(30 April 2015: approximately HK$56,229,000).

The Group invested in unlisted convertible bond investments
and a put option of equity investment classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The credit risk of the

issuers of these instruments are monitored by the Group
regularly. The fair value of the convertible bonds was estimated

by an independent firm of professional valuer.

For listed equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, the Group has a policy in place
of spreading the aggregate value of transactions concluded
amongst approved counterparties with an appropriate credit
quality. The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored.

Apart from the exposures to the concentration of credit risk
mentioned as above, the Group does not have any other
significant concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk
Internally generated cash flows, interest-bearing borrowings

are the general sources of funds to finance the operations of
the Group. Majority of the Group’s banking facilities are subject
to floating rates and are renewable annually. The Group

regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure it has

adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations
and compliance with the statutory requirements applying to
various licenced activities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available
and sufficient bank deposits to meet its short term cash

requirements. The Group's liquidity risk management includes
making available standby banking facilities and diversifying the

funding sources.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end

hFE+-A=+—HLLHM

44. BHEARER 2 BBERBEK (H)

TR B ()

RIBC AT ARITIRN K

E
D-I_rv—

S SE i

of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted LHREAES Y SRAaGE s IHIERNT
payments, is as follows:
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZB-AF+=ZHA=+—H
Weighted
average
effective 3toless Total Total
interest On  Less than than 1t05 Over undiscounted  carrying
rate  demand 3 months 12 months years 5years  cashflow  amount
MELH DR =z RRRS
BRA= REX =fif  t=fiA -Z1% RENE hEAE RELE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TERL TR TR TR FER TERL TR
Accounts payable ERTERR - 593,888 8,381 - - - 602,269 602,269
Other payables and accruals — EAEREZ K
fEsHER - - 15,562 30,387 - - 45,949 45,949
Convertible Notes issued BETTARRE 12% - 30,000 - - - 30,000 26,393
Interest-Dearing borrowings  FEEE 5.76% - - 189,889 4,324,237 - 4,514,126 3,875,250
Amount due toan associate  FE—FBE R A3 = 190 = = = = 190 190
Financial liabilities at fair value %7227 EfE M%%EE
through profit or loss LeBERE - = = = 32,886 = 32,886 32,886
594,078 53,943 220,276 4,357,123 - 5225420 4,582,937
As at 30 April 2015 (Restated) RZZE—RAFMA=+HET])
Weighted
average 3toless Total Total
effective On  Lessthan than 1105 Over  undiscounted carrying
interest rate demand  3months  12months years 5years cash flow amount
METH PR =z KBRS
ERTIE REX =R T=fEA —ZRF RENRE nERE  RELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThAL Tir ThEL T Tin ThAL
Accounts payable iR - M8 2,134 - - - 200938 294938
Other payables and accruals — EfufEfEZ R
B ER - - 4,005 - - - 4,005 4,005
Convertible Notes issued RESTREES 12% - - - 30,000 - 30,000 24430
Interest-Dearing borrowings s BEE 10% - - 57,320 - - 57,320 53913
292,804 619 5730 30,000 - 386263 3773%
ERBEReRERERAR/ ZE—HAEER 177



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
IRE ISR R MR

For the period from 1 May 2015 to 31 December 2015 R —ZE—HAFRA—HE - T—AF+-A=+—HI-HHE

44.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value. In addition, certain
subsidiaries of the Group licenced by the SFC are obliged to
meet the regulatory liquid capital requirements under the
Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“FRR").

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns with higher levels of
borrowings and the security afforded by a sound capital
position, and make adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. For licenced subsidiaries,
the directors of the Company and the corresponding
responsible officers closely monitors their liquidity position to
ensure each of them maintain liquid capital level adequate to
support the activities level with sufficient buffer to
accommodate the increase in liquidity requirements arising
from potential increases in business activities. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the period ended 31 December 2015
and year ended 30 April 2015.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING

The disclosures set out in the tables below include financial
assets and financial liabilities that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement that covers
similar financial instruments that are either:

° offset in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position; or

° not offset in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position as the offsetting criteria are not met.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC"),brokers and dealer, the Group has
a legally enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC and brokers on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net basis.

In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
the accounts receivable and payable with its clients in the
Group's brokerage business (“Clients”) that are due to be
settled on the same date with reference to the settlement
method set by the HKSCC and the Group intends to settle
these balances on a net basis.

Except for balances which are due to be settled on the same
date which are being offset, amounts due from/to Clients,
HKSCC, brokers and dealers that are not to be settled on the
same date, financial collateral including cash and securities
received by the Group, deposit placed with HKSCC, brokers
and dealers do not meet the criteria for offsetting in the
consolidated statement of financial position since the right of
set-off of the recognised amounts is only enforceable following
an event of default.
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45. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 45. cREEHSREEZKE (F)
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued)
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master RIEE BB IT R —FREER
netting arrangements and similar agreements ERBEUBZEAT THREZEREE
As at 31 December 2015 R-EB—AF+=-A=+—H
Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
TERGERERRRTEE
HELE
Gross
amountsof  Net amounts
recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
set off in the in the
Gross consolidated consolidated
amounts of statement statement Cash
recognised of financial of financial Financial collateral
financial assets position position instruments received Net amount
REGEHE
MR K2 N AL
[Byika: Y RAKE5 2
BEAR BEER SRHEEFHE SRIE CUERLEAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET TEx TER FER TEx
Description HE
Accounts receivable MR 1,020,882 (135,216) 885,666 - (875,832) 9,834
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master BEABAREIENT R —FREEEL
netting arrangements and similar agreements ERBELUHZEAT THREZERBE
As at 31 December 2015 R-ZB—AF+=A=+—H
Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
BERGERBRRRPEHZ
HHEH
Gross
amountsof  Net amounts
recognised of financial
financial liabilities
assets presented
Gross set off in the in the
amountsof  consolidated consolidated
recognised statement statement Cash
financial of financial of financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
REGREH
MR KL REEEH
B}k Y RAKE5 2 e8¢
BEAH BELE SRHEETFE SRIA ReEAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Description HE
Accounts payable ERTERR 729,380 (135,216) 594,164 (571,752) - 22,412
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45. FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued)
Financial assets subject to offsetting, enforceable master

netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 30 April 2015

45. TRIEERSMEEZIKE (&)

RIFABRAGIERIT 5%

HEER

BERBEOEA TR SREE

R-ZE-—HFWA=1H

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
WERNTARBRRRFEH

izl ki
(Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets
liabilities presented
setoff in the inthe
Gross consolidated consolidated
amounts of statement statement Cash
recognised of financial of financial Financial collateral
financial assets position position instruments received Net amount
NG Ep
HREREHE RETEETE
BHRER [mE MREE5 2
BEEE aEESE SRHEEFE tRIE EBYEReEAR FHE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAR AR TAT TAR AT
Description HE
Accounts receivable JEURER K 408,542 (288,461) 120,081 - (112,269) 7813

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master

netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 30 April 2015

RIBABRASIERIT 28 —F

s

HMEER

BERBELUBERT T EE EREBE

R-ZE—HFWHA=1H

Related amounts not set off
in the consolidated statement
of financial position
TENGAMBRARREEL

sl
Gross amounts Net amounts
of recognised of financial
financial assets liabilities
setoffinthe  presented inthe
Gross consolidated consolidated
amounts of statement Statement Cash
recognised of financial of financial Financial collateral
financial liabilities position position instruments pledged Net amount
WRE BT
MAREEZ NEa#H
ERReH [ MREE5Z EER
BEEE BEER SHEBEFE SRMIA Re#lm FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FAT TAT TET TAT TAT
Description #HE
Accounts payable JERERSR 581,841 (288,461) 293,380 (280,226) - 13,154
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45.

182

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL 45. SRIEEHESMEE 2K (E)
LIABILITIES OFFSETTING (continued)
31.12.2015 30.4.2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
+=H=+—H mMAB=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Accounts receivable FEWER TR
Net amount of accounts receivable 37 KBRS ERE
as stated above 885,666 120,081
Amount not in scope of offsetting WABRE IR ERE . 258
disclosure 26,366 120
Total amount of accounts receivable PRI 24 B3I 2 FEUS AR SR 48 58
stated in note 24 912,032 120,201
Accounts payable FEATER
Net amount of accounts payable 37 B EBRFCERE
as stated above (594,164) (293,380)
Amount not in scope of offsetting WABRE R EERE 258
disclosure (8,105) (1,558)
Total amount of accounts payable REIE28 P15l 2 FE S AR SR 4858
stated in note 28 (602,269) (294,938)
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EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 7 January 2016, the Company allotted 60,000,000 ordinary
shares upon conversion of the Convertible Notes of the
principal amount of HK$30,000,000. Immediately after the
conversion, there were no outstanding Convertible Notes
issued by the Company.

0On 29 January 2016, the Group and SMI Culture Group Holdings
Limited (“SMI Culture”) entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which SMI Culture conditionally agreed to issue,
and the subscriber, which is a subsidiary of the Company,
conditionally agreed to subscribe for HK$250,000,000 9% Notes
(the "SMI Notes") in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$250,000,000. The SMI Notes bear interest at 9% per annum
and mature in 6 months and are guaranteed by SMI Holdings
Group Limited, an independent third party of the Group, as
guarantor.

On 3 February 2016, the Group entered into a limited
partnership agreement (the “Limited Partnership Agreement”)
with an investor, which is an independent third party of the
Group, in relation to the formation of Huarong International
Asset Management Growth Fund L.P. (the “Fund”) for a period
of 3 years. Pursuant to the Limited Partnership Agreement, the
Group agreed to make a total capital contribution to the Fund
of US$63 million, representing 90% of the aggregate Fund size.
The Fund was established for the principal purpose of (i)
subscribing the Chinasoft Convertible Notes (as defined below)
in the aggregate principal amount of US$70 million due in 2019,
and (i) investment in other companies which will produce
attractive returns on capital from investments of the Fund
while managing investment risk.

On 3 February 2016, subsequent to the execution of the
Limited Partnership Agreement, the Fund and Chinasoft
International Limited (“Chinasoft”) entered into a subscription
agreement, pursuant to which Chinasoft conditionally agreed
to issue, and the Fund conditionally agreed to subscribe, for
the convertible notes in aggregate principal amount of US$70
million (the “Chinasoft Convertible Notes”). The Chinasoft
Convertible Notes bear interest at 4.5% per annum with the
initial conversion price at HK$3 per share maturing in 2019. On
15 February 2016, the Fund completed the subscription of the
first tranche of the Chinasoft Convertible Notes in the amount
of US$30 million. On 10 March 2016, the Fund completed the
subscription of the second tranche of the Chinasoft Convertible
Notes in the amount of US$40 million.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. ERRHMBRRAMFER
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the R BE AR - BEAR R BIR
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RZEMOT
31.12.2015 30.4.2015 1.5.2014
—E—-ffF —ET—AHF —E—F
+=-—A=+—~H mMA=+H HA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAT FAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(FzE7) (L=E7)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 2,793 - -
Investments in subsidiaries N YNPA S| 1,000 41,511 41,51
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE - 20,797 28,841
Total non-current assets FREBEERE 3,793 62,308 70,352
Current assets REEE
Due from subsidiaries JE W B A~ Bk IE 2,826,257 1,377,816 1,222,253
Prepayments, deposits and BEFE ek
other receivables H b R K 13,578 9,981 354,666
Cash and cash equivalents ReNREFEIER 2,148,155 10,880 9,381
Total current assets MEEEEE 4,987,990 1,398,677 1,586,300
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to subsidiaries U NG e 536,610 67,368 55,840
Other payables and accruals Hib BN RA N ERT B A 45,395 3411 3,197
Tax payable &S i 18 9,061 - -
Provision for reinstatement fEERE 123 -
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE - 53,913 -
Convertible Notes issued BT RRER 26,393 - -
Total current liabilities mENB BB 617,582 124,692 59,037
Net current assets MEVEEFE 4,370,408 1,273,985 1,527,263
Total assets less current liabilities BELERMBEE 4,374,201 1,336,293 1,597,615
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Convertible Notes issued 2RT I MREIR = 24,430 265,924
Provision for reinstatement BB 29 252 45
Provision for long service payments & HIAR 75 & R 342 - -
Interest-bearing borrowings FTEREE 3,875,250 - -
3,875,621 24,732 265,969
Net assets BESE 498,580 1,311,561 1,331,646
Ew? s
Issued capital , BT 3,278 1,576 906
Equity component of convertible notes  A] % == & A& 4 2517 36,780 36,780 447,490
Share premium and reserves Betn s (B R 458,522 1,273,205 883,250
Total equity BB 498,580 1,311,561 1,331,646
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors RZE—RNF=A+mK EI%«%$ﬁﬁt/E&
on 14 March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by: Wi THATEER AR
Liu Xiaodong Xiong Hao
Bl R BE UK
Director Director
e EF
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 47. AR B BBEMRRMFER (E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: Rpal#EEsBENT
Available-
for-sale  Convertible
Share investment notes
premium  Contributed  revaluation equity Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve losses Total
mitEr  TREREEES
RABER BARH REE(RHE ERfE RitER @t

HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR

At1May 2014 RZE-mFRA-H 1,050,426 274160 (49,791) 16,288 (44.181) 1,246,902
Prior year adjustment BEEERE 127,94 - 46,381 431202 (521,691) 83838
At 1 May 2014 (restated) RZZ-mERA-A
(&) 1,178,372 274160 (3,410) 447 490 (565,872) 1,330,740
Loss for the year EEER - - - - (41,210) 41,210)
Other comprehensive income FEAMZENE (FY)
(expense) for the year.
Fair value loss on available-for-sale  AI{tHERE 7
investments NrBEEER - - (8,044) - - (8,044)
Reclassification upon impairment R EEREHER
of available-for-sale investment ENNE - - 16,377 - - 16,377
Total comprehensive income FERENE (B8R
(expense)for the year - - 8,333 - (41,210 (32877)
Issue of shares upon conversionof B EBRE B
convertible notes (note 33(@) Bl (F3E330) 659,183 - - 410,710) - 28473
Special dividend paid ERERHRE - (236,351) - - - (236,351)
AL30 Apri 2015 (restated) RZE-HENA=TH
(&5 1,837,555 37,809 4923 36,780 (607,082) 1,309,985
Loss for the period il - - - - (66,386) (66,386)
Other comprenensive expense BHEZERY
for the period:
Fair value gain on available-for-slle ATt HERE 2
investments NrBEEkE - - 4 - - i
Reclassification adjustment relating AR E A ERE
to disposal of available-for-sale LENDERE
Investments - - (4.967) - - (4.967)
Total comprehensive expense HH2AE AR
for the period - - (4,923 - (66,386) (71,309)
Share premium reduction () TR{p R EAIR ) (1386591 1,311,647 - - 74944 -
Shares issued (note 33(0)) BETRMR (H5330) 166,467 - - - - 166,467
Distribution in specie of shares ENAR—ENBLARZ
in a subsidiary (note 15) Hfn (F3E15) - (120080 - - - (120080
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%
+ZR=1-H 917431 139,615 - 36,780 (598,524) 495,302
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

186

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company
may make distributions to its shareholders out of the contributed
surplus in certain circumstances.

Following the passing of the special resolution of shareholders
on 24 July 2015, the share premium account was reduced
pursuant to Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and the bye-laws
of the Company. The share premium account was first applied
to offset the entire amount of accumulated losses of the
Company and the remaining balance was credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company.

Huarong International Financial Holdings Limited / Annual Report 2015
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Five Year Financial Summary
T ENBERE

AEENBEREYBHHIZEUNREE &
BERSEERBRREEHE N REAC R ZLE
A BIRE -

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial periods, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements.

RESULTS E
1.5.2015 to 1.5.2014 0 1.5.2013t0 15201210 1.5.2011t0
31.12.2015 30.4.2015 30.4.2014 30.4.2013 30.4.2012
—E-If —E-MmE —T-=F —T--F —T——F
TA—-HZE hAR—-AB% hA—BZ% FA—RZ FA—RZE
~¥-Ef  ZFREF ZEF-RF ZF-=F T CF
+=A=+-8H MA=+H MA=1+H MA=+H MA=+8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL TEL FEL FEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(f=E51) (mE7))
Turnover: HEE
Continuing operations BECLEED 168,003 46,368 39,356 95,558 137,998
Discontinued operations BRIEEEER 30,945 198,893 126,936 - -
198,948 245,261 166,292 95,558 137,998
Profit (loss) before tax; BREANEA (F1) -
Continuing operations SRR 175,905 (70,542) (579,087) (55,183) (42,404)
Discontinued operations BRIHEEER (4,409) 20,195 (17,613) - -
171,496 (50,347) (596,700) (55,183) (42,404)
Income tax expense FEHAY (32,099) (16,281) (10) (1,674) (685)
Profit (loss) before FERE &)
non-controlling interests i (E18) 139,397 (66,628) (596,710) (56,857) (43,089)
Non-controlling interests DEAEREZ
classified as equity R R R = - - (44) 45
Profit (loss) attributable to (SYNSY=PN A
owners of the parent A (EB1E) 139,397 (66,628) (596,710) (56,901) (43,044)
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=z dh
FFEBEEE
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS LE AERFERBEEZE
31.12.2015 30.4.2015 30.4.2014 30.4.2013 30.4.2012
—E-1% —T-1F —T-mE 2= —T-F
+=ZHA=+-8 MA=1H MAE=1H MmA=1H mA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERr TEx TEL TEL TEL
(Restated) (Restated)
(i &5) (/&%)
Non-current assets ErRBEE 328,458 105,695 204,079 206,120 387,516
Current assets MENEE 5,040,813 1,666,348 1,544,774 1,208,029 991,341
Total assets BESE 5,369,271 1,772,043 1,748 853 1,414,149 1,378,857
Current liabilities mEEE (711,041) (489,494) (192,141) (211,431) (250,432)
Non-current liabilities ERHEE (3,923,075) (26,378) (266,992) (3,005) (2,948)
Total liabilities AfELE (4,634,116) (515,872) (459,133) (214,436) (253,330)
Non-controlling interests FEPE RGBS = - - _ 45

735,155 1,256,171 1,289,720 1,199,713 1,125,522
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